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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT A

Dear Shareholders,

2020 is an extraordinary year for the world with the
COVID-19 epidemic.
Central Government, China has overcome the challenges
and has successfully curbed the spread of the epidemic.
Our Company has contributed a lot to the anti-epidemic

Under the overall planning of the

work, especially for Beijing and Wuhan. We have received 5
national awards and many other local awards, showing how
non-government hospitals can support the medical system of
the Country in times of crisis. On behalf of the Board, |
like to express my deepest gratitude to all
shareholders for their support, the management team and

would

staff's for their hardwork and dedication, our partners for
their trust and confidence and the very strong support from
all parties fighting this virus with us.

In 2020, the operation of our hospitals was affected by
COVID-19, especially in the first quarter, but it has since
been recovering gradually and the quarterly revenue has
resumed growth since the second half of the year. Under
the influence of the epidemic, our member hospitals
recorded approximately 7.706 million outpatient visits and
approximately 0.22 million inpatient visits during the vyear.
This was a decrease from the previous year which mainly
occurred in the first quarter. From the perspective of the
operation of the member hospitals, the total

business revenue was RMBG6.644 billion,

medical
representing a
slight decrease of 3.3% from the corresponding period in
2019. Consequently, we recorded a consolidated net profit
of RMB320 million, a 20% decrease from the previous year.

EERRE

BRIRR

2020F 2B BT ERMFEMLERE - &
BAFENH—F ERRBTREET -
HET—LMERE ERESTREBE
e MARREMENTRBRHIIEF
R Z AL A EZE R M UR TEREH
TXERMER RETSEERARERS
B RE  FERR THEEARAREEE
BFRAPHIRCERFBAMENEZE
A-EHAAZBRRESTS  XLEHEE
BRI e LERBRAETRMNE
HiEB) - EEEBEAE TR E - W45 BIRK
HETERREMARIREEABNEIEE
WAREMERFELOER -

2020F NAIETBREB (FERE—=F
E)XEHEMALEBENTE  HHRDE
BWE - THEFEEBRARIRTEHGEIE
R-ERBFET RRAETKEEBREZF
BEMPENBTIIE6BE AR - ERENA
20BAXR BA—FTHEATHAMZET
FALTERAEEF—FTE - HLEEOCRE -
BETHREBR2FEEEBERAXTER
66.441B T AR  E2019F RILL R T 7
3.3% ° HIR2020F 815 FFIBMA RS2
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERME

During the year amidst COVID-19, we continue to focus on
our three strategic goals — "“business expansion, capabilities
enhancement, and innovation”. In early 2020, we completed
the acquisition of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital, while the latter
has also been transformed into for-profit in nature. We then
acquired the remaining equity interest of this hospital in the
second half of the year. We have also formed the neurology
specialty cluster which has our Sanjiu Brain Hospital as the
core institute, and consolidating the medical resources of
our member hospitals in Guangdong and Guangxi. By
cooperating with the fellow companies of the China
Resources Group, we have also made positive progress in
generating synergy in the operation of supply chains of drug
and medical consumables as well as our provision of
hospital management services. During the year, we have
also focused on improving our six main discipline clusters:
i.e. orthopedic, encephalopathy, oncology,

cardiology and gastroenterology, through the introduction of

rehabilitation,

new talents, new technologies and cooperation with other

renowned medical institutes to enhance our core
capabilities. In order to enhance the patients’ experiences,
we strive to improve our “Run-Xin" service system and have
introduced the best practice standards of the system during

the year.

EFEMLEBTNE—F RMDEERN
[FBEME - RFAREN ~ BIEAIF | = KBRS
B1iF - 2020 FHHFEM T HEREAE
BT BEREIEE - SRk T 2 BBy & F ekl
T FERTHEFWRETZROBE TR
BE o BT A = NSRIEBT Az - BE S 1
TER -  EAMMMHEBERELR  A2KEE
REBUMRERZERAOGE - iR EE
HREREMKE AR BMEHERESERE
MERAEEHESHE LIS TEREA#
B FARMMEZENREFER - BKE &
BE LR EBAEE AN KERER BB
SI#EAT B AFT M FIE INE 1ELARR FH %
DEEN  ERABEREBERIE - BRME
BIEHRETBREEREIBEL ] BERS
BR RARBRE-
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2021 is the first year of our “country’s 14th Five-Year plan”.
CR Medical will continue to strive for the goal of becoming
a trusted premium hospital group with strong specialty
chains and general hospitals as its two wings of business
development, and to utilize the resources of capital market
and commercialization to empower its growth. We will
focus on the business development in the Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei Region, the Yangtze River Delta and the Greater Bay
Area, and will also have footprints in the major cities of the
country. The Company will focus on further strengthening
key specialties and accelerating the specialty cluster
transformation. We aim at becoming a renowned medial
group with good clinical brand, providing high-quality
services, and having satisfactory appreciation in its capital.

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like to
extend my heartfelt thanks to our shareholders and business
partners for their great support.

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony
Chairman
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A MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

10

BEEBNWEDSN

The consolidated revenue of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2020 amounted to RMB2.751 billion (FY2019:
RMB2.115 billion), is mainly
attributable to the acquisition of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital and
consolidation of certain other hospitals. Please refer to the
section headed “Consolidating Certain Hospitals” below for
further details; net profit for the period amounted to
RMB320 million (FY2019: RMB401 million). Earnings per
share of the Company amounted to RMBO0.25 (FY2019:
RMBO0.31). Such decrease as compared with the prior year
was mainly due to the drop in number of visits to our
member hospitals as affected by the COVID-19 epidemic
during the Reporting Period, especially in the first quarter.

and such an increase

As of December 31, 2020, the Group managed and
operated a total of 107 medical institutions in 9 provinces
and cities in the PRC. The number of outpatient and
inpatient visits of our in-network hospitals were
approximately 7,706,000 and 220,000, respectively. Although
acquisition of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital has been completed,
the total revenue from medical business of our member
hospitals recorded approximately RMB6.644 billion during the
Reporting Period which represents a YoY decrease of 3.3%
as affected by the COVID-19 epidemic. However, business
operations have been significantly recovering since May
2020.

AEBEZE2020F1283BIEFEHER
RAEEBEARK275118 7T (20198 B F
E: AR¥211587m) - HEMNERFER
WEEEEABRAIRERERMEL -
HBRTXIHER—RIER ] Z6 - RS
NG FHEAAREI 208 T (201981
WEE : ARE4.01BT) RERABFMARKE
0.257C (20198 FE : AR¥E0317L) + &
BEF—FHATH TEIREHRAGF
AMRE—ZFE)KEBRZDEARNZIEE
SEFTH o

B ZE2020912 8318 » K& B £ F HE
A THEEELIO7TREERIE  K&H
KEBEEMZENMEREN R AELT770.6
BR20BAX ZEFTREZBETE
REFYVIZER T BREATEBRAOWE WS
HRNAKEKEBRMNBEEBRKARA
R¥E#66.4418 70 B E—F FFHH3.3%
HEBQEBERD 8202065 ANHKEE
18 -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The COVID-19 Outbreak

During the outbreak of the epidemic, Wugang Hospital and
Wuhan (Group) Corporation No. 2 Staff
Hospital are at the forefront of disease combat and control,

[ron and Steel

which focusing on the in-house work while providing
in Wuhan City

including Wuhan Jinyintan Hospital and certain mobile cabin

assistance to other medical institutes
hospitals at the same time. Its three community healthcare
clinics are responsible to provide medical consultation for
close contacts of COVID-19 patients and transferring
suspected patients.
institutes of CR Medical in Beijing, Jiangsu, Shandong,

Anhui, Guangdong and Guangxi are also actively undertaking

In addition, other member medical

the anti-epidemic work under the unified deployment of the
local health commissions. Huaikuang Hospital, the Second
Hospital of Shunyi District of Beijing, Mentougou District
Hospital and the Tai'an City Hospital
designated by the government as the designated
hospitals for admitting and treating COVID-19 patients, and

of Beijing, were

local

have
affiliated hospitals of the Group had set up fever clinics or
participated in the community prevention and control work in

received government commendation awards. 15

the corresponding
patients and has become an important force in community
prevention and control. In addition, the synergy advantages
of China Resources Group had great support to the supply
chain management department of CR Medical, and the latter
has also immediately established an emergency supply team

regions, and the screening of fever

in launching an emergency procurement plan, contacting
procurement and
and effectively ensure sufficient supply of

various sources for medical material
donations,
prevention and control materials to our member institutes in
different regions in the situation of tight supply. During the
COVID-19 epidemic, CR Medical made effective use of the
three-dimensional anti-epidemic model of “Wuhan frontline
+ designated hospitals in various regions + fever clinics &
community prevention + promising group supply chain”,
taking an importing role and taking great responsibility in

virus fighting as a social capital medical group.

EEENWETAN

FEHERIE

ERIEHME - RiERMRNERE () A
AE-RBRIBRAENRE REBETHREANER
BT E  WIMRRES BB
BBt o A T E35 A & 8 A IR O RIAIE
BYZRBEEDR RUBEEESZT(E-M
ERBEMAELR I LR RE
MES M E M EEEE - B AR
RO —BET £ -BHEESAERLRT
fE LR TAER  tRMIERRFE —8
Br - dERTPISRB R BB - TR L B8 Fx I
5K B B 1% b BT $5 TE /= [ OB #E Bib 24 8
EICHBEE  RBEHEERS MU E
MENEIEBRTRERY - AEE TE15
K _MIA L BRGRIZERMD R EB M
HEETE  FERARBE KA THE
PIIENEENE - I RO REFHEEHE
HRES  FEBERHEREENRE K
B ESHENE  RPESREBRSE B
BEEMERBNBE £xBEHEDEHR
EHREERNBELT  ARRET TESE
i EME R T E - FRERAERNRINEN
TR NE A A A [ BUR S ATAR + & 3R E # W
Al + EAFIR ML EIE+ EBEYEH
EREINZBLCARBER RATHEE
AMBEAENBRIETNERER  ROTR
BAEEARNEES -

EHBRZERARATA

—ETFR
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWES N

Regarding our resumption of normal operation and business
recovery, our member medical institutes have implemented
graded and accurate resumption of production. During the
epidemic, the member hospital management team and all
medical staff postponed their leave and were all on duty. CR
Medical formulated a phased resumption arrangement
according to locations of different risk levels since February
2020,
operation by the end of March 2020. During the year, the
number of visits to member hospitals was affected by the

and all institutes have basically resumed normal

epidemic which caused the total number of inpatient and
outpatient visits to our member hospitals to decrease by
12.9% and 12.2%, respectively. Yet we believe that the
impact of the epidemic on our business is temporary. The
of patients of our hospital
significantly in May 2020. Since June 2020, the business

number has rebounded
operation and medical income of our member hospitals have
basically resumed to the normal level when compared with

the prior year.

Consolidating Certain Hospitals
During the year, the Group has completed the acquisition of
Jinan Zhong Qu Hospital or gradually consolidated certain
other hospitals. Among which, Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital has
in early 2020,
statements have been consolidated

completed its for-profit reform and its

financial into the
Group’s condensed financial statements since April 2020.
The Group has also completed the acquisition of the
remaining equity interest in Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital in the

third quarter of 2020.

On December 5, 2019, the National Health Commission
issued the template of standard public hospital constitutional
and the City
accordingly included the Huaikuang Hospital into the local
pilot program. After completing the amendments of relevant
constitutional documents, it has fulfilled the conditions of

documents, local authority of Huaibei

consolidation pursuant to the applicable accounting
standards and therefore Huaikuang Hospital’'s financial
statements have been included in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements since May 2020. In addition, in order to
improve hospital governance and based on the completion
of similar constitutional amendments as of Huaikuang
Hospital, the Run Neng Hospitals’ financial statements have

also been consolidated to the Group since June 2020.

MEILHMERIRESE - KB BE#E
BERETDE DRBEEILEE -&RIBH
M -NEBREEERLEZEE THENK
B 2HEEEMN EHEEREMBESE
BEREBENEBRES F KRR
[& - 8202042 A 17 46 1= 1 B &l 7E 79 & ER
MW T8 MEAR2020F3 AEIRIEFT
EREBRMETES FAKEBRZE
ARZEZEZE  KEBREEBMNER &
FIR AR DRI TR T712.9%F112.2% 5 M
MRAEBHRAEBEBNFEBNY R
Mo B2020F5 AMABZEAREBEED
T+ BB H2020F6 8 D BEBIMAEAR
mEE K FREIKF -

& —R5 8

FA - ANEE TERCE R E T E R/ WE
BEEMRZREBR - & BEEAERD
REFITER T EF ks - MEFBRE S
2020F4 A AW ARSEE S O 5 &
Ao REETTEN2020FE=FE KL
MERERG T RE W -

201912 A5 - IRXBHEREZE G %
TRUBRERSHAR  HEEILTEMES
MEEEREBRS ABENHEEE - R
BT BRANERE%E  SheiEd
ERAgHENRNLREH  WEMBRE
B202055 AMBMNAREE & HFIBERE
e B4 HEERBRATEEBRIGETHE
RE RN ERBETRNENK - BB
WEKINE2020F6 AR NAREE X
#E o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

EEENRED T
List of Medical Institutions under the AEEEEEEBERBIMER
Group’s Management and Operation

Grade |

Hospitals Clinics &

and Other

Community Medical

Grade Il Grade I Centres Institutions

Hospitals Hospitals —A& =Kk BAKEM

Province/City B/ =B —RER R EEKE
Beijing IR 1 5 11 29 46
Hebei A e = 1 = = 1
Shandong‘“(z’ 11| B M@ — 3 — — 3
Shanxi BT = 1 = = 1
Jiangsu PR3 = 1 — — 1
Anhui LR 1 6 16 6 29
Hubei Vsibig 2 — 3 15 20
Guangdong E® 1 1 — 2 4
Guangxi Ef = 1 1 — 2
Total CE 5 19 31 52 107

Notes: 3

(1) Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital completed its reform to for-profit nature during the (1) EREABRENBREHRTEHR T EFESS - m

Reporting Period and its financial statements have been consolidated to HE5RE 5202054 AFRBMAREEE 53R
the consolidated financial statements of the Group since April 2020. G

(2) Pursuant to the hospital operation and management agreement which was (2) REAEFEENREEETERRFLEBEERLE

entered into between the Group, Shandong Yantai Zhifu Health Bureau* AZRERFIMABEANR2020F12 A30H 2 Bt
(LREEAHEREEERER) and Yantai Zhifu Hospital* (B4 2 REER) BEREEWE ASEAEACRERREHRES
dated December 30, 2020, the Group provides operation and management LEBRT - A1EHRA204F o

services to Yantai Zhifu Hospital for a cooperation term of 20 years.

FERBEERERLAT —T T



> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED AT
Operating data for Year 2020 2020 F € EHE

Number of patients Revenue from medical business (RMB'000)
BEEBUANRETT)

Revenue Revenue Revenue

Number of  Utilization from from from

beds in rate of Number of Number of  outpatient inpatient physical

operation beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination

BERME KAERE R ERAR FRBA ERKA BERKA

Self-owned BEBR®
Hospitals™o®! 7,481 67% 4,246,313 164,343 1,606,092 2,291,121 90,293 3,987,506
IOT/OT Hospitals I0T/OTE bz 3,484 60% 3,459,692 55,415 1,591,639 1,011,990 52,717 2,656,346
Subtotal Nat 10,965 65% 7,706,005 219,758 3,197,731 3,303,111 143,010 6,643,852
Operating data for Year 2019 2019F € EHE

Revenue from medical business (RMB'000)
BEEBUMAARETT)

Revenue Revenue Revenue

Number of  Utilization from from from

beds in rate of Number of Number of  outpatient inpatient physical

operation beds outpatients  inpatients visits visits examination

i) BERME KUFERE PAR  ERAR W, FlRBA  EBRKA

Self-owned BEER

Hospitals™°®! 7,074 72% 4,732,255 191,336 1,568,840 2,564,045 66,724 4,199,609
IOT/OT Hospitals IOT/OTE Bt 3,148 75% 4,048,660 61,032 1,581,933 1,043,594 43,667 2,669,194
Subtotal & 10,222 73% 8,780,915 252,368 3,150,773 3,607,639 110,391 6,868,803

Note: In respect of the operating data statistics, the abovementioned self-owned it : BEEZREHKFEN Ll AESERANIERER Y

hospitals refer to all consolidated hospitals and unconsolidated hospitals of FrEHRBR RIFEMHRER  TREAFNEEERE
the Group, and except for the IOT/OT hospitals managed by the Group. KIOT/OTE b °

14 China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

Financial data

Financial data for Year 2020

Unconsolidated
Hospitals
FHRBER

Consolidated
Hospitals

RMB'000 iR BB

EEENWETAN

B 1% 815
2020F B 7 Bl 15

Segment results

Other derived
businesses
HifT 5%

10T/0T
hospitals
I0T/OT &

Administrative
expenses

Other gains and
expenses

Revenue from goods Ep e
and services 2,750,650 1,674,696 288,763 760,856 26,335 = -
Cost of sales and HERRBHA
services (2,114,143) (1,379,012) (148,670) (566,051) (20,410) - -
Other income Hih A 29,189 14,075 = 9,588 5,526 = =
Other gains and losses Ho e RIE#E 356 356 - - - - -
Selling and distribution HERDHER
expenses (14,201) (2,639) (3,641) (7,921) - - -
Administrative expenses THER (201,821) (151,255) (6,551) (33,641) (10,374) - -
Finance costs HHER (2,444) (2,422) = = (22)
Impairment losses on SREERE
financial and contract BiREE
assets,net (20,178) (18,258) = (1,920) - = -
Impairment losses on an ~ EfEREE
other intangible BEEE
assets (3,588) = = (3,588) = = =
Other expenses Hit &R (7,392) (7,173) = - (219) - -
Share of profit of joint [EEEE /BE
ventures/associates NG 35,119 - 1,072 34,047 - - -
Segment results DHMEE 451,547 128,368 130,973 191,370 836 N/ATER N/ATER
Headquarters operating wEHEEER
expenses (121,943) - - - - (121,943) -
Other profit or loss Hihigzs 103,679 - - - - - 103,679
Finance costs BER (14,947) - - - - - (14,947)
Share of profit of FE{REHE D Rl
associates (151) = = = = = (151)
Income tax FifEH (97,864) = = = = = (97,864)
Net profit or loss TR 320,321 128,368 130,973 191,370 836 (121,943) (9,283)
Revenue from medical ~ BEEBKA
business 6,643,852 1,643,620 2,343,886 2,656,346 = N/ATER N/ATER
Notes: e
During the Reporting Period: R|EA -
(1) Consolidated hospitals include: Jian Gong Hospital, Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital (1) HRERBIE: 258 - B & ER (820205

(since April 2020), Huaikuang Hospital Group (since May 2020) and the
Run Neng Hospitals (since June 2020).
(2) Unconsolidated hospitals include: Guangdong 999 Brain Hospital, Huaibei
City Mental Health Center (since January 2020), Xukuang Hospital,
Wugang Hospital Group, Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital (January 2020 to March
2020), Huaikuang Hospital Group (January 2020 to April 2020) and the Run
Neng Hospitals (January 2020 to May 2020).
(3) IOT hospitals include: Jing Mei Hospital Group, Mentougou Hospital,
Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital, Mentougou Hospital for
Women and Children, Shunyi District Konggang Hospital, the Second
Hospital of Shunyi District and Baoding Third Center Hospital.

(4) OT hospitals include: Tai'an City Hospital and Yantai Zhifu Hospital.

ARRE)  EEEBEE (82020656 A ) KBk R
&Pt (52020%F6 A #E) ©

(2) FEGFR BB AT BR = AUISTI BhT b T
(IR) AL (H202091 Ai#R) ~ HIEERT - R
BT E - BEr BRI (202051 AE3A) KR
EPr @ (2020F1 AE48) RoBHaE R BT (20204F
1AZE5R) -

3) IOTEREE : REBREE  PIBHER SR - PIE
BERBER  PEEREBHRER  IEEREBE
bt IEEEE B - REMBE=_FLER -

(4) OTEREHE  FRTIUBRREAS REK -
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmED N

2019F B K & 1%

Segment results

Financial data for Year 2019

Pak

IOT/OT  Other derived
Hospitals businesses
IOT/OT®k  EfATEES

Administrative
expenses

Unconsolidated
Hospitals
EHRBER

Consolidated
Total Hospitals
RMB'000 At i1

Other gains and
expenses
THER EtbkakER

Revenue from goods i R AR i

and services 2,115,320 744,132 426,112 907,101 37,975 — —
Cost of sales and SHE RAR ISR AN

services (1,353,029) (551,995) (173,902) (607,856) (19,276) - -
Other income HigA 16,445 1,655 — 10,206 4,584 — —
Other gains and losses Hio i R EE (790) (790) = = = — —
Selling and distribution HERAHER

expenses (15,750) (2,412) (4,389) (8,924) (25) - -
Administrative expenses  {THEFR (99,115) (65,043) (6,715) (20,298) (7,059) = —
Other expenses Hib &R (1,961) (836) = = (1,125) = =
Segment results S BEE 661,120 124,711 241,106 280,229 15,074 — —
Headquarters operating BHELER

expenses (138,704) — — — — (138,704) —
Other profit or loss HibiE 31,179 — — — — — 31,179
Finance costs HHBER (16,942) — = = = = (16,942)
Share of profit of joint FEIRAE /B

ventures/associates AAIFE 4,646 = = = = = 4,646
Income tax Bt (140,665) = - - - = (140,665)
Net profit or loss FEH 400,634 124,711 241,106 280,229 15,074 (138,704) (121,782)
Revenue from medical ~ EEXEHKKA

business 6,868,803 721,055 3,478,554 2,669,194 — N/ATNiE B N/ATNiE B

Segment Results 7 EBEAR

In 2020, the aggregated results of all segments amounted
RMB452 million, which decreased by
approximately 31.7% as compared with the previous vyear,
and is mainly due to the fact that the number of visits to
our member hospitals was affected by the COVID-19
epidemic with the total number of inpatient and outpatient
visits to our member hospitals during the Reporting Period
decreased respectively by 12.9% and 12.2%, resulting in the
to decrease of the medical income of the member hospitals
as well as their contributed profits to the Group. Please
refer to the section headed “Business Review — COVID-19
Outbreak” of this report for further details of the Group's
measures to COVID-19 epidemic and the corresponding
analysis.

to about

2020F B EB D EMBEEFTHABARKEAL52
B REFRLTHRA31.7% TEHR
HEHAREENKEEBR2EAXZIFE
FREREVE  HRBERBERARKRMZ
RABITBET129%%112.2% » HEBH KB
BRKWA TR EHEHANEBEHFEER
HETHA ERAEBEETTRSEEN
BREAN - FBERARS [ EKOE —
ERESREIED -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

As the corresponding constitutional documents of the
hospitals have been amended, results of Huaikuang Hospital
and the Run Neng Hospitals have been consolidated to the
Group since May and June 2020, respectively. Please find
more details in the section headed “Business Review —
Consolidating Certain Hospitals” of this report. According to
the abovementioned changes in the consolidation
arrangement statements, during the
Reporting Period, our financial results have been classified
in three segments which are Consolidated Hospitals,

Unconsolidated Hospitals and 10T/OT Hospitals.

in our financial

During the Reporting Period, the medical business revenue
of the consolidated hospital segment increased by 127.9%
year-on-year to approximately RMB1.644 billion, and the
segment
approximately RMB128 million, which is mainly due to the
satisfactory recovery of the operation of the Huaikuang
Hospital Group and Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital especially in the
second half of 2020.

results recorded an increase of 2.9% to

EEENWETAN

HEERZIZMER] - EREBH M B R
Bt 29 B 202045 At F16 A {7 Fta # A A
SENHREE FERAARSXHKEE
— HR—FRINBRIE D - RENA LOHE
LHARE BEHRADMRERBHRE
Bt~ EDFRERMIOT/OTER SR ©

WEBRA - HRERDINEEREBHBKRAR
LR R127.9% EHNAR®E16.44187C - ©
FEEESRLLIBR29%EH ARK1.28E
T FERHEREREBREBEMEREAE
bt (FRIRTHF)EIEEBRARL - ¥4
18R 7 & ©

—ETFR
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWES N

Since Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital has completed its for-profit
reform during the Reporting Period, its financial statements
have been consolidated into the Group's condensed financial
statements since April 2020. Its contribution in respect of
medical business revenue was RMB191 million. In addition,
the financial results of the Huaikang Hospital Group and the
Run Neng Hospitals have also been consolidated to the
Group respectively since May and June 2020, which

respectively contributed RMB510 million and RMB328
million in terms of revenue of medical services during the
Reporting Period.

EEEAERERHREEATR T & 1R
# o M E B SRR B2020F 4 A AN
SEAHMBEHREAN ZRBRNGEEE
RIS WA B ARE191ETT - BN FHER
B S BEAHERERED 5 5IR 20205 A
MeARMBMAREE I REE - REHA
BRERGEEBERBEBAS B AARKES10
BT M ARSI 281ETT ©

2020 2019  Year-on-Year Change
20204 20194 A bt 284k
Consolidated Hospitals HERB RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 Percentage
ARETT ARBTT AR®TTT B

Revenue from medical BREBKRA

business 1,643,620 721,055 922,565 127.9%
General healthcare services #34 &R

performance 72,271 64,033 8,238 12.9%
Third-party supply chain E=HHERE

service fees k7% & 31,076 23,077 7,999 34.7%
GPO gross profit GPOEF| 38,485 41,155 (2,670) -6.5%
Profit contribution FEEREE 141,832 128,265 13,567 10.6%
Profit contribution rate FMEERIE 8.6% 17.8% -9.2ppt
Operating expenses and BEERAREM

other profit or loss B (13,464) (3,554) (9,910) 278.8%
Segment results o EBEE 128,368 124,711 3,657 2.9%
Segment profit margin 2 B F = 7.8% 17.3% -9.5ppt
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

EEENWETAN

]

Segment Results — Unconsolidated DEBEE — FEHRER
Hospitals

During the Reporting Period, the overall medical business $R&EHIRN @ JEHFRER D AN EEEE LS
revenue of the unconsolidated hospital segment decreased U ARILL TB#32.6% B4 A REE23.441E7T -
by 32.6% year-on-year to approximately RMB2.344 billion, /UB%IJ/F'ﬁﬁIJﬁ- BRI T4 7% EH AR
while segment profit recorded a year-on-year decrease of 1.3118J0 TEHRRN AR EREREH
45.7% to approximately RMB131 million, mainly attributable 184 ? SR E AR R L RBAR
to above-mentioned changes in the consolidation FHEFESEBER2020FF—=E AHEHER
arrangement of the Huaikuang Hospital Group and the Run " EIF £ -

Neng Hospitals during the Reporting Period, and also the

impact of COVID-19 outbreak on the corresponding hospitals

in the first quarter of 2020.

Nevertheless, Wugang Hospital and Wuhan Iron and Steel 24 - BRI FRZME (£E) RRIF =
(Group) Corporation No. 2 Staff Hospital received donations B T B&F 5 ¥k 45 2 R (R /% 15 /& 18 B I BT 4
and government subsidies which to some extent has offset Bhff —FEI2E HHE T A FIBE T ANTE -
the impact of the decrease in the segment results.

2020 2019  Year-on-Year Change
Unconsolidated 20204 20194 Cilsd-Xld

Hospitals EHF R EB RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 Percentage
ARBTT ARETRT ARETT BAL

Revenue from medical BEEKKA

business 2,343,886 3,478,554 (1,134,668) -32.6%
Hospital management B EEREE

services fees 47,889 134,029 (86,140) —64.3%
Third-party supply chain FE-HHESE

service fees BR 7% & 77,607 100,164 (22,557) —22.5%
GPO gross profit GPOER| 17,608 19,365 (1,757) -9.1%
Profit contribution MBEMES 143,104 253,558 (110,454) -43.6%
Profit contribution rate FEE R = 6.1% 7.3% -1.2ppt
Operating expenses and EEEBEAREM

other profit or loss B (12,131) (12,452) 321 -2.6%
Segment results P EELE 130,973 241,106 (110,133) -45.7%
Segment profit margin 2 B FI = 5.6% 6.9% —1.3ppt

Segment Results — IOT/OT Hospitals DEREE — IOT/OTER:

The revenue from medical business of the I0T/OT hospital  IOT/OTER » AR EHRMEZ XK A
segment remains at a similar level when compared with the #&AI —FEREFF > MmO ILELER L T 7
prior year, while this segment recorded a YoY decrease of 31.7% °

31.7% in its results.

FERBEERERLAT —T T
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

CR Hospital Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the restructuring agreement with
Jing Mei Group in respect of Jing Mei Hospital and its
branches during the Reporting Period, and pursuant to which
CR Hospital Holdings and Jing Mei Group agreed to
establish a sponsorship joint venture and a management
joint venture. Such joint ventures shall be owned as to 49%
by CR Hospital Holdings and 51% by Jing Mei Group. The
contract parties also agreed that Jing Mei Group, the
management joint venture and Jing Mei Hospital shall enter
into a new OT agreement on terms similar to the original
IOT agreement in order to replace the latter, and pursuant
to which the management joint venture shall provide
hospital management services to the Jing Mei Hospital
Group and receive management fee income accordingly. The
abovementioned original 10T agreement shall then be
terminated with retrospective effect from December 31,
2019, whilst the new OT agreement shall retrospectively
become effective on January 1, 2020. For further details of
the restructuring agreement of Jing Mei Hospital, please
refer to the section headed “Other information —
Restructuring Agreement of Jing Mei Hospital” to this

report. Based on the abovementioned arrangement, during
the Reporting Period, the results of our sponsorship joint
venture and management joint venture with Jing Mei Group
which are attributable to the Group have been recorded in
the 10T/OT Hospitals Segment.

WEMA AEETBEBZ2EWBARERHERE
PR E R EEEL R HEER X TB DR
E%ﬁzﬂ# S E T B BRHEFRER
FEHBRIERMRESEE D RIFRA9% M
51%mtt1§uﬁ}zj BRRENRMEEEE

~Al e MIRBREARZE  STOFTRERES
B AEEBREARREERALBEAIOT
Tﬁz’;mﬁfﬂm RNEGIFOTHE - KBS
BEERENRAREERIREER TR
WEREEEBWZD  RIOTHEEBPE 2019
F12A3TBRKRIE - RIBBEHFOOTHHEEE
WE2020F 1 A1 HBERK © ﬁﬁab_ﬁ-ﬁg
rEABE L FERAREEMER — R
e EHR G ZE] & D o AR EMATHE - ]
SHRNERKEEEKR L G ERRERRR
EEBERATNEREBASENKEEE
IOT/OTEFE D &P R & o

2020 2019 Year-on-Year Change
20204 20194 [l £ 24
|OT/OT hospitals IOT/OT &P RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  Percentage
ARBTT AREFTT AR®TE BAL

Revenue from medical BEREEKKA

business 2,656,346 2,669,194 (12,848) -0.5%
Hospital management BB BERBEE

services fees 65,058 98,600 (33,542) -34.0%
Third-party supply chain = HhREdE

service fees REE 71,603 91,610 (20,007) -21.8%
GPO gross profit GPOEFI 127,456 142,572 (15,116) -10.6%
Profit contribution AEEBEF 264,117 332,782 (68,665) -20.6%
Profit contribution rate FMEERRE 9.9% 12.5% —2.5ppt
Operating expenses and other B2 & H M EH A

profit or loss B (72,747) (52,553) (20,194) 38.4%
Segment results DEEE 191,370 280,229 (88,859) -31.7%
Segment profit margin 2 &R F R 7.2% 10.5% -3.3ppt

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

During the year, the segment results of the other derived
businesses of the Group was approximately RMBO0.836
million. It was about 94.5% lower than RMB15.07 million in
the previous year. Such decrease was mainly due to the
significant reduction in business scale of consultation
business, physician companies and clinic network due to the
impact of COVID-19 epidemic.

The total operating expenses of the headquarters amounted
to approximately RMB122 million in 2020 (FY2019: RMB139
million), accounting for 37.7% of the total administrative
expenses of the Group (FY2019: 58.4%) and such a
decrease was mainly due to implementation of new
government policies which reduce the cost of social security
fee as well as our intent reduction of operating expenses
during the epidemic.

During the Reporting Period, other profit or loss of the
Group totaled approximately RMB104 million (FY2019:
RMB31.18 million), and such an increase was mainly due to
the foreign exchange gain as well as the increase in our
interest income of the bank deposit.

During the Reporting Period, the unallocated finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB14.95 million
(FY2019: RMB16.94 million), which was mainly due to the
decrease in interest rate of our loan.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax
expenses amounted to RMB97.86 million (FY2019: RMB141
million). The effective income tax rate of the Group’s
recurring business was 23.4% (FY2019: 26.0%).

The performance of the Group’s hospitals during the
Reporting Period was affected by the COVID-19 epidemic.
The Group recorded a net profit of RMB320 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
20.0%. However, the impact of the epidemic on the
business of the Group is temporary.

EEENWETAN

FRREEZHMITEEB I HBFEOAEA
R#83.68BT  r KAl —FEMARKE1,5078
T N T945%  TERAAHAEKNE
% BESENZHEBSITEREBEFER
&K 08 48R ©

20205 - M ELEREGHNARK1.22(8
T (20198 R EE « ARKE1.39187T) » (A
SE2HITHERBEMI7.7% (201981 K
FE:584%) AR ETERHMTRRE
BEBERBEATIRA TR LR ERBES
ERBEKATE -

HREHAN - AEBZHEMIBEAFOARE
1.04B L (2019 L F E - AR¥3,1188
JO)REMIE R F ZRNER RS ERNE
HU s RRITE U ES1E 0 -

WMER > KREBZADERHEEAAH
ARUET,4958 T (20190 K EE : AR
1,694870) TERHANERFIETARTE -

WMEHAN AEBZAEHRERAARE
9,786 8B L (2019 L F ¥ : AR ¥1.4118
L) AEBKEEEBNBRAEHRE
523.4% (20198 UFE : 26.0%) °

AEEETEREREANNEERRZE
TERESRBENTE  ASEEESFNE
ARMEZ. 20187 B TFE#I20.0% ° MR
BERAEEXEBNTETBERE R -

—ETFR
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWED N

Pursuant to International Accounting Standards 38, an RIEBIEESIERIFE38H - KY B HEBERA
intangible asset shall be regarded by the entity as having an ZEETONE - WZEEABTEREAFR
indefinite useful life when based on an analysis of all of the &R AZEAERA I ATETAERR » BItRZ
relevant factors, and there is no foreseeable limit to the HEFEEHERM=ABERRNEAE -
period over which the asset is expected to generate net

cash inflows for the entity.

The Group has considered the following factors and ZAEEDZENIIEEZ  WALESHAEH
concluded that the Group has the ability to renew the IGREHFBRPMESEGBEERER - £
service contracts of Xukuang Hospital Group, Huaibei City — m#&E#R (0 IR) B4 RO K& = USR8 BT 89 AR
Mental Health Center and 999 Brain Hospital (“Service &R ([REAE] @ M2k A EEER
Contracts”, and each of the hospitals, the “Sponsored #EEPFx|) @ B RELREAERDEAK
Hospital”) through the sponsorship rights, and it is SBEZEBERFEHFHNEFLEETIENR
appropriate to classify the sponsorship rights and service & :

contracts as the intangible assets of the Group of infinite

useful life:

1. The sponsors of the Sponsored Hospitals are 1. iERASERIESEFTARIA AARE B
subsidiaries of the Group; IE=NGIE

ol

2. The rights and obligations of the sponsors as stipulated 2. &R PERITRSZIZ4NEI5TRAE I

in the articles of associations of each Sponsored ARER R ET - B E()ISHEE
Hospitals include, among others, (i) access to the BB CER R R BERS ¢ (i)
operation status and financial reports of the Sponsored BHNTEZEGNE  r MPITZEELAM
Hospitals, (ii) recommending members to the executive ARPEERNRREIEE &

committee which is the highest authority of the
Sponsored Hospitals; and

3. According to the articles of association of Xukuang 3. 1RIB1GTEEEETEEE - FERIZERT DA M Bt 8

Hospital Group, 999 Brain Hospital and also Wugang BN ERMA - BRESEWNIITEZE
Hospital, their respective executive committee BIE3HHBMAKBNKE 1584
comprises three members recommended by the EEEBHAOKEB M1 BETHEBERT
sponsor, one member elected by the employees and FEFEMXE - FITZESU U
one member who is the chairman of the labor union of TEZBEGRZUFRAMENHBEARARR
the relevant hospital. Executive committee has the EEREER -

absolute right in renewal of the Service Contracts with
the relevant resolution to be approved by simple
majority vote of the executive committee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

Management of the Company performed
reviews of sponsorship

impairment
rights, service contracts and
goodwill annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicated a potential impairment. The
recoverable amounts of the abovementioned sponsorship
rights,

based on the fair value under income approach less costs of

service contracts and goodwill were determined
disposal. These calculations required the use of estimates
and professional and management of the
Company involved an external valuer in these calculations.

judgements,

Based on the management’'s assessment, no impairment
was required on the abovementioned sponsorship rights and
service contracts and goodwill as at December 31, 2020.

UMP Healthcare Holdings, listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange (Stock code 722.HK),
engaging in providing healthcare solutions and service in
Hong Kong. Details of investment in UMP Healthcare
Holdings have been disclosed in the Company’s annual

is continuously

reports in prior years. Pursuant to the relevant accounting
standards, the Company has categorized the investment in
UMP Healthcare Holdings as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. As at December 31, 2020, the fair
value of our investment in UMP Healthcare Holdings was
approximately RMB92.72 million.

Save for the -capital requirements in respect of the
involvement in the reform of Jing Mei Hospital Group and
the acquisition of Huaiyin Hospital (which will be funded by
the internal resources and bank borrowings of the Group),
the Directors confirmed that, as at the date of this
announcement, there are currently no concrete plans to
acquire any material investment or capital assets other than

those conducted in the Group’s ordinary course of business.

EEENWETAN

RARARIEEEHRNE RECRAREEE
TRESRE  —MMEE8FET MEEM
EHRIER B REEBUBERNRERS
MEBEEGEBEMMETT - FuliSEBE RS
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWES N

Starting from 2021, the first year of the “14th Five-Year
Plan” of development of the country, we will focus on our
core business in provision of medical whilst
continue to strengthen our advantageous specialties and
transforming certain institutes to specialty chain clusters at
the same time. In terms of our business development, we
will take specialty chain hospitals and general hospitals as

services,

our two wings, and geographically we will focus on the
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the Yangtze River Delta, the
Greater Bay Area, and also certain key cities in China, and
make use of the energy of capital market and our highly
commercialized operation as the strong motors in building
our development model which linked up the medical service
business and the capital operations. In respect of our
specialty development, we will continue to implement the
strategic policy of strengthening clinical practice, incubating
chain hospitals, and shaping our brand, leveraging the
advantages of CR Medical's advantageous disciplines, and by
integrating existing hospitals and expanding
hospitals to cultivate six discipline clusters covering
cardiovascular, encephalopathy, orthopedics, rehabilitation,
gastroenterology and oncology in order to strengthen our
core competitive advantages and our brand name in these
disciplines. Regarding our general hospitals, our strategy is
the transformation to the status of “major specialties and
strong general practice”, and continue to improve specialties
based on the existing advantageous ones, further enhance
the operation system of our general hospitals and improve
the operation efficiency. CR Medical will continue to uphold
the enterprise mission of “benefit all with benevolence and
competence”,
competent medical group in China.

incremental

and aim at becoming a renowned and

We adopt a prudent treasury management policy to maintain
a solid and healthy financial position. The Group funds its
operations principally from cash generated from its
operations and also bank facilities. Its cash requirements
relate primarily to operating activities, business expansion,
repayment of liabilities as they become due, capital
expenditures, interest and dividend payments.

2021 FRI+HREIFABRZF - RAGERIA
BERBAEIER BEMREZER - LA
BMEMNEHERHEUNBEREM - EXBEH
BmE - R AZERHEHEB R RS B
RER - EE ERRHREE S K=/
RNEE WHREEHNHE  BEENEL
T 535 58 5| E AR 2 B R E E A
ERELRUERMANEREN - EERER
JTE RPITSAEERCERIRRE S - BEE
HEMEXR RIEEEEMmE  HEEEE
BERANERHMES - RIS A AINERM A LR
BERBEOLMEM KE - 58 RE
B OBERI MR RN K BRI RE - o1t
BLOBFEYE TEEFHBEREZENM
fE o HERA BB E T E - A IR
EIRER BFE I NEREE  URAE
DEMRER  HEWREEN  REEESE
RELRAAURFELNE - EFHERGHE
BRATCOLCH - RERTINEEED
RARZERE BA—RNBREREKE -

KPR BEEEE BB AERFR 2K
AR NREEXTBEBLEELEZES MR
TRERZERHES - AKEREFTRE
BHLEEY XHAR EEINHAG -
BAXH - MERBEBIKMNAR -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s consolidated bank
balances and cash, certificate of deposit and bank financial
products amounted to approximately RMB3.09 billion in total
(December 31, 2019: approximately RMB2.276 billion) which
were primarily in RMB.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group has obtained offshore
loan facility of HK$3.8 billion (or its
equivalent in U.S. dollar or Renminbi). Among which, HK$3

revolving term

billion of the facilities is with no fixed term until further
notice by the corresponding bank, whilst the remaining
HK$800 million is of the term of one year which shall be
automatically renewed if the relevant bank does not notify
otherwise. In addition, a consolidated hospital of the Group
has also obtained from a bank in mainland a one-year loan
facility of RMB15 million. As at December 31, 2020, the
Group had interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$799
million and RMB12 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB684 million) 2019: HK$646 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB578 million)), and unutilized
bank facilities of HK$3.001 billion and RMB3 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB2.529 billion). As at
December 31, 2020, the Group's offshore bank borrowings
carried interests at floating rates whilst its onshore bank
rate of 2.9% per
annum, and all of them would be due within one year. As at

(December 31,

borrowings carried interests at fixed
December 31, 2020, the Group’'s amounts payable to the
sponsored hospitals of the Group amounted to RMB218
million (December 31, 2019: RMB256 million).

As at December 31, 2020, on the basis of interest-bearing
liabilities (excluding payables to hospitals sponsored by the
Group) divided by total assets, the Group’s gearing ratio
was 7.6% (December 31, 2019: 7.3%). In addition, the
carrying value of each of our wealth management products
as at December 31, 2020 did not exceed 5% of the Group’s
total asset value.

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in
foreign currencies, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk, mainly pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in
the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against RMB.

EEENWETAN

M2020F12A31H - A& B & RIT4 &%
kIRE  FRELRBITEVERATEAR
B AR ®30.9187T (2019512 H318 : 4
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B E£2020F 128318 ZEBEREIINER
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> MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWES N

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management
risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considers

manages the currency

hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
should such need arise.

We are also exposed to risk of talent shortage, so we have
been taking an active approach to attract, train and retain
sufficient qualified doctors, management personnel and other
medical staff members, otherwise the business of hospitals
affiliated to the Group would be affected to some degree.
Please refer to the paragraph headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Employees and Remuneration

Policy” for those measures mentioned above.

We also recognise that our relationship with patients and
partners is key to the resilient development of the Group.
We strive to provide qualified services and medical staffs
with extensive experiences to our patients. By leveraging on
sophisticated medical skills and equipment, we try our best
to cater to our patients’ needs for medical treatments. We
also cooperate with our partners to achieve the sustainable
development of our business.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group did not have any
contingent guarantees that would have a
material impact on the financial position or operations of the
Group.

liabilities or

As of December 31, 2020, the Group did not have any
material pledge of assets.

Hubei Runkang (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co., Ltd. (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Land) entered into a
hospital management agreement on March 12, 2021 and
pursuant to which Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co., Ltd. (as
the principal) shall appoint Hubei Runkang as the manager to
provide comprehensive operation and management services
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for its Yuenianhua Nanning Rehabilitation Hospital located in

Nanning City of Guangxi Province which include the
introduction of management and operation systems, building
management team of the hospital, and the introduction of
various resources such as hospital brand and medical
technology by Hubei Runkang. Hubei Runkang shall receive
service fee from Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co., Ltd.
(during the preparation period) or the hospital (starting from
official opening of the hospital) for provision of various
management services under the hospital management
agreement. The term of such agreement shall commence
up to December 31, 2023; and this arrangement constitutes
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated March
12, 2021 for further

transaction.

details of the abovementioned

On March 28, 2021, JH Management (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the buyer) entered into a
share purchase agreement with Renfang Medical Holdings
Ltd. and Sinophi Healthcare Limited (as the sellers), the
shareholders of Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd. and Sinophi
China Hospitals Limited (i.e. the target company). Pursuant
to such share purchase agreement, JH Management
conditionally agreed to acquire and the sellers conditionally
agreed to dispose of approximately 99.19% shareholding
interest in the target company at the consideration of
RMB882,767,635.96. As at the date of this report, the
target company is indirectly holding 80% equity interest in
Huaiyin Hospital, and the latter is a for-profit general
hospital located in Huai'an City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
with the scale of around 1,190 operating beds. Among the
sellers, Sinophi Healthcare Limited is an investment holding
company owned by a number of shareholders who are
natural persons, whilst Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd. is an
investment holding company owned by NHPEA |V Health
Holding B.V., Sun Moral (HK) Limited and
Euromax Holdings Limited (together, the "Selling
Shareholders”). Among the Selling Shareholders, Sun Moral
International (HK) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of a
listed company with shares listed on the mainboard of the

International
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Stock Exchange, Euromax Holdings Limited is wholly-owned
by the controlling shareholder and executive director of such
listed company, while NHPEA |V Health Holding B.V. is
indirectly controlled by North Haven Private Equity Asia IV,
L.P., a fund managed by the private equity arm of Morgan
Stanley which is a registered investment fund with wide
investor base. The acquisition contemplated under such
share purchase agreement constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company. the
announcement of the Company dated March 28, 2021 for

Please refer to

further details of the abovementioned acquisition.

As of December 31, 2020, the Group had a total of 4,903
fulltime employees (December 31, 2019: 1,178 employees).
For FY2020, the staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration
in the form of salaries and other benefits) was
approximately RMB685 million (FY2019: RMB355 million).
The
corresponding staff cost was mainly due to the acquisition
and/or consolidation of certain hospitals during the year.

increase in number of staff as well as the

The Group ensured that the remuneration packages of
employees remain competitive and the remuneration level of
its employees was determined on the basis of performance
with reference to the profitability of the Group, industry
remuneration standards and market conditions within the
general framework of the Group's remuneration system. The
Group has also adopted the Share Option Scheme and the
Share Award Scheme so as to provide incentives or rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

On June 28, 2020, CR Hospital Holdings, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the restructuring
agreement with Jing Mei Group which officially finalized the
shareholding structure and cooperation model of the joint
investment and development of the Jing Mei Hospital Group
by the contract parties. The arrangements are set out as
follows: (1) establishing a sponsorship joint venture: CR
Hospital Holdings and Jing Mei Group shall establish a
sponsorship joint venture, and the registered capital of
which shall then be subsequently increased by Jing Mei
Group by way of injecting its entire interest in the Jing Mei

Equity Asia IV, L.P.EEEH (ZE2A—HE
BEEZHREEEMEKEAMMNEBREER
o )IRBEZREWBHEZEEORERENX
KRR —HATERRS - il CFHE
HRARNBIR2021FEIA28HEHARNE -

202012 A31H - NEEA H£#EH4,903
2B EE (2019128318 : 1,178% &
8) c R2020F MR EE - BERAN (BIEH
S REMEFMEANESHH OAARK
6.8518 7L (2019F B F & : ARSI 65(E
7T) © B B ABURARBER A N T AR F A
W KSR L REFTFTE -

AEBEREEFMEN T RAERHF
N EENFHBKF KL ELREERNE
1~ RAITREFKFE RHISRERNALE
B —REFMEERBANETHERREE -
AREEIRE RN AT 8 K A i 22 BT &l
ImAaBER2RERE/RRE R LEAE
Tf B A RIE B B B AT RE(E VB R 1R
R EZEh sk [ml ¥ -

EHERER (A TBZE2EWBEAR)
B EEBEMN2020F6 A28H %:] T EAH
Z EREEIN IR AR EREBFAES
BEHEMRBEEERAEER  HENTH
R (KA BERERR : HEHER
TREFREEERN LA ERBERT  EK
VEERREEEIAREANTIEERSE
B2 ERAEILE - FRFEBBRIERA
NReRE(ZEPERNBRERZEESSRE
THEBARKIET) - ERBRIZER LK
SEHDRFEEERIERTL9% K51%

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <

Hospital Group, and by CR Hospital Holdings in cash (with
the maximum capital contributions in the amount of not
more than RMB900 million from CR Hospital Holdings). The
sponsorship joint venture shall be owned as to 49% by CR
Hospital Holdings and 51% by Jing Mei Group; (2)
establishing a management joint venture: CR Hospital
Holdings and Jing Mei establish also a
registered capital
subsequently contributed by CR Hospital Holdings and Jing
Mei Group in cash. The management joint venture shall be
owned as to 49% by CR Hospital Holdings and 51% by
Jing Mei Group; and (3) management arrangements of the
Jing Mei Hospital Group: Jing Mei Group, the management

Group shall

management joint venture with its

joint venture and Jing Mei Hospital shall enter into a new
OT agreement on terms similar to the original 0T
agreement in order to replace the latter, and pursuant to
which the management joint venture shall provide hospital
management services to the Jing Mei Hospital Group and
receive management fee income accordingly. The
abovementioned original then be
terminated with retrospective effect from December 31,

2019, whilst the new OT agreement shall retrospectively

|IOT agreement shall

become effective on January 1, 2020 and shall be effective
for the duration of the management joint venture. Entering
into the mentioned restructuring agreement aims at fully
exploring the respective advantages of Jing Mei Group and
the Group in jointly participating
restructuring of the Jing Mei Hospital Group, and further

in the reform and
introducing development funds, medical and management
resources to the Jing Mei Hospital Group, so as to improve
its management and operational mechanism. The
cooperation model under this restructuring agreement is a
further step compared with the existing IOT model, with
reform and cooperation being extended to asset level.
Please refer the announcement published by the Company

on June 28, 2020 for further details.

On December 30, 2020, CR Hospital
Consulting (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into a joint-development of hospital agreement with
Shandong Yantai Zhifu Health Bureau and Yantai Zhifu
Hospital, pursuant to which the Group will provide operation
and management services to Yantai Zhifu Hospital and
accordingly receive services fee income for a cooperation
term of 20 years.

Management &
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2020.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is mainly engaged in the provision of general healthcare
services, hospital management services, group purchasing
organisation (i.e. “GPQO")
business from hospitals in Mainland China. Details of the
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out

business and other derived

in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties being faced by the
Group, as well as the business outlook of the Group
(including key performance indicators of future development
of the Group) are provided in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 29 of this annual report.
Relevant discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance for
the year ended December 31, 2020 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the paragraph headed “Segment Results” under the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
17 to 21 and in the paragraph headed “Financial Review”
under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 24 to 26 of this annual report.

Significant events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the Reporting Period and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report, if any, are set out in the paragraph
headed “Subsequent Events” on pages 26 and 28 of this
annual report.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes the
stewardship. In this
connection, the Group has strictly adopted and implemented
policies and procedures to conduct environmental protection

importance of good environmental

work on a standard which is not less stringent than the
prevailing environmental laws and regulations of the PRC.
We believe that we were in compliance with all relevant
PRC laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
in all material respects during the year ended December 31,
2020 and as at the date of this Directors’ No
environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative
sanctions were reported to our management.

Report.

The Group has formulated the “Hazardous Substances
Safety Management Plan” ((EEWEZ 2 EE512])) and the
“Medical Waste Management System” ((EEZEEEYE 12§
J€)) for all hospitals according to the relevant requirements
of the "“Environmental Protection Law of the People's
Republic of China” ((FZEARHMEIIRIF(REE)). The above
systems focus on the management of hazardous substances
(containing hazardous chemicals and medical
including storage location, container labelling, protection,

waste),

leakage handling and disposal in use. Hospitals conduct
supervisions and inspections mainly on storage and labelling
on hazardous chemicals and conclude the analysis results on
a quarterly basis. As required by the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation” ({1 Z A R 4LH0
B &4 & JR)%)), the Group formulated the “Optimization
System of Resource Decision” ((ERAFRERFIE)), which
focuses on the management of resource decision-making
process and specifies the requirements on the quality,
reasonable allocation and use of newly procured resources.
The Group monitors the outcome of such decision upon its
implementation, and assesses the effectiveness and safety
by using relevant information and makes further decision so
as to ensure the effective implementation of the above
policies.
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Meanwhile, the Group has formulated the “Utilities Safety
Management Plan” ({(RR&EELEE R E])), “Safety and
Protection Management Plan” ((Z2#EETE])) and
“Medical Technology Safety Management Plan” (& & : i
ZEE B3 28l)), and passed the “Facility Safety
Management Plan” (&L 2EETE])) to ensure the
effective implementation of the above plans. The Group has
formulated the “Radiation Safety Management Plan” ({H &}
Z2E1E51El)) and “Radiation Emergency Plan” (#8517 fE =
F82)) for all hospitals, which focuses on the management
of radiation safety and specifies the requirements on all
radiation equipment, protection and radiation-related waste
treatment. Every year, qualified testing and rating agencies
are engaged to monitor the radiation level of all radiological
equipment and workplaces in the hospitals. Moreover, the
hospitals carry out drills against radiation accidents and
evaluate and conclude the responsiveness.

Details of the Group’s environmental, social and governance
be covered in the Group’s annual
sustainability report, which will be published no later than
three months after the publication of this annual report, on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

measures will

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief as at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group is committed to operating in a sustainable
manner while balancing the interests of our
stakeholders including our Substantial Shareholders,
employees, patients, customers, suppliers, business partners

and the community.

various

An account of the Group's relationship with its Substantial
Shareholders is included in the "Interests of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares” set out on pages 48 to 49 of this annual report.
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The Group considers its employees as the key to
sustainable business growth. We are committed to providing
employees a safe and harassment-free working

environment with equal

all
opportunities in relation to
employment, remuneration management, training and career
development. incorporated

Corporate Responsibility Policy and Employment Policy.

This commitment is in our
Workplace safety is a priority of the Group that, with due
awareness of all employees throughout the year, the Group
was able to maintain a high standard of health and safety
measures in all company activities. We have in place a fair
and effective performance appraisal system and incentive
bonus schemes that are designed to motivate and reward
employees at all levels, which helps to deliver their best
performance and achieve business performance targets. For
talent acquisition and continuous development, the Group
offers training programs as well as leadership and talent
development programs for talents with different academic
backgrounds. The Group believes that direct and effective
communication is essential for good partnership built-up
between management and employees. The Group holds
regular
Company developments and obtain their feedbacks and

meetings and forums to brief employees on
suggestions.
As a patient-oriented healthcare services provider,

patients as one of the most important
stakeholders. We are committed to serving our patients to

we
consider

the best of our ability and continually enhancing the level of
service excellence. The Group has embraced new media
platforms as an effective communication channel with our
patients to collect feedbacks and help us identify areas for
further improvement.

The Group is committed to upholding the highest ethical and
professional standards when dealing with suppliers and
contractors. To integrate CSR principles throughout our GPO
business, the Group has implemented the Group Purchasing
Policy and Principles, and a Supplier Code of Conduct to
facilitate a common means whereby we can better
communicate with our business partners regarding their
compliance with local regulations governing labor, health and
safety, and the environment. In order to have a better and
close monitoring of supplier performance, our procurement
department conduct supplier performance review annually
targeting our major suppliers and contractors, and will
communicate with the suppliers that have unsatisfactory
rating for rectification or improvements.
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Results and Final Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income on pages 101 to 102 of this annual report.

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of 8.82 HK
cents (equivalent to approximately RMB7.4 cents) per Share
for FY2020 (FY2019: final dividend: 10 HK cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB9.0 cents)). The proposed final
dividend will be payable to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, June 11, 2021. Based on the number of Shares in
issue of the Company as of December 31, 2020, the total
amount of final dividends is approximately HK$114 million.
Subject to the approval by Shareholders at the annual
general meeting to be held on Thursday, June 3, 2021, it is
expected that the final dividend will be distributed on or
before Wednesday, June 23, 2021.

The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

Dividend Policy

According to the dividend policy of the Group, subject to
compliance with applicable rules and regulations (including
Cayman Islands laws) and the articles of association of the
Company, pay dividend to the
Shareholders when the Group recorded net profit during the
period and payment of dividend would not affect its normal
operation. The Company intends to share its profits with
in the form of annual dividend and the
be used for the Group's

the Company will

Shareholders
remaining net profits will
development and operations.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the general financial condition of the
Group, the Group's current and future operations, liquidity
position and capital requirement of the Group as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries. The
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws and articles
of association of the Company.
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The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from time
to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will
be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 105
and 106 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or
Shareholders subject to the provisions of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

dividends to

As at December 31, 2020, the Company’'s share premium
amounted to RMB5,877,796,000 (as at December 31, 2019:
RMB5,992,888,000), subject to a solvency test, is available
for distribution to the Shareholders.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year ended December 31, 2020 are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five

financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 260 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.
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Borrowings

Details of the borrowings of the Group for the year ended
2020 are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

December 31,

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended December 31,
2020.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended December 31, 2020, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 24.2% (2019: 44.0%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer accounted for
approximately 13.2% (2019: 19.6%) of the total sales.
Purchases from the Group’'s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 19.5% (2019: 20.9%)
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 5.9% (2019:
8.1%) of the total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the
Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any direct or indirect interest in
the five largest customers or the five largest suppliers of
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

The articles of association of the Company provides that
every Director of the Company should be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director, in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favor, or in which
he is acquitted.

The Company maintains a directors’ liability insurance policy
against potential legal liabilities and related expenses that
may be incurred by the Directors in the event of any
litigation.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2020
and up to the date of this Directors’ Report are as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Yan

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President)

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with one another.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and
Senior Management and Disclosure of
Information of Directors Pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 83 to
92 of this annual report. Save as disclosed, there are no
other changes to the Directors’ information as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the service agreements/letters of appointment of
the Directors can be terminated by either party giving to the
other party not less than one month notice in writing.

Pursuant to the letters of appointment, each of Mr. Wu Ting
Yuk Anthony, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, Mr. Lee Kar Chung
Felix and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy is entitled to an annual
director’'s fee of HK$1,000,000, HK$500,000, RMB240,000
and HK$300,000, respectively.

None of our Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into or
intends to enter into a service contract with any member of
our Group which is not terminable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than the
statutory compensation).

Remuneration of the Directors and Five
Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group and remuneration
payable to members of senior management by band are set
out in notes 10 and 11
statements in this annual report.

to the consolidated financial
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The remuneration of the Directors is subject to review of
the Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board,
such remuneration is determined by taking into account of
the relevant Director’'s experience, responsibilities, workload
and time commitment to the Group and the operating
results of the Group and comparable market statistics.

Independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company believes that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Director’s Interests in Competing
Businesses

2020, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates had engaged in or owned any
interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group.

As of December 31,

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or its Associated Corporations

As of December 31, 2020, the interests/short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company in
the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:
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Long Positions in Shares of the
Company

Capacity/ Long position/

Name of Director Nature of interest short position

ESMA i/ 1k

Eas 1t E R KR

Wu Ting Yuk, Beneficial owner Long position
Anthony
HAETB EnEaA R
Song Qing Beneficial owner Long position
KRB EZEAA R
Cheng Libing Beneficial owner Long position
DAV EnEaA TR
Ren Yuan Beneficial owner Long position
(Ea~ EnEaA TR
Fu Yanjun Beneficial owner Long position
E=2 EZEAA TR

Note: This includes also the long positions of the Award Shares, which have been
declared to be granted by the Company to the corresponding Directors on
August 31, 2018 (the corresponding number of Award Shares are:
1,500,000 Shares to Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony; 400,000 Shares to each
of Mr. Song Qing and Mr. Cheng Libing; 300,000 Shares to each of Ms.
Ren Yuan and Ms. Fu Yanjun) and a portion of which has been vested.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2020, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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1,500,000 0.12
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has conditionally adopted the Share Option
Scheme as of September 30, 2013.

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
incentivize or reward the Eligible Participants (defined
below) for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

2. Eligible Participants

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, the Board
may grant options to any full-time or part-time
employees, consultants or potential employees,
consultants, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at its sole
discretion and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers who, in the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or will contribute to our
Group (collectively “Eligible Participants”).

3. Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from September 30, 2013,
after which time no further option will be granted but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force, and effective in all other respects
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any options granted prior thereto and other rights as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme and options granted prior
thereto but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.
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Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 83,376,300 Shares, being 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date (with the over-allotment option fully
exercised), which is also the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme as
at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted to any grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Share Option Scheme, in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant, shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for
options

An offer of a grant shall remain open for acceptance
by the Eligible Participant for a period of 14 days from
the date of offer, provided that no such offer shall be
open for acceptance after the expiry of the effective
period of the Share Option Scheme. An option shall be
deemed as has been granted to (subject to certain
restrictions in the Share Option Scheme), and accepted
by, the Eligible Participant (the “Grantee”) and taken
effect upon the issuance of an exercise notice, if the
Company receives a copy of the offer document
(including the document for the acceptance of share
option) duly signed by the grantee (the "Offer
Document”), together with a remittance in favor of our
Company in the amount of HK$1.00 in consideration
for the granting of the option on or before the last
date for acceptance. The remittance is not refundable
under any circumstances and shall be deemed as
payment of part of the exercise price. Once accepted,
the option is taken as granted from the date of offer
to the relevant Grantee.
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Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

There is no general requirement that an option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised. The period during which an option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Option Period”) shall be the
period of time to be notified by our Board to each
Grantee as determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that such period shall not exceed 10
years from the commencement date of the vesting
period as stated in the respective Grantee's Offer
Document.

Basis of determining the subscription
price

The price per share for subscription by a Grantee
pursuant to the exercise of share options (the
"Exercise Price”) shall be determined by the Board,
but in any event shall not be lower than the highest
of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date an option is offered (the "Offer
Date”);

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, no share

option had been granted, exercised, expired, cancelled

or lapsed and there is no outstanding share option

under the Share Option Scheme. The remaining life of
the Share Option Scheme is 2 years and 6 months.

7.
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Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme as a
means to
incentives for the key management personnel
Directors and senior management, employed experts and

recognise the contribution of and provide
including

core employees of the Group. The Share Award Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from July 7, 2014 (the "Adoption Date"”) on
which the Board adopted the Share Award Scheme and is
administrated by the Board and the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme.

In order to provide more flexibility in the administration and
implementation of the Share Award Scheme, the Board
resolved on May 25, 2015 to make amendments to the
terms of the Share Award Scheme and the scheme rules,
having retrospective effect from the Adoption Date, to the
effect that the Board may, from time to time, in its absolute
discretion, determine if the Award Shares shall be granted
to a Selected Participant with or without payment of a price
per Award Share payable by the Selected Participant (the
“Grant Price”) which shall be notified by the Board to each
Selected Participant. In determining whether the Selected
Participant shall pay a Grant Price for the Award Shares and
the amount of the Grant Price, as the case may be, the
Board shall take into consideration matters, including but not
limited to the Selected Participant’s position, experience,
performance and contribution to the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or associated entities.

years of service,
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The Board also resolved on August 31, 2018 to make
further amendments to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme to the effect that the maximum number of the
Award Shares, which have been and to be awarded by the
Board throughout the duration of the scheme, to be revised
to 5% of the total
Company as at the date of the abovementioned resolution

number of issued Shares of the
and the maximum number of the Award Shares to each of
the Selected Participants to be revised to 1% of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of the

abovementioned resolution.

The Board will implement the Share Award Scheme in
accordance with the scheme rules. The Company shall
comply with the relevant Listing Rules when granting the
Award Shares.

Since the Adoption Date of Share Award Scheme and up to
December 31, 2020, an aggregate of 32,212,216 Award
Shares have been granted pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme subject to certain vesting criteria and conditions.
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and
Other Persons in Shares and Underlying
Shares

As of December 31, 2019, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had or
were deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short
position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which would
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO and entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

Name of Shareholder

PR & 7

Capacity/Nature of interest

0/ fEmtE

China Resources Company Interest of a controlled

Limited corporation
hEEEARAA REAE R

Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Interest of a controlled

Group, Inc. corporation
“ZHBTREE XL R
L: Long position
Notes:
1. (1) 463,681,516 of these shares are directly held by CRH (Medical) Limited.

CRH (Medical) Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited. China Resources Healthcare Group Limited is wholly
owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited. CRH (Healthcare) Limited is wholly
owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited is wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited.
CRC Bluesky Limited is wholly owned by China Resources Inc., which is
wholly owned by China Resources Company Limited; (2) 10,638,000 of
these shares are directly held by Commotra Company Limited which is

wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.

2. Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. is the sole shareholder of Mitsubishi
UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation whilst the latter is directly holding the
entire shareholding interest in Carol Australia Holdings Pty Limited. Carol
Australia Holdings Pty Limited (via its wholly-owned subsidiary First State
Investment Managers (Asia) Limited) held the entire interest in First State
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited and the latter directly held 128,601,000

Shares (representing 9.92% of the issued shares of the Company).
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
BREEA B 2L
%

Number of
Shares held
HFERMEE

474,319,516(L)" 36.58
128,601,000(L)? 9.92
L3R
B3
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Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2020, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had an
interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Securities

Save as the details as set out in the paragraphs headed
"Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or its Associated Corporations”, “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme” in this Directors’
Report, at no time during the year ended December 31,
2020 has any right to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate been granted to Directors or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, and
none of any such right has been exercised by them; and
none of the Company and any of its subsidiaries has been a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their
respective spouse or children under the age of 18, to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Connected Transactions
Continuing Connected Transactions
CR PMM Framework Agreement

The Company and CR Holdings entered into the
pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables
supply framework agreement on November 7, 2019 (the
“CR PMM Framework Agreement”). Pursuant to the CR
PMM Framework Agreement, CR Holdings may, through its
subsidiaries, supply PMM items to the Group and its
sponsored hospitals from time to time. The Group and its
sponsored hospitals may place purchase orders for PMM
items with CR Holdings or its subsidiaries from time to time
and CR Holdings or its subsidiaries may sell the products to
the Group and its sponsored hospitals at a price in
accordance with the agreed pricing policy. The details of
each purchase order, including price, payment terms and
delivery arrangement, are to be separately agreed in
accordance with the principles laid down in the CR PMM
Framework Agreement. The annual caps for the purchase of
PMM items under the CR PMM Framework Agreement for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 and the two
financial years ending December 31, 2022 are RMB1.00
billion, RMB1.14 billion and RMB1.40 billion, respectively.
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, the amount of
the purchase orders under the New CR PMM Framework
Agreement paid/payable by the Group was RMB417 million.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder and a connected
person of the Company.

CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement and CR Trust
Strategic Cooperation Agreement

The Company and CR Bank entered into a strategic
(the “CR Bank Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”) on November 7, 2019. Pursuant
to the CR Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Group
and its sponsored hospitals may place deposits with CR

cooperation agreement

Bank and use other financial services and products of CR
Bank, including (but not limited to) the provision of letters of
credit, guarantee, loans with collaterals, bill of exchange and
discount services, assignment of receivables, RMB and
foreign exchange settlement, entrusted loans and collaterals,
financial and cash management services, financial advisory
services and other financial services and products as agreed
by the parties.

The Company and CR Trust entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement (the “CR Trust Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”) on November 7, 2019. Pursuant
to the CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the Group
and its sponsored hospitals may use the services and
products provided by CR Trust, including (but not limited to)
cash management, asset management, custodian trust loan
services, assignment of receivables, advisory services in
relation to redemptory monetary capital for sale, and other
financial or trust services and products as agreed by the
parties.
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The annual caps under CR Bank Strategic Cooperation 1&RBEERIRITERS A 15 M EE B ST 8BS
Agreement & CR Trust Strategic Cooperation Agreement for A 1EHZE FNE £20229F 128318 1t =@
the three financial years ending December 31, 2022 are set BEEEZFE FRFHNOT :

out as follows:

For the For the For the
year ended year ending year ending
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2020 2021 2022
B E2020F BE2021F B E2022F
12A31H 12A31H 12H318
(RMB million) (RMB million) (RMB million)
(AREBET) (AREBET) (AREBET)
Maximum daily deposit R ERBRIT 400 400 400
amount placed with NEBHERF
CR Bank (inclusive of ReB(BE
interest receivable) Mot JE W R B ) )
Maximum daily principal BHEEHERTR 400 400 400
amount and interest in ZREFTHT
relation to financial PAR €10 € Rt
products to be provided EmNEHAK
by CR Bank and CR mAEEER
Trust Motel F] & ()
Maximum service fees and  FEHRTT L EH 8 8 8
commissions for other Z5EH5 T LR
financial products and HEE SR
services to be provided &= m KRB H
by CR Bank and CR RaRB%ER
Trust ik

Note: The above maximum daily deposit amount or daily principal amount and 5 : LilSBHESGFRECBEXEBEACSBLEAEER

interest is applicable for each day during the relevant period, and is REBEENE—B YIRS ALRENGRESE —
calculated on an individual basis remaining as of the end of each day, E - BTHp—HAEENSEAHTE -

without aggregating the amount incurred on the days before.

In 2020, the actual highest amount of the Group and the 20204 @ A&EB NEMEIRET B FREH
Sponsored Hospitals' daily deposit balance (inclusive of (BIEEUWHE) MABEBETE FIREDN
interest receivable) and daily principal amount and interest in & RMEMMNERAS B LI TR RS S
relation to financial products to be provided by CR Bank X0 RlAAREI3IEILLARE156ME
amounted to RMB331 million and RMB156 million, 7T ° 20204 - BEAZERHBEITIRENEMES
respectively. In 2020, the service fees and commissions for RERMBREBHRESERALAE -

other financial products and services provided by CR Bank

were nil.

FERBERERERLAT —T _TFR
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In 2020, the Group and the Sponsored Hospitals did not
have any balance of financial products provided by CR Trust.
In 2020, the service fees and commissions for other
financial products and services provided by CR Trust were
nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Bank and CR are subsidiaries of CR Holdings,
therefore both of them are connected persons of the
Company.

CR Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement

The Company and CR Leasing entered into a cooperation
agreement on November 7, 2019 (the “Finance Lease
Cooperation Agreement”), and pursuant to which the
Group may use general finance lease services (“Finance
Lease Services”), factoring services and related consultancy
services (“Other Financial Services”) provided by CR
Leasing. The annual caps for certain services under the
Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement for the two financial
years ending December 31, 2022 are as follows:

For the

year ended
December 31,
2020

B E 20204
12A31H
(RMB million)

(ARBBE&ET)

The maximum aggregate MEHRERY
amount of the general Re R
finance lease services

Maximum commission and/ & & & R %
or service fees in relation HENRe
to general finance lease &/ SR
services

Maximum commission and/ ~ H b & &R
or service fees for HEnRe
factoring services and %/ R%E

related consultancy
services

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

20209 - AEB R BHER I EAIHE
BERRERNESRERDEER - 20205 -
EAZEHETARENEMSRE R RRBEH
REEBRAS AT -

FHEBRARR 2 ERKR - MEBRT
MEBEREREBEEE 2B R FHIMME
RARRZHEBEANL -

EBHEHESFln&

R2019F 1M A78 - AARIEEFHEER L
G ((MEHEESERSE]) MAERE
R FREFEEREN — R EHERS
((HERERE]) BEREREMABBERE
ARG (Rt @RS ]) - mEHESERH
EENER2022F12 A318 1F M A B4
ERBERFELRAT

For the For the

year ending year ending

December 31, December 31,

2021 2022

HZE2021F HZE2022F

12A31H 12A31H

(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ARBEHET) (ARBEHET)

200 200 200
13 13 13
28 28 28

Annual Report 2020



The commission and/or services fees to be paid by the
Company to CR Leasing in relation to the Finance Lease
Services and Other Financial Services to be provided under
the Finance Lease Cooperation Agreement should be
determined at arm’s length negotiation between the parties
with reference to the prevailing market prices for
comparable services, after taking into account various
factors, such as finance costs and normal market rate. Such
commission and/or services fees shall not be less favourable
than those offered for other independent customers by CR

Leasing.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, (i) the aggregate
amount of Finance Lease Services of RMB8 million was
utilised by the Group; (i) the commission and/or service
fees in relation to Finance Lease Services were nil; and (iii)
the commission and/or service fees in relation to Other
Financial Services were nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Leasing, as a subsidiary of CR Holdings, is therefore
a connected person of the Company.

Supply Chain Cooperation Framework Agreement

On September 17, 2020, the Company and CR
Pharmaceutical (“together with its subsidiaries, the "“CR
Pharmaceutical Group"”) entered
framework agreement (the “Supply Chain Cooperation
Framework Agreement”) and pursuant to which the Group
shall Group Supply Chain
Management Services of medical supplies in relation to
establishment of regional platforms and streamlining of
supply chain management procedures in order to improve
the efficiency of supply chain management of medical
supplies of CR Pharmaceutical Group and reduce the
corresponding costs. The Group shall receive management
Group for the

into the cooperation

provide CR Pharmaceutical

service fees from CR Pharmaceutical
abovementioned services.
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The annual caps under the Supply Chain Cooperation
Framework Agreement for the financial year ended

December 31, 2020 and the two financial years ending
2022 are RMB30 million, RMB50 million and

RMB70 million, respectively.

December 31,

2020, the amount of
management service fee income under the Supply Chain

For the year ended December 31,

Cooperation Framework Agreement receivable by the Group
was nil.

CR Holdings is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
and CR Pharmaceutical, as a subsidiary of CR Holdings, is
therefore a connected person of the Company.

Annual review of continuing connected
transactions

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in pages 49
to b4 of this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56

of the Listing Rules.

letter containing his
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that for the year ended December 31, 2020:

(i)  these transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

(i) these transactions were entered into either on normal
commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties;

(il)  these transactions were entered into according to the

agreements governing them on terms that were fair

the interests of the

and reasonable and in

Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related-party transactions set out
in such note fall within the scope of discloseable connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. The connected and continuing connected
transactions of the Group are in compliance with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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YAN HUA I0T AGREEMENT DISPUTE

On January 21, 2019, the Company received a letter from
Yan Hua Phoenix and
terminate the Yan Hua IOT Agreement with effect from
January 21, 2019. On April 17, 2019,
submitted the civil claim statement against Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital in 10T
Agreement dispute to Beijing Second Intermediate People’s

Yan Hua Hospital to unilaterally

the Group has

relation to the Yan Hua

Court on the even date to seek the court’s ruling that the
unilateral termination of Yan Hua IOT Agreement by Yan
Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital on January 21, 2019
shall be void and that Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital should be liable for damages for breach of the Yan
Hua IOT Agreement. On December 18, 2019, the Beijing
Second Intermediate People’s Court handed down the civil
judgment ([2019] Jing 02 Minchu No0.304) and the major
details are as follows: (1) the unilateral termination of Yan
Hua IOT Agreement by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital is declared to be void and that the parties shall
continue to perform its obligations under the Yan Hua IOT
Agreement; (2) the amount of RMB14,400,000, being the
damages for breach of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement, is to be
paid by Yan Hua Phoenix to CR Hospital Management &
(3)
Management & Consulting shall be dismissed; and (4) other
counterclaims of Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital

Consulting; other reliefs sought by CR Hospital

shall be dismissed. Pursuant to the laws of the PRC, the
Judgment is still not effective. Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan
Hua Hospital have filed appeal in January, 2020 to Beijing
Higher People’'s Court, the court was held on October 26,
2020 and the judgement is yet to be announced. The
Company will use its best endeavours and will take all
appropriate actions to protect the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders.

Please
Company on January 15, 2019, January 21, 2019 and April
17, 2019 for more details.

refer to the announcements published by the
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

No Director nor any connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the holding company of
the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year
ended December 31, 2020.

Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

In addition to certain continuing connected transactions
which has been disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” to this report, (1) on May 23, 2019, CR
Hospital Management & Consulting (a subsidiary of the
Company) as lessee and the Fengtai branch of China
Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (EHEMLR (IR)FHEREERAFEESI R
A]) (a branch company of a subsidiary of CR Land) as lessor
entered into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) in
relation to the lease of the 14th floor of China Resources
Kunlun Center Office Building, No. 5, Courtyard No. 9, Fuyi
Street, Fengtai District, Beijing, with a total leasable floor
area of 2,225.38 sg. m. for use as the Group’s office from
June 1, 2019 to May 31, 2024. Pursuant to the Lease
Agreement, the rent for the period from June 1, 2019 to
May 31, 2022 is RMB393,246.90 (including value-added tax
calculated at 9% and excluding utility charges) per month,
and for the period from June 1, 2022 to May 31, 2024, a
sum of RMB405,063.67 (including value-added tax calculated
at 9% and excluding utility charges and property
management fees) per month. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated May 23, 2019;
and (2) Unison Champ (a subsidiary of the Company) has
also entered into the subscription agreement with CMH

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

EEREARE  ZHIELNH
HYfE 2

B ZE2020F12A31HIEFE AT AR
MEEEIEETNENEEEERN AR AT
NI % /NS o R EIEE NN by ==
NAEIFMEI MRS B XEBBEANEAR
2 - R EHPERENEEREEEAER -

ERBRRNRERENDHER

BRAHRE [FHERS | ZEHMEENZESE
BER SN (1)VARBER2020F9H17H
HEHBERIIHEBRSIEERRE -5
Hh - RRBITEBHRB AR EHEREREN
(EAERA) BEMBHAS tR) BiHE
FAEARAREZES AR EHEM TBW
BArmzoraE)(EREHEA)R201965 A4
23BEIHEmZE ([HEWHR]) LAR2019
F6A1HE2024F5A31HEMARMRIL
AME5REEHINMREFEEBHESF L
B E4ABEMAHMmER2,225.38 % F
FREABAEEBZHBLAZE -REBER
#2019 6 A1H 22022965431 H 8/
ZMHewAMEE A/ ARK393,246.907T (2
BENIRBEFECEERM TS KE
£) - M2022496 518 £202445 531 H
MzTAMEE A A ARKEA405063.677T (2

ERERERERAT —TTFR

<



58

>

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Healthcare Investment Co., Ltd. in relation to the Group's
investment to the CMH Fund on September 19, 2019.
Pursuant to which, the proposed capital commitment of the
Group shall amount to US$40 million, and the CMH Fund
intends to raise a total of US$1 billion. The CMH Fund's
primary investment objective is to generate attractive risk-
adjusted returns by investing in companies that are active in
the healthcare sector and assisting their expansion globally.
Unison Champ shall appoint the General Partner as its
attorney to sign the limited partnership agreement on its
behalf. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated September 19, 2019. Save for the
aforementioned, no Controlling Shareholders or its subsidiary
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance, the provision of
services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to

whether for
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Management Contracts

Other than the service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Directors, the Company has not entered into any
contract with any individuals, firms or corporate entities to
manage or regulate the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company during the year ended December
31, 2020.
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Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
((EEEZS48)) of the Company in accordance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal
point for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to
time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group’s
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

As at December 31, 2020 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Audit Committee currently comprises
one non-executive Director, Mr. Wang Yan and two
independent non-executive Directors,
Kwok Kong (Chairman of the Committee) and Ms. Chiu Kam
Hing Kathy. The Audit Committee, together with the
management of the Company, has reviewed the accounting
principles, accounting standards and methods adopted by
the Company, discussed the matters concerning risk
management and auditing and financial
reporting matters and reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2020.

namely Mr. Kwong

internal control,
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee and
formulated the Rules and Procedures for Board Meetings
((BEgzEHEA))) of the Company in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on November 4,
2013. The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for: (i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii)
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of Directors and senior (iii)
reviewing and evaluating the performance-based

remuneration and ensure that no Directors or any of his

management; and

associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

As at December 31, 2020 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Remuneration Committee currently
consisted of one executive Director, Ms. Ren Yuan, and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Chiu Kam
Hing Kathy (Chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Lee Kar
Chung Felix.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on
November 4, 2013. The Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible for: (i) identifying individuals suitably qualified as
potential Board members and selecting or making
recommendation to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (ii) reviewing the structure, size
and diversity of the Board and the required skill mix as well
as making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to ensure the implementation of the Company’s
strategic goal; (iii) the
independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) reviewing the

assessing independence of
qualification of senior management nominated by the Chief
Executive Officer, reported to the Board for consideration
and adoption.

As at December 31, 2020 and up to the publication date of
this annual report, the Nomination Committee consisted of
Mr. and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar
Chung Felix (Chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Kwong
Kwok Kong.

one executive Director, Cheng Libing,
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

in which the Company was

Model Code

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
dealings by Directors in the
Company.

rules governing
listed securities of the

Having made specific enquiry, the Company confirmed that
all members of the Board complied with the Model Code
during the year ended December 31, 2020. As senior
managers, executives and officers who, because of their
offices in the Company, may possess inside information of
the Company, they shall comply with the provision of the
Model Code. To the best knowledge of the Company, no
incident of non-compliance to the Model Code has been
committed by such employees during the vyear
December 31, 2020.

ended

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, June 3,
2021, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, May 31, 2021 to Thursday, June 3,
2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify as members
entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting,
investors should lodge all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Friday, May 28, 2021.
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For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, June 9, 2021 to Friday, June 11,
2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
entitlement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Tuesday, June 8,
2021.

Code of Corporate Governance Practices

The full text of the Corporate Governance Report is set out
on pages 68 to 87 of this annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2020, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’'s listed securities.

Sufficiency of the Public Float

Based on the information publicly available and to the best
of the Board's knowledge, information and belief, the
Company has always maintained sufficient public float as at
the date of this annual report.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.
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Events Subsequent to December 31, 2020

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Subsequent Event(s)”
under the section headed
Analysis” on pages 26 to 28 of this annual report.

“Management Discussion and

Auditor

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on May
30, 2019, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the
auditor of the Company and Messrs. Ernst & Young was
appointed as the auditor of the Company. At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on May 28, 2020,
Messrs. Ernst & Young was reappointed as the auditor of
the Company.

The Company has appointed Messrs. Ernst & Young as the
auditor of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Messrs. Ernst & Young will retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting and is eligible to stand
for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
Wu Ting Yuk Anthony
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 26, 2021
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company confirms that it has complied with all material
code provisions of CG Code during the vyear
December 31, 2020.

ended

The Company will review and commit in making necessary
arrangement to comply with all the code provisions under
the CG Code and the rising expectations of Shareholders
and investors.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "“Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors complied with the
Model Code during the year ended December 31, 2020.
Senior management, executives and staff who, because of
their offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provision of the Model Code and the Company confirmed
that there was no incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by such employees during the year ended December
31, 2020.
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Board of Directors

The Directors are accountable to all Shareholders for their
leadership and supervision over the Group’s operation, and
are committed to achieving the goal of
Shareholders’ value.

increasing

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
nine Directors, including four executive Directors, one non-
executive Director

and four independent non-executive

Directors, and composition of Board are as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy

Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Yan

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President)

None of the members of the Board is related to one
another. There was no changes in composition of the Board
during the year ended December 31, 2020 and up to the
date of this report.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 83
to 92 of this annual report. The list of the Directors (by
category)
communications issued by the Company from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

is also disclosed in all of the corporate
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2020, the Board
complied at all times with the requirements of the Listing
relating to the appointment of at
independent non-executive Directors (representing at least

During the year ended December 31,

Rules least three
one-third of the Board), of which at least one Director has
appropriate professional qualifications, or
related financial management expertise.

accounting or

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
the non-

During the vyear ended December 31,

executive Directors

2020,
(including independent non-executive
Directors) brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and judgement to the Board. Through
active participation at Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and
serving on Board committees, all

Directors have made various contributions to the effective

the non-executive
development of the Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
to protect Directors from possible legal action against them.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the performance of the
functions of corporate governance.
December 31, 2020, the Board has performed the functions
set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

For the year ended

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

For the year ended December 31, 2020, Chairman of the
Board is Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony while the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company is Mr. Cheng Libing. The
Company has complied with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code which stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should not be performed by the same individual.
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Under the leadership of the Chairman and the Vice
Chairman, the Board is responsible for the approval and
supervision of the Group’'s general development strategy,
the review and approval of the annual budget and business
plans, the consent of material investment projects related to
the Group’s business development, the
Group's performance and the supervision of the work of the
management, and ensures that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Group, operates effectively and performs

review on the

the necessary duties, as well as discusses all the significant
and appropriate issues of the Group’s business in a timely
All the Directors are entitled to propose the
inclusion of any item in the agenda of the Board meetings
for appropriate discussion. The Chairman, and the Vice
Chairman, have appointed the secretary of the meeting to
draft the Board meetings’ agendas. Under the assistance of
the executive Directors and the secretary of the Board, the
Chairman will ensure that all the Directors are provided with
sufficient and

manner.

reliable information in a timely manner

required for necessary analysis based on their expertise.

The Chief Executive Officer has delegated sufficient
authority for the operation and management of the Group’s
business to the executive Directors and other
management members, who are

senior
in-charge of the daily
management of the Group in every aspect, including
implementation of the Board's resolutions unanimously, and
be accountable to the Chief Executive Officer for the
operations of various aspects of the Group's business, while
the Chief Executive Officer shall be accountable to the

Board for the Group’s operations as a whole.

The responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

(a)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’'s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Delegation by the Board

In order to enhance its corporate governance structure, the
Company has formulated the “Rules and Procedures for
Board Meetings”. The “Rules and Procedures for Board
Meetings"” specifies that the CEO Management Meeting is
composed of executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer and
Deputy President, all being called together by the Chief
Executive Officer. As the approval organization for the
Company's daily operational management, the committee is
responsible for organizing and managing the Company’s
daily operations and accountable to the Board.

Board Meetings

According to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, regular
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. During the year ended
December 31, 2020, there were only two regular Board
meetings held to review and consider the interim results
and the annual results, respectively, as the Company is not
required to announce its quarterly results under the Listing
Rules. Three other Board meetings were held during the
year.

The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without presence of other Directors
during the year.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Board has #{ZE2020F12A31BtFEE2F EFE
convened and held five Board meetings. Attendance records D AMTRITENEETCSH -EENES
of the Directors at the Board meetings are set out as ©@&@zxHFELESIMOT

follows:

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

SELE/

Name of director BRIRE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYFHTES
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board) HMEBREE(EEFLR) 5/5
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB LA 5/5
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy ezt 5/5
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRIBEE 5/5
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wang Yan TELRE 2/5
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board) RELEE(FIZEER) 3/5
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) PR (B E) 5/5
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) TERT(EEHEE) 5/5
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) NIEB L (F/4EH) 5/5
Practices and Conduct of Meetings EREANES

Notice of regular Board meetings had been served to all EREEFEEZBECNENSZI14BKE
Directors at least 14 days prior to the meetings to give all 2 EEE UNEI2REEHAKSEE -
Directors an opportunity to attend.
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For regular Board and committee meetings, all agendas,
meeting papers, together with all applicable, complete and
reliable statistics will be sent to all the Directors or
committees at least three days before a meeting is held. All
Directors may propose any business to be included in the
agenda of the Board or committee meetings and contact the
company secretary to ensure full compliance with all of the

Board's procedures and applicable regulations.

In general, the senior management members shall attend all
the regular Board meetings and, if necessary, other Board
and committee meetings to advise on the Group's business
development, financial and accounting matters, statutory and
regulatory compliance,
management as well as other significant issues. The Board
if appropriate,
independent and professional advice at the expense of the
Group. Matters discussed and resolved at Board meetings
will be recorded in detail by the Board secretary who shall

corporate governance and risk

may, authorize the Directors to seek

prepare and file the minutes or resolutions. Generally, draft
minutes of Board meeting shall be issued to the Directors
within reasonable time for their comments after such
meeting is held, and the final version will be open for
inspections by the Directors.

The Articles of Association contains provision requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or their associates have a material interest

and this provision has always been complied with.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but no less than one-third) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold
office until the next following general meeting of the
Company and for any Director appointed as an addition to
the Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company. The retiring Directors shall
be eligible for re-election.
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Any other appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Directors will be timely disclosed to the
Shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his

resignation.

Each of the non-executive Directors was engaged on a
service contract or letter of appointment for a fixed term
and shall be subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Group has established a formal
procedure for formulating policies on
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of
the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended December 31, 2020 are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

and transparent
remuneration of

Details of the remuneration of the senior management of
the Company, by band for the year ended December 31,
2020 are set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB'000)

6,001 to 7,000
5,001 to 6,000
4,001 to 5,000
3,001 to 4,000
2,001 to 3,000
Nil to 2,000

R (ARETIT)
6,001 27,000

5,001 26,000

4,001 25,000

3,001 24,000

2,001 %3,000

T %£2,000

TEERRE

EMEMEERE BT RRBEAR -
RBEB R SRR REREE  WARZAE
HABSHTHEREIESR-

EFNTEFHERVEEERNOREER
B EEAREB=FRERE—R-

EERSGREEE 2HMN

AEED AV EERAEBSAEREEY
ML ENERBRAECEF SES
HE2020F12A3MBIEFE ZHWMFBH
RAFIRREGEE M EHRER ZHIFE10-

HZE2020F12A3MBEFEARASRE
BEZLHFNSEZ > MFBEMNNT

Number of individual A 2%

o) - B = =2
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General Meetings

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company
has convened and held one annual general meeting
("AGM"). Attendance records of the Directors at the general
meetings are set out as follows:

Name of the Directors

BRERKRE

B E2020F12A31AILFE - ARARIE A
FMRT-ABRRAFAg ([RREAFK
Bl BEERBRRAGZHETHEEIINT

Number of meetings
attended/convened

HME/

ARIRE
AGM EGM
BRBAF BRREH
e N

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board) #TEBxE(ZEER) 11 nil/ &
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB LA A nil/ &
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy Hemzt 171 nil/ &
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRBEE 1/1 nil/ A&
Non-executive Director FHTES

Mr. Wang Yan TELRE 11 nil/ &
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board) RBELEE(FIEER) 0/1 nil/ &
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) B T A (B E) 171 nil/ &
Mr. Han Yuewei (Resigned on October 15, 2019)  TERBE K& (KR2019F 104 15 H EFE) 171 nil/#&
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) FERT (BEEHEE) 171 nil/#&
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) NREBR L (F/4EE) 111 nil/ &

The 2021 annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on Thursday, June 3, 2021. The notice of the annual
general meeting will be sent to the Shareholders at least 20
clear business days before the annual general meeting.

Continuous Professional Development for
Directors

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package to ensure that he/she has
a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and is fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations as being a Director as well as the compliance
practice under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are kept updated on the
statutory and regulatory development and changes in the
business and the market so as to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. All Directors have participated in the
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a
director of a listed company or further enhanced their
professional development by the way of attending training
courses or reading relevant materials for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

ARATE]2021 FRR R B F R #1220219F6 H
SH(EZ2HM) 27 - WRAFRKZHEEER
PRRBEFRASR R E20EZEEHFET
BEER o

EEREEXRER

BEREMAERTER SEFHEE—D%
BZABERS  BRNZRTHRASEX
BREE AERANDERIERESMNEML
RER - AR EMRAUBEBTITNARER A
AR E RE °

AEBHFHERES2MHBEIERR MU
BREMEFREZ NS M ERRFE
REZIEREEER  UREBEHTREE
ZERHMEBE  WEREERTERE - H1£2020
F12A31BLFE  2RE=2EHEE LM
RAIEEZAR BeELBEZRE B
BHFEIIRENBEEREM AT — g
WEZHEER -
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A summary of the training received by the Directors for the RIEE EATIRMHEAELE > #H £2020F12 7
year ended December 31, 2020 according to the records 31HILFE  EEMEIEINZBEES0T
provided by the Directors is as follows:

Attending
seminar or
reading
materials
L EM e
Name of the Directors o BIEE K
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony (Chairman of the Board) HEMBEE (EER) |
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB A& J
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy Hemzt {
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRIBEAE {
Non-executive Director FHUTES
Mr. Wang Yan IEE4E {
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Song Qing (Vice Chairman of the Board) RBELEE(FIEER) {
Mr. Cheng Libing (Chief Executive Officer) B S (B #) |
Ms. Ren Yuan (Chief Financial Officer) FRLT (BEHIHKE) |
Ms. Fu Yanjun (Deputy President) IIE L (F/4E) {
Nomination Committee REZES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee on EEEMW2013%F11 A4BKTIREZEE -
November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one REAFE—ZHMITEE(KITKL)RMEE
Executive Director, Mr. Cheng Libing, and two independent M 3E#7T2 % (A1 : TRIAE A (EF) K F
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix BIYt%&4) c KREDKE BB FRITES -
(Chairman) and Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong. Majority of the

members are independent non-executive Directors.

FERBERERERLAT —T _TFR
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The role and function of the Nomination Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
size and composition
knowledge and experience) of the

include reviewing the structure,
(including the skills,
Board, identifying appropriate and qualified individuals to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment

directorships, assessing the

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

To comply with the provisions in the CG Code on board
diversity which became effective on September 1, 2013, the
Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) setting out a
number of factors which the Nomination Committee would
consider in reviewing and assessing the Board composition.

According to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination
Committee reviews and assesses the Board composition
and makes recommendations of changes to the composition
of the Board. The Nomination Committee would consider
the benefits of all aspects of diversity set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age,
ethnicity, and educational

cultural background,

communication styles, skills, functional
expertise, problem solving skills, professional qualifications,

knowledge and industry and regional experience and other

interpersonal

qualities in reviewing and assessing the composition of the
Board and all appointments to the Board will be based on
merits and will take into account of factors based on the
Group’s own business model and specific needs from time
to time.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy on a regular basis (which will include a review on the
effectiveness of the policy), discuss any required changes
with the Board and make recommendation of revision to the
Board Diversity Policy for consideration and approval. The
Nomination Committee has been provided with sufficient
resources to perform
Nomination Committee will seek independent professional
advice,

its duty. When necessary, the

at the Company's expense, to perform its

responsibilities.

REZEENAGLBEHNERERE -
HIZEEERRTESSRE  HERA
kB (BiEREE MR EER)  MEAR
BHEEROALTREZEETEXREEERE
HEFQRRERABFRUGEA - FHEB
MIFHITERNBIUM BEREFTSREY
BREEENEZEITE LERIERA

AETR2013F9 A1 BARM D EEATE
EHAESEZTENGEX  EF2CHEMNE
BEEeREZLEMER ((EEE3 it
BE]  EREAREZESHRR ETE
EEgHRNEREEENETREEX -

REEFSZTIRE  REZEERF N
AEEFESHEAKE  URESSHEMKE
MEFROHERRES RERBSER
TEEEGENKER  @ZBEESZ T
EBERBNMEZ T BENES - 815
BARRRIER - Fik - Bk XMERHBEE
ROBBIA ABRRID  BEER BR
REmIT - HEER  MBRITRALME
RBAREMSE  BEESS@ MEEEH
DUEEEEARE Wt MAKE A S XK
BAMARZERBREARARIEL -

REAZBEHENIRIEFTSZTILEKR (8
FEERZBROKR)  BREEETW
EAMBNEHIRETEFTE L TTIEEE
MEEERHES  WHEERIE - 245
ZESCDREHERHERNEBITHERE -1
BERE REZEERSRKBIUEEERIN
EBITERG - BREAREEE-
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During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Nomination
Committee has convened one meeting to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the
committees and the independence of the independent non-

executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the

retiring Directors standing for re-election at the annual
general meeting and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors. The particulars of the
attendance of the Nomination Committee are set forth as
follows:

TEERRE

B E2020F12A3MHILFE REZES
ERAMIAEHURTESEREES R
B RERERKEURBY IERITES Y
B EERIEENBRFEAFATEE
BEACZEARITREZESTEREEST RBEZ
Be@HFEHBHINOT

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

gRLE/

Name of the members of the Nomination Committee BRIRE
Chairman: FE:
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix FRBEE 171
Members: KB
Mr. Cheng Libing RIS 11
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB LA A

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee on
November 4, 2013 which currently consisted of one
executive Director, Ms. Ren Yuan, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy
(Chairman) and Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix. Majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities
include reviewing and formulating policies in respect of
remuneration structure for all Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board for

its consideration.

FNEES
EE@MN2013F 11 A4BKIFNEE S -
REE—2RITES (FERL) KMEBL
JFMITESE (A B2l (ZFE) RER
BAEE)  KADKEEBYIIEHNTES -

FHEZEenAe BN ABERE -
HIZZXERRSAVNIEEREBESTN
RREBEABHFHRBORK  YAEFS
ROEBZRHEEEZE -

FERBERERERLAT —T _TFR

<



> CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the
Remuneration Committee has convened two meetings to
review the remuneration policy for all Directors and senior
management and service contracts of newly appointed
Directors. The particulars of the attendance of the

Remuneration Committee are set forth as follows:

Name of the members of the Remuneration Committee
Chairman: FE:

HZE2020F12A31BIEEE  HFHEE S
ERM2AEE  URF2RBESRAAE
BAENTHBRERINZTESHORES
Al FMEZESLBFBHINEOT -

Number of
meetings
attended/

convened
SHHE

BRIRE

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy HeEat 2/2
Members: A :

Ms. Ren Yuan EEZL 2/2
Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix TRIBEE 2/2

Audit Committee

On November 4, 2013, the Board has established the Audit
Committee currently consisted of one non-executive
Director, Mr. Wang Yan and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong (Chairman); and
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy. Majority of the members are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board considered
that the members of the Audit Committee possess
sufficient professional knowledge and experience of
accounting and financial management for the performance of
their responsibilities.

The roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out
in its terms of reference. In view of the amendments to the
CG Code effective for the accounting period beginning on
January 1, 2016, the Group adopted a revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee on January 18, 2016 in
order to comply with certain changes relating to the risk
management and internal control section of the CG Code.
Its primary responsibilities include serving as a focal point
for communication among other Directors, the external
auditor and the internal auditor (where an internal audit
function exists) as regards their duties relating to financial
and other reporting, risk management and internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and
accounting matters as the Board determines from time to

EREE®
EE2N2013F 11 A4BK L EZRZEE
R 2R TES(EELLE) RREE
NIHERITEE A BEYX AL (EF) KB
CHLZ L) RESOKEEFRBBULIENITE
E-EFEERR BERZESKNEAEERS
TN BEEBEEMNERLER BB
HFERBRE -

BEZZEENBE RSN AR EESE -
20161 A1 BB TR AR E
ERTANERTME - N&EEE2MX20165F1H
1I8RRMEIEFIBERLZE SR ESEE - A&
BEEERTAEHERRERERAIPEEE—
MMETEs - EX2ETREEAEME
= SNEEAZ ERD R RSP AT AN (0 SR A BP B
B cEEBEVBEMEMBE AR
EBRANIERE  INBMABEFTRESS
THETHNZSHEMV BN EESTE
MWEBENZZEBRBER  RAEEPBRE
I R E B K BB 12 5 E A AR R 15 B
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time, assisting the Board in providing an independent review
on the effectiveness of the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
overseeing the audit procedure, reviewing the Group's
financial and accounting policies and practices and
performing other duties and responsibilities as designated by
the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to discharge its
responsibilities and review the Group's annual and interim
results, continuing connected transactions, reporting and

compliance procedures, reports from the management on
the Group’'s risk management and internal control systems,
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control function and
procedures and also the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The particulars of the attendance of the Audit
Committee are set forth as follows:

TEERRE

ExeRUmN  BEEBRRER  BHAS
BHMBEREABRREERRETEFTSIE
ERMEMBEMAIE -

HZE2020F12A31MBILFE BZELEQ
BRI ERUBTEBREYENASEE
FERPHES BEEBRIS  BERE
REF BEEBEASERREERAI
EEHE  AEBASPEEBEREF 2K
WMz mEARBEINEZEEN - BZEEE
BRI T

Number of
meetings
attended/
convened

SEHE/

Name of the members of the Audit Committee 1 BRERE
Chairman: FE:
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB A 3/3
Members: RE :
Mr. Wang Yan ITERE 1/3
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy fiizherng iR 3/3

Appointment and Remuneration of
External Auditor

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the total fee
paid/payable to the external auditors of the Group in respect
of audit is RMB3.77 million, including the annual audit
service fee payable to Ernst & Young amounted to
RMB3.17 million. The total fee paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Group in respect of non-audit service (in
respect of review interim period financial statements) is
RMBO0.6 million.

IBRBEANZERNNE

HE2020F12A31B IEFE - LBEZKLIE
BEZRBE N AR EBINEZEEN
ERHREAANREK37IE L HP RN
CKEFMEFMNFEEZRBEEARKE
3178 7T - BE X,/ FE A & B JNIE 4% B AD
MIEBZRBE (AT HMBENTIIE)EEZ

ERBEAEARECOETT
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The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment, re-

appointment and removal of the external auditor. Such
appointment, re-appointment and removal are subject to the
approval by the Board and the general meetings of the

Company by the Shareholders.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Group
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
in the
independent auditor’'s report from pages 93 to 100 of this
annual report.

financial statements of the Group is set out

Directors’ Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2020 which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group as well as the results and
cash flow during that year.
The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group ensures statutory requirements are
met and applies appropriate accounting policies that are
consistently adopted and makes judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records are kept so that the Group could prepare
statutory
requirements and the Group’s accounting policies. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities within the
Group.

financial statements in accordance with

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Board, as
supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, has
performed an annual the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal

review on

SRAMIIMERBEINER T B
AEFSFHERBRZ  %FXT -
REAREZTERRRRARRBRR

AEBBYZHMEBRSHAEBELRE M
BRERNBERETHNRAEHE RN AFRFEIRE
100 BB BN RER o

EEHMBRRNEME

EEERNERREEER A FERMALEE
AR REFEERBEERENANEFE
F2020F 12 A1 BILFEEMKFHERHEL -

EERR MUEPBHRRE  AEBERRERN
BEERE  LEA-—ERANKESK
B YRBEMRSTEIELAEZENH
e

ESRAARRZ/RIFEILE  UEAE
BRI RBOATERE RASEE G BERRR
FBmE - WENBEREAEENEE -
I ARG SR 1 R EHRAEE A
BAFMEMERBR -

EXVEERTRYAKERELERIE
REXREBNEBEFHBRAHTMERT
FIBARRIEE o

B E2020F12A31MBILFE  REBEZRZ
BEUREREREMADPENER ES
SEORIE  EE EHRRERERSEARE
ErE#SBEAEBRREE KA
ERFEEMERREEITFERS - METH
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control systems in different aspects of the Group such as
financial, operation, compliance and risk management, and
has also assessed the accounting and financial reporting
functions of the Group, estimated the resources and
budgets for training programmes and appraised the staff
qualifications and experience. In respect of

continuing connected the Group has

members’
transactions,
implemented a series of general
controlled by multiple departments to improve corporate
governance structure and monitor the implementation of

management policies

internal control policies, including financial control system,
legal operations and
compliance management system, risk management and

anti-fraud and monitoring system,

assessment policies and internal audit rules.

The Board considers that the abovementioned systems are
effective and adequate.

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
comprehensive audits of each department, subsidiary and
member of the Group to facilitate the management’s control
on the assets of the Group. In addition, it offers consulting
services in respect of internal control to each department of
the Group to assist them in optimizing and enhancing the
risk management and internal control systems and the
operating processes. As authorized by the management, the
audit department conducts an investigation on
internal corruption. For the year ended December 31, 2020,
the any
circumstances involving fraud, non-compliance or violation

internal

internal audit department did not discover
against laws, regulations and rules or any material incidents
due to lack of internal control.

The Board considers that the current risk management and
internal control systems cover the existing businesses of the
Group, and will continue to be optimized in line with the
business development of the Group.

In particular, the Board will devote efforts to complying with
the Listing Rules, ensuring compliance with the relevant
laws and regulation and safeguarding the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
guide to the Company's Directors,
senior management and relevant employees in

provides a general
officers,
handling confidential information

information, monitoring

disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that

unauthorized access and use of inside information are

strictly prohibited.

The Board of the Company assesses the likely impact of any
unexpected significant event that may impact the price of
the Shares or their trading volume and decides whether the
relevant information is considered as inside information and
needs to be disclosed as soon as practicable pursuant to
Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside
Part XIVA of the SFO.
Executive Directors and the company secretary are also
responsible for approving certain announcements and/or
circulars to be

Information Provisions under

issued by the Company under powers
delegated by the Board from time to time.

Company Secretary

Mr. So Yiu Fung has been engaged by the Company as the
company secretary and an authorized representative with
effect from July 20, 2018.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, Mr. So has
complied with the requirement of taking no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

Constitutional Documents

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group has not
made any changes to its Memorandum and Articles of
Association.

ARFEHIFTERBERE  HR/ARARE
£ 1THRAE SAEEEMERESRRH
RIEHZEN EEERRENDEERA
—MR¥ES| -

ARRDEHEERRF » UWHERDERERK
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RANE13.09& R FE 1310 A KFESF RBE
ERBIEXIVABB AR R B EARAREE - B
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the re-election of individual
retiring Directors. Except where the chairman, in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands, all resolutions tabled at the general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules. Poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meeting

The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are primary forums for
between the Company and its Shareholders. The Company
shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on the
resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
information provided shall be reasonably necessary to enable
Shareholders to make an informed decision on the proposed
resolution(s).

communication

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands for Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to propose a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with
the procedures set out in the paragraph below.

Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one
or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such

right of voting at general

requisition.
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a

proceed to convene such meeting, the

result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Investor Relations

The Board believes that effective communication with
investors is essential for establishing investors’ confidence
and attracting new investors. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables investors to make the
best investment decision.

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules. Updated
and key information of the Company is also available on the
Company's website at www.crmedical.nk. The Company also
replied the enquiries from Shareholders timely, if any. The
general meetings of the Company provide an important
channel for communications between the Board and the
Shareholders. The Chairman, as well as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committee and where appropriate, the chairman
of the independent Board Committee, will be available to
answer questions at the general meetings.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address:  14/F, Kunlun Center Office Building
No. 9, Fuyi Street
Fengtai District
Beijing, China

Email: ir@crmedical.hk

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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Directors
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Ting Yuk, Anthony, aged 65, joined the Group in
August 2018 as an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman. Mr. Wu is a leader in the healthcare industry
and has extensive management experience in medical
system. Mr. Wu joined the board of the Hong Kong Hospital
Authority in 1999 and was formerly its chairman from 2004
to 2013. He has so far been the longest-serving chairman of
the Hospital Authority. He has led the team of the Hospital
Authority to manage all public hospitals and public clinics in
Hong Kong and implemented the public health policy of the
Hong Kong SAR Government. He has also actively promoted
a number of public and private medical co-operation projects
during his tenure. Mr. Wu is currently the principal advisor
to the State Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine
of the People’'s Republic of China, a member of the Chinese
Medicine Reform and Development Advisory Committee. He
was a member of the State Council’'s Medical
Leadership Advisory Committee and an advisor to the Public
Policy Advisory Committee of the National Health and
Family Planning Commission. Other important public
positions that Mr. Wu has served include member of the
12th and 13th Standing Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference National Committee, and a

Reform

member of the Chief Executive's Council of Advisers on
Innovation and Strategic Development and the Task Force on
Land Supply of the Hong Kong SAR, and has been awarded
JP and GBS by the government of Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Wu
also served as the chairman of the Chamber Council of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce from 2010 to
2012, and is currently a member of
committee. Mr. Wu was a partner of Ernst & Young (“EY")
from 1985 to 2015, and served as chairman of the EY's Far
East Region from 2000 to 2005. He is currently the chief
advisor to MUFG Bank, Ltd., the chairman of The China
Oxford Scholarship Fund, an honorary professor of the
Faculty of Medicine of the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and the Peking Union Medical College Hospital, and an
honorary fellow of the Hong Kong College of Community
Medicine. Mr. Wu also has directorships in certain listed
companies of the Main Board of the Stock Exchange: he is
an independent non-executive director of Power Assets
Holdings Limited (stock code: 006), Guangdong Investment
Limited (stock code: 270), China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 966), Cstone Pharmaceuticals

its consultation
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(stock code: 2616) and Venus Mecttech (Hangzhou) Inc.
(stock code: 2500). He also joined Ocumension Therapeutics
(which has been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in the second half of 2020, stock code: 1477) as
the independent non-executive director in 2020. He was an
executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited
444).
executive director of Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(stock code: 1288) from 2009 to 2015. He was also a
director of the Fidelity Funds from 2011 to 2014. Mr. Wu is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

(stock code: He was also an independent non-

Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, and the honorary chairman of the
Institute of Certified Management Accountants (Australia)
Hong Kong Branch.

Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong, aged 73, is an independent non-
executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and has been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee on March 23, 2018. He was the
chief executive officer of Pok Qi Hospital, a well-known
non-profit hospital in Yuen Long District, Hong Kong. As the
chief executive officer, Mr.
governance and management support to the board of
directors for development, management and supervision of

Kwong provided corporate

these units for the past 10 years, He joined Pok Oi Hospital
as an internal audit manager in 2003. Mr.
Director of Yuen Long District Healthy City Association

Kwong is a

Company Limited, a non-profit organization supporting the
government to promote public healthcare messages to
people in the district. Before joining Pok Oi Hospital, Mr.
Kwong served as the principal of the Audit
Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Mr. in the Audit
Commission of the Government of Hong Kong since 1980.
Mr. Kwong has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 1982.

auditor

Administrative Region. Kwong served
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Mr. Lee Kar Chung Felix, aged 39, joined the Group in
August 2015 as an independent non- executive Director and
also a member of the Remuneration Committee, and has
been redesignated as chairman of the Nomination
Committee on March 23, 2018.

He is currently a senior vice president of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited ("CTFE") with responsibilities in making
investments in the healthcare sector in Asia and globally and
a director of Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CTFE. Mr. Lee is also an executive
director of UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code:
722; CTFE is a substantial shareholder of this company, and
the Company also indirectly owns 11.84% of this company
as at the date of this annual report). He has over 15 years
of experience in law and finance. He was an associate with
the law firm Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer before he left in
February 2008 to join UBS AG, Hong Kong branch as an
analyst in the investment banking department until January
2009. He then joined the investment banking department of
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong branch and last held the
position of director in the Corporate Advisory Group, where
he worked from January 2009 to August 2014.

Mr.
School
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of
Hong Kong in July 2003 and June 2004, respectively. He is

Lee obtained a Bachelor of Laws from the London

of Economics and Political Sciences and a

a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since September
2007 and a solicitor (non-practising) in the Senior Courts of
England and Wales since February 2013. Mr. Lee is also a
Vice Chairman of the China Committee, the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce.
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Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy, aged 71, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director from March 23,
2018. Ms. Chiu has years of banking experience in Canada
and the Asia Pacific Region. Ms. Chiu was a senior vice
president at the Republic National Bank of New York and
was responsible for the management and investment of
third party client’s funds. Ms. Chiu has been an associate
and a fellow of the Institute of Canadian Bankers since July
1975 and August 1976 respectively. Ms. Chiu was appointed
as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong government in
July 1992 and as a Cavaliere by the ltalian Government in
1998. Ms. Chiu

Investments Group Limited and is currently an independent

December is the chairman of Prime
non-executive director of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8200) and CPM Group Limited (stock code:
1932), whose shares are all listed on the Stock Exchange.
She was also an independent non-executive director of
National Agricultural Holdings Limited (stock code: 1236)
from 1999 to 2019. Ms. Chiu is licenced to carry out asset
management business under Type 9 regulated activities
under the SFO.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 49, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director from November 25, 2016 and a member
of the Audit Committee from December 28, 2016. He
joined China Resources National Corporation in August
1994. From February 2016, Mr. Wang has been appointed
as the general manager of internal audit department of CR
Holdings. Since August 2014, Mr. Wang has been appointed
as the non-executive director of China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1313), China Resources Gas
Group Limited (stock code: 1193), China Resources Land
Limited (stock code: 1109) and China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 836). From August
2014 to April 2016, Mr. Wang was a non-executive director
of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (stock
code: 291). Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor's degree in
economics from the Finance and Accounting Department,
Capital University of Economics and Business and obtained
a master's degree in Business Administration from the
University of South Australia. Mr. Wang is a qualified PRC
Certified Accountant.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Song Qing, aged 55, joined the Group in August 2018
as an executive Director and the vice chairman. Mr. Song
holds a bachelor's degree in Chinese medicine from Anhui
University of Traditional Chinese Medicine in Hefei, the PRC,
and obtained his chief pharmacist title from the general
logistics department of the People’s Liberation Army in April
1999. Mr. Song has extensive experiences in corporate
management, and has over 30 years of experience and
sophisticated background in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
Song
Healthcare Group Limited (which is principally engaged in
investments in healthcare sector and operation and
management of medical institutes) and also takes the role
as the Company’s vice chairman lead the
healthcare segment of China Resources. The Company
believes that with Mr. Song’'s extensive experience in
corporate management and mergers and acquisitions, and
his deep understanding of the healthcare industry, he will
lead the Group to promote business development, actively
participate reform of state-owned enterprises
hospitals, accelerate the scale expansion plan of the
Company, further leverage advantages of China Resources
Group and further synergize the collaboration between the
Company and China Resources Healthcare Group. Mr. Song
was the director of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group
Limited (which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange; stock code: 3320) from May 2016 to August
2018, and also its president from June 2017 to August
2018. Mr. Song was the director of China Resources Sanjiu
Medical & Pharmaceutical Co Ltd (which is listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange; stock code: 000999). He also
served as an inspection pharmacist of quality inspection
department, a pharmacist in charge and the director of
production department,
management department and an assistant to president of
Shenzhen South Pharmaceutical Factory. Mr. Song served as
an assistant general manager, the director of technology
center, the director of medical & pharmaceutical department
of Sanjiu Enterprise.

is currently the chairman of China Resources

in order to

in the

the director of the enterprise
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Mr. Cheng Libing, aged 56, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Cheng joined the Group in
September 2010 and responsible for daily
operations of the Group. He has been appointed as an

is primarily

executive Director and the vice Chairman in February 2016.
He has also been redesignated as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since August 2018. Mr. Cheng
served as the deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren
Intech Hospital Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (36 R
HEBREBHMERAR) from 2006 to 2008 and the
deputy general manager of Beijing Huaren Intech Hospital
Management Consulting Co., Ltd., Beijing Intech Eye
Hospital Co., Ltd. (Gt REEREIEL AR AF]) and Intech
Medical Chain (% & &@E#H#ME) from 2008 to 2010. From
1999 to 2002, Mr. Cheng has served various positions at
Beijing Kangchen Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (1b 7 5F fx B8 &5 5%
BAMR A F]), including assistant to the general manager. Mr.
Cheng also served in various positions such as an attending
doctor at Dongzhimen Hospital Affiliated to Beijing
University of Chinese Medicine (1t & A &2 %2 X 2 5 & 5 & P9
B&8P) from 1988 to 1998. Mr. Cheng is currently the
chairman of Beijing Jiangong Hospital Co., Ltd., the
chairman of Run Neng Medical Management Co., Ltd., the
chairman and general manager of China Resources Hospital
Ltd.
chairman and general manager of China Resources Hospital
Investment (China) Co., Ltd., and he also director of certain
other subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Cheng received a

Management Consulting Co., and he is also the

bachelor’'s degree in Clinical Traditional Chinese Medicine
from Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (1t R A B %2 K
E) in Beijing in July 1988.
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Ms. Ren Yuan, aged 47, joined the Group in October 2017
Ms.
of the finance

as an executive Director and Chief Financial Officer.
Ren worked as the deputy manager
department of China Resources Microelectronics (Holdings)
Limited (ZEEMEF (ZER) BRAR]) from June 2002 to
December 2006. From February 2004 to February 2010, Ms.
Ren served as the finance director of Wuxi CR Micro-
Assembly Tech., Ltd. (5B L EEHF AR AF]). Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Ren worked as the consultancy
and deputy general of the
information management department of China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. (%8 (%£&) BFR A 7)) since March 2010.
Ms. Ren obtained her master’'s degree in accounting from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong (BEH X KEZ) in
December 2007. Ms. Ren obtained the qualifications of
China Certified Public Accountant (B zEf&5tAT) and
China Certified Public Valuer (7 B & EFFEAD) in
December 1998 and September 1999 respectively.

general director director

Ms. aged 41,
executive Director on October 12, 2017. Ms. Fu joined the
Group in December 2014 and has been appointed as the

Fu Yanjun, has been appointed as an

deputy general manager of the Company since December
2016. She is currently the chairman of the board of Beijing
Wanrong Yikang Pharmaceutical Company Limited (1t &8
EFEEZAR QA and Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical
Equipment Company Limited (It REEEHEER=MAR QD
A]), which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
and the chairman of the youth committee of the Group. Ms.
Fu previously served as the managing director of strategic
investment department of the Company. Ms. Fu has been
appointed as a supervisor of Beijing Jingkelong Company
Limited (stock code: 814) since May 2017. Ms. Fu also
worked for Ernst & Young Hua Ming from September 2002
to October 2010 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.
from October 2010 to December 2014. Ms. Fu obtained a
bachelor's degree in accounting from Renmin University of
China (Bl AR KAZ) in July 2002 and obtained the
qualification of China Certified Public Accountant (B 5T fff
& +HAf) in May 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xu Zechang, aged 58, is the Executive President of the
Company. Mr. Xu joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Xu
served as an executive Director of the Company from
September 2013 to November 2016 and from December
2016 to October 2017. He also served as the executive
dean of Yan Hua Hospital (1t #(EEFT) from May 2007 to
December 2010 and the vice dean of Beijing Jian Gong
Hospital Co., Ltd. (bR = ERAR AR from May 2005
to May 2007. Mr. Xu has experience as an attending doctor,
doctor, vice director of the cardiology
department and an acting director of the cardiology
department at the General Hospital of China PLA Beijing
Military Region (FEBIARBNEIL R F R 42EP), a Grade I
general hospital, from 1991 to 2003, and a resident doctor
at the General Hospital of the People's Liberation Army of
China (TEI AR EH L), the largest Grade Il general
hospital affiliated to the People’s Liberation Army of China,
from 1984 to 1991.

vice director

Mr. Xu attended the Military Medical School of People's
Liberation Army of China (FBIARMBMEEFEEEBER) in
Beijing in July 2006 and July 1991 respectively to study
medicine. He obtained his bachelor's degree in military
surgeon from Southern Medical University (F875 2RI AE)
(formerly known as First Military Medical University of
People’s Liberation Army of China (FEIARMEMEE —F 2
KE) in Guangzhou in July 1984.
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Mr. Wu Xinchun, aged 50, is the vice president of the
Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as the vice president of
the Company in December 2018. From September 2016 to
2018, Mr.
chairman of China Resources Wugang Medical Management
Company Limited. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wu
was the director of technology management department and

November Wu served as the director and

technology innovation department of Wugang Group, steel
smelting factory’s deputy general manager and the general
manager of innovation and innovation department, general
manager of Wugang Modern City Services Group*, chairman
of Wugang CR Gas*, general manager of Wuhan Yangtze
River Water*, assistant to general manager of China Baowu
Wugang Group* from September 2001 to November 2018.
He also served as deputy secretary general of China Iron
and Steel Industry Association. He was the independent
director of Kingray New Materials Science & Technology
Co., Ltd. (a company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600390). Mr. Wu was granted the title of senior
engineer at a professor level from Titles Evaluation
Committee of Hubei Province and obtained his doctor’s
degree from Wuhan University of Technology in December

2009 and June 2012, respectively.

Mr. Zhou Hang, aged 53, is the assistant president of the
Company. He joined the Company in August 2012 and was
appointed as the assistant president of the Company in
October 2018. Mr. Zhou served various positions in the
hospitals or companies affiliated to the Company, such as
the general manger of Jian Gong Hospital,
Mentougou Hospital and general manager of Central and

dean of

Southern China Department of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Zhou was the assistant manager of
general manager office of China International Cooperation
Company For Agriculture, Livestock and Fishery and deputy
director of logistics department of Beijing New Oriental
Mr.
Finance and Economics, majoring in audit.

School. Zhou graduated from Tianjin University of
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EEREREEBAR

Mr. Du Lin, aged 41, is the chief general counsel and board
secretary of the Company. Mr. Du Lin joined the Company
in March 2018. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Du was
the legal counsel on PRC law, senior legal counsel and chief
legal counsel of legal department of China Resources
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. from October 2008 to March 2018. Mr.
Du graduated from China University of Political Science and
Law with a doctor’'s degree in Law in 2008. He also
graduated from University of Leicester in the United
Kingdom with a master's degree in law in 2005 and
graduated from West China University of Medical Sciences
(currently known as West China Faculty of Medical
Sciences, Sichuan University) with a bachelor's degree in
medicine in 2002.

HMELE 415 ARBBEEERRES
TWE - HEMEER2018FIAMALRR
Al o MMAARRRR + HEAEERK2008F 10 A
F2018F3AMMAEER (KE) BRAANAE
EBRHFPBEEER  fARER - BR
EARBERER o M AR2008F RN
BUAKRE » EEBIFE LB R2005F 25
REBHAT RS BEASBBELEM IR
2002F ERERETBRARZ GRBIMJIIKE

SEERR)  EESBL R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT A

e
EY::

To the shareholders of China Resources Medical
Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (the
“"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 101 to 259, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or
income, the

loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B B R E
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

and we have fulfilled our

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements section of our

consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

ERNER
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APERDETTER - WAEXFEA AR
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Key audit matter

BRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEHEESPROAEHN

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

BERABRIEHFHEHREEZHETFE
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives as at 31 December 2020 were
RMB1,471,868,000 and RMB1,252,429,000,
respectively. The impairment tests performed by
management regarding the cash-generating units
("CGUs") to which the above assets were allocated
involved significant judgement for the determination
of the recoverable amounts of the CGUs.
R2020F12 A EEENAERAERFHIELE
EDRAARK1,471,868,000T kK AR
1,252,429,0007T - EREM DM EENEEZRETE
FE(TREEEBM]DETORENRD KRREE
WEeEEELA A YE S FEEL S X FIE -

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude,
the complexity, and the management’s estimates
involved in the impairment testing. The accounting
policies and related disclosures are
notes 2.4, 3, 17 and
financial statements.
ESNRERR S RNEE - BT NERE BN
M ERARESFE SRR MEEARBERAREGS
SR ERNE2.4 -3 17K%18

included in
18 to the consolidated

Our relation to impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives included:

HFpiEE R AERAERFN B EE 2RERT
BATAITIEF B4

procedures in

o Evaluating the independent valuers’
competence, objectivity and qualifications;

o EBUMEMZBERN FEUEREE:

° Involving our internal valuation specialists to
assess the discount rate applied underpinning
the discounted cash flow models by
performing re-calculations based on market
data and certain company specific parameters,
as well as evaluating the reasonableness of
parameters applied by the independent
valuers;

e  EBERABHEZRR  REMSEENIET AR
T2 BTENEE  UFEHRESRER
RETAMARE - WA BB (EEMAZ28H
M

° Evaluating the reasonableness of other key
assumptions, such as growth rate and inputs
included in the financial forecast, by
comparing to historical performance and
industry data;

o HIBERE MITERIR - ARHEMETERIFT A
Hith F 2RBOINBREUARBAENSIRN

° Performing sensitivity analysis and evaluating
the adequacy of disclosures of impairment

assessment.
o ETHREDTUNLFERENGZKENTR
o

ERBRERERLAR —T_TFH
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Key audit matter

RRET SR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREESTFROMEHD

Accounting for business combinations
EBEOHETIEE

As disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group completed several business
combinations of hospitals during the year. As at the
respective dates of business combinations, the
aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired amounted to approximately
RMB939,576,000, goodwill of approximately
RMB8,257,000 and gain on bargain purchase of
approximately RMB9,428,000 were recognised
arising from the business combinations. The Group
engaged certain independent professionally qualified
valuers to perform the purchase price allocations on
the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in the business
combinations.

MR B RRM 422 KE - FA BEXETK
ZHEBREBEH NEXKAHEH  MKRBAHE

R EEFENANBEERTENAREI39,576,0007T *
e ARG 257,000 MBI IO ARE
9,428,000 T * TAXBKEHMER - BESBEDZHE
ETBYUBRENSERMGERM RBEKSHFFRATK
B RANEENTAENBEN AR BEETEE
BEI&DH -

This is a key audit matter due to the magnitude of
the balances involved and the significant
judgements and estimates involved in (i) the
assessment of whether the Group has obtained
control over the hospitals and whether the Group
has the practical ability to direct the hospitals’
relevant activities unilaterally; (ii) the identification of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and (iii) the
determination of the fair values of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

AR EFEE  REZS R eEAEEEY K
TRIEHEAHE KA () M EEERTAESG
BEreirtlE ket NE T HESBRAMEEN
BB 5 (i) FTWIB B E RFTAEBER R - Kii)
EEFKEBARNEERMEAEEENAREE -

The accounting policies and related disclosures of
the business combinations are included in notes
2.4, 3 and 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.
EBEHNSH B RAER BN G E M HRE W
F$2.4-3K42-0

Our procedures in relation the accounting for
business combinations included:

BPIEB AN ST REMATREFEHE

o Examining the terms of the relevant sale and
purchase agreements, service contracts and
other related documents to assess
management’s judgement that the Group
obtained controls over the hospitals;

o FEREWMEEWNZ  REBEERNREMBREXIAN

R ARHEEREY SSEEGEBE g
P YE &Y #I 1R
o Involving our internal valuation specialists to

evaluate the valuation methodologies adopted
and the assumptions used to determine the
fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed;

e  ERAMBEERR  FTEAERANMGERENRE
ERMREBAI SR EEMEAZEEBEN AR EBEM
R RER

o Evaluating the independence, objectivity and
competence of the external valuers engaged
by management; and

e IEEEEZEMIINBMEEMAE I T8
KEEsE S K

o Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in
connection with the business combinations.

e HERMEBAMELOBRERTRD °
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

information.

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

is to

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

BB RS
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

BB RS
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’'s report is Wong Tsz Tat.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS A
SERIEE|KR

Year ended 31 December 2020 # Z=2020F 12 A31HIEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 7 AREETIT AREFIT
REVENUE Yo & 5 2,750,650 2,115,320
Cost of sales & AR (2,114,143) (1,353,029)
Gross profit E 7 636,507 762,291
Other income HEbigA 6 104,310 75,270
Other gains and losses, net HEfb s R ESEFRE 7 28,958 (26,562)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (14,585) (16,135)
Administrative expenses THER (323,380) (237,434)
Finance costs % & A 9 (17,391) (16,942)
Impairment losses on financial TREERBESE
assets, net HER (19,937) (1,577)
Impairment loss on an other HEtEEEERERBE
intangible asset (3,588) —
Other expenses HEEA (7,677) (2,258)
Share of profits and losses of: FE(GF)E R &S
A joint venture —E& % A5 1,072 4,502
Associates RN 33,896 144
PROFIT BEFORE TAX i A A1) E 8 418,185 541,299
Income tax expense Fris i & A 12 (97,864) (140,665)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFE 320,321 400,634
Attributable to: fEfL
Owners of the parent ISENEIEF=WN 310,131 390,865
Non-controlling interests FEFE R = 10,190 9,769
320,321 400,634
EARNINGS PER SHARE R RE R ER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO BB ARGEER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF Pl
THE PARENT 14
Basic (RMB yuan) ER(ART) 0.25 0.31
Diluted (RMB yuan) e (AR T 0.25 0.31
ERBRERERAT —T-TE% 101



A CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERERE

Year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 A31HIEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARBFT ARBTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F [ F)E 320,321 400,634
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hh 2 HEE
Other comprehensive loss that will REZEHBSTEERN
not be reclassified to profit or loss DEEERNHMW
in subsequent periods: FHEIE
Remeasurement losses on defined FEBAMFTBIME R
benefit plan =18 35 (4,194) (1,658)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FETHBALRE

FOR THE YEAR 316,127 398,976

Attributable to: AL -
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEPEWN 305,890 389,539
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 10,237 9,437
316,127 398,976
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A
e BRI EREK

31 December 2020 7202012 A31H

Notes

B &

2020
20204

RMB’000
ARETTT

2019

20194
RMB'000
AR TIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - WEREE 15 805,149 181,375
Right-of-use assets FTREEE 16(a) 240,483 156,050
Goodwill S 17 1,471,868 1,463,611
Other intangible assets HEmEEEE 18 1,345,623 2,035,762
Investment in a joint venture R—EEaRRIZEE 19 514,100 513,028
Investments in associates REE R 2" E 20 41,397 151
Receivables from invest-operate- KERE — E&E
transfer (“IOT") hospitals — B (T10T)) Bkx
2 P FRIE 21 77,214 80,979
Loan to a sponsored hospital ) — FiE] 2 e 4 B8 e 42 it
BB 22 51,197 55,062
Financial assets at fair value AR EBEFEAEE
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") et ABE AT AR
BETEEHESHH
A=) BemEE 23 92,718 113,485
Other financial assets at E M iR # sH K AN T =AY

amortised cost EREE 24 100,095 —
Deferred tax assets REFIIAE E 36 188 —
Other non-current assets HiIERBEE 25 76,269 76,269

Total non-current assets ERBEELTE 4,816,301 4,675,772
CURRENT ASSETS me & E
Inventories FE 26 142,035 62,121
Trade and bills receivables B E 5 5kIE K JE UK
=g 27 618,103 618,698
Contract assets EHEE 28 19,840 12,120
Prepayments, deposits and other EAFIE - REEK

receivables H i JE Y FRIE 29 372,395 219,783
Due from related parties JE Wt RA BSs 75 SR IB 46 5,472 9,384
Financial assets at FVTPL UArhEEFTEEH

HE ABEH
EREE 23 105,296 244,769
Other financial assets at E MR # sH K AN ET =AY

amortised cost EREE 24 164,927 25,114
Pledged deposits EHEBEFER 30 17,454 —
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEYD 30 2,701,370 2,006,220

Total current assets REEERLE 4,146,892 3,198,209
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Trade and bills payables B 5 3RIE M EA
& 31 564,125 241,303
Other payables and accruals oAt JE S BTE K FE AT
EH 32 577,102 252,120
Due to related parties & BB 5 3R IR 46 97,751 4,843
Payables to hospitals sponsored JERAREERY 2

by the Group (the “Sponsored Befr ([ERprAEEERL |)

Hospitals”) FIA 33 217,717 255,571
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITER 34 684,301 578,337
Lease liabilities HEEaE 16(b) 19,398 5,286
Tax payable JEAH & 46,792 46,795

Total current liabilities MBI EEEE 2,207,186 1,384,255
FERBERERERLAT —T _TFR
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> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI RE

31 December 2020 722020412 A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREETIT
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 1,939,706 1,813,954
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERREAE
LIABILITIES 6,756,007 6,489,726
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 16(b) 46,775 13,597
Retirement benefit obligations RIREFEE 35 47,323 18,120
Deferred tax liabilities R TBEE 36 317,615 317,834
Provision B 37 3,840 —
Total non-current liabilities IEnEaEERE 415,553 349,551
Net assets BEFE 6,340,454 6,140,175
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BRAEBEFEA
of the parent b=
Share capital &N 38 267 267
Reserves G 40 6,105,189 5,903,433

6,105,456 5,903,700

Non-controlling interests IR =R 234,998 236,475
Total equity BIER 6,340,454 6,140,175
Cheng Libing Ren Yuan
A= TE
Director Director
EF 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS A

me

BEREBHRK

Year ended 31 December 2020 &, £2020F12 A31H L F[E

Notes

B =

2020
20204

RMB'000
AREFT

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELZEHNIRE
ACTIVITIES /ﬁ%
Profit before tax D IEAINE 418,185 541,299
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs B E 9 17,391 16,942
Share of profits and losses of EiH—HeaEaRrR
a joint venture and associates B & 2 B EY A1 K
B8 (34,968) (4,646)
Interest and investment income FERIZEEWA 6 (79,930) (64,984)
Dividend income on a financial WAanBEmEAE
asset at FVTPL BT ABEN T
A& E RS WA 6 (2,618) (525)
Depreciation of property, plant and E &
equipment E 8 86,572 38,983
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 8 18,913 5,911
Amortisation of intangible assets mIEESE 8 7,897 18,750
Covid-19-related rent concessions HEARENFER
from a lessor SHEMESER 8 (1,791) —
Gain on bargain purchase o (5 I W 7 (9,428) —
Gain on lease termination ﬁﬁ‘f\?&tﬂﬁl 7 (341) —
Gain on lease modification HEET W 7 (15) —
Fair value losses on financial WAanBEFTEAE
assets at FVTPL B ABEN T
MEEAAEBE
B8 7 25,140 13,491
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N ZEFE 7 (44,314) 12,158
Loss on disposal of items of BEME - WEK
property, plant and equipment, RIEIEHE BEFE
net 7 = 795
Loss on liquidation of an associate —EBEARIEED
B a8 7 = 118
Equity-settled share-based payment RREREEURMD
expense RAXZ 39 8,721 13,083
Impairment losses on financial é?ﬂﬁ?ﬂ@ﬁ?@
assets, net R 19,937 1,577
Impairment loss on an other ET‘MHE/ BEERE
intangible asset &5 18 3,588 —
432,939 592,952
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLD,(Em) (23,294) 15,764
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills  [EUZ 5 7K I8 & UL
receivables ZyEE A (18 hn) 88,818 (120,973)
Increase in contract assets BHEER (7,720) (2,656)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEfTFIE - REFS K
deposits and other receivables H fth FE YR IE R A
(3 j][]) (782) 1,068
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due & B HE 75 s8R L
from related parties (#0) 3,912 (3,347)
Increase in trade and bills payables FET B 5 3k I8 & FE T
ERIZ N 82,013 17,221
Increase in other payables and ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁ KIE N FERT
accruals & 380 66,053 20,185
Increase in amounts due to related JEE 1<F A BSk 75 7R 1B
parties = 92,908 1,596
Decrease in retirement benefit RIKEMNEER D
obligations (1,309) —
Decrease in provision B (1,189) —
ERBRERERART —T-_TF®H 107



MEBRSREBE

> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2020 & £2020F12 A31HIEFE

Notes

2020
20204

RMB'000

B aE

ARBTT

Cash generated from operations KEMEXRESMRE 732,349 521,810
Interest received B W F| B 9,613 8,124
Income tax paid BT (98,274) (163,882)
Net cash flows from operating KE R RERE
activities FEE 643,688 366,052
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFEEZHHN
ACTIVITIES RenEg
Investment income on financial VN FQTEH‘EH,\
assets at FVTPL ZHTABEN DR
BERE W 55,746 44,279
Dividend received from a financial SN f’ifﬁﬁ'%ﬂﬁ
asset at FVTPL ZHTABEN DR
BEWE R R 2,618 525
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE - B&E LEE
and equipment HE (209,547) (36,365)
Proceeds from disposal of items of EEWE - ME KK
property, plant and equipment BB P15 5IE 7,399 3,710
Settlement of consideration for the Hﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ/éﬁﬂ’\]
acquisition of other intangible HELE
assets (8,000) —
Purchases of financial assets at BEIUAQ ﬁ{ﬁfﬁuﬁr;ﬂ
FVTPL HEB ABRD
TREE (6,336,405)  (5,635,000)
Proceeds from disposal of financial BRENAAREBETER
assets at FVTPL E@ééﬂ?)\%ﬁ?&ﬂ’]
TR & E P 6,741,505 5,715,000
Purchases of other financial assets at ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ?ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂi$
amortised cost ArEMNSREE (363,721) (52,174)
Proceeds from disposal of other B B H 0 IR #E S A R
financial assets at amortised cost AENSREEMS
TRIE 126,768 84,923
Repayment from |OT hospitals REIOTER 2R 13,353 9,022
Repayment from a Sponsored REBRPERB ZER
Hospital 5,893 —
Investments in associates i RN TZ&/\ (7,350) —
Proceeds from liquidation of an B N REE TS IA
associate = 23,619
Acquisition of non-controlling W B FE 128 AR 4 2
interests (67,503) —
Acquisition/consolidation of WHE, & BB A R
subsidiaries 42 117,216 —
Settlement of consideration for the WEEMT B A A&y
acquisition of subsidiaries HELE (190) (300)
Increase in pledged deposits [REEECE/6: il (17,417) —
Net cash flows from investing KREFRSFABERERE
activities FEE 60,365 157,239

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS <

mE

BERBHEX

Year ended 31 December 2020 # Z=2020F 12 A31HIEFE

Notes

B =

2020
20204

RMB'000
N

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING KERMEEHH

ACTIVITIES HeaRE
Proceeds from award of shares LR R BT B 12D

under the Share Award Scheme A% 17 & P15 K18 - 42,985
Sales of treasury shares & EFRGD 380 —
Advance from the Sponsored RERMFERBK

Hospitals 44(b) = 695
New bank borrowings FriRITE R 44(b) 455,237 92,941
Repayment of bank borrowings RITERHER 44(b) (315,438) (17,156)
Principal portion of lease payments HENKH AR LD 44(b) (8,683) (2,733)
Capital contributions by non- TR IEE

controlling shareholders 980 1,289
Capital contribution by a related — @B HEE

party 595 266
Dividend paid 2R E (115,092) (131,487)
Dividends paid to non-controlling SR T IEERRERE 2

shareholders &% 2 (10,634) (10,933)
Distribution upon deregistration of HHE—RENBE AR

a subsidiary b2l (507) —
Interest paid ENEAIESA (14,220) (16,833)
Net cash flows used in financing REEBSMARESRE

activities FER (7,382) (40,966)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 3¢ RIESESEYIE M

EQUIVALENTS HER 696,671 482,325
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNReRBEEEEY

beginning of year 2,006,220 1,524,176
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXFE B F5E

changes, net (1,521) (281)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FXxBEKRIREZEEY

END OF YEAR 2,701,370 2,006,220

EREBRERERAT —T-ZTFH
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A NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS MR MR

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

110

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office of the
Company is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, PO Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-
1002, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business
of the Company in Mainland China is located at 14/F,
Kunlun Center Office Building No. 5, Courtyard No. 9,
Fuyi Street, Fengtai District, Beijing, the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC").

During the vyear, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "“Group"”) were mainly
engaged in the provision of general healthcare
services, hospital group
purchasing organisation (“GPO") business and other
hospital-derived services in Mainland China.

management services,

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are disclosed in note 50 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong

and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

International

Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets at FVTPL which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

AT E R
EHBEERAERARNFASESEM
R BBREMEAR « AARIFMIHE
B2 b 3E A4th  Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, PO Box
10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands + 2N B1E AR B (A 1 Y
FTEEEMBARPEARLME ([F
EDtRmEsEETEHIFMRRE
mHROBFTE1418 o

REE KRR REWERE (5H
[AEE ) T2RERDBEAMIRHRELR
BERRE  REBKREERY  £E
REBAER ([GPO) XA R E M B B
DT AR ©

ARREEZMBRAZFBERIBRE
Fi FE 504K 55 ©

mBEE

BRMBEHRERBRRER G EAPES
S((EReTEEES ) ELNE
PR M5 s R ([ BB 53R 5 22 A1 )
(BREMAERM GRS EL  BiRe
AR (TBRERGEHER ) M) - &
BAREGTRAIREERBURD 2 KT
EXREE - RERNARABEAERR
BEETABaNEREEN BEYH
BRBRELKAERE - FRIFR NG
B BBERERAARETARE DS
H MERREMESRONTTAR
W o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSRRI EE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

2

2.1

2.2

BAS'S OF PREPARAT'ON (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative

translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if

the Group had directly disposed of the related assets

in other comprehensive income is

or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to Definition of a Business

IFRS 3

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
IFRS 9, IAS 39 Reform
and IFRS 7

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)
Definition of Material

Amendment to
IFRS 16

Amendments to
IAS 1 and IAS 8

2.1

2.2

R EXE )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the

impact of the Conceptual

Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the
revised IFRSs are described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the "Conceptual Framework”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and
parties to understand and
interpret the standards. The Conceptual
Framework new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance,
new guidance on the derecognition of assets and
liabilities, and updated definitions and recognition

assistance to all

includes

criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies
the roles of stewardship, prudence and
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting.
The Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and
none of the concepts contained therein override
the concepts or requirements in any standard.
The Conceptual Framework did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSRRI EE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a
business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to
create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process
is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-
free rate ("RFR”). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the introduction of the alternative RFR. In
addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about
their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the
change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change; (ii)
any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to
other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier

application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.
During the vyear ended 31 December 2020,

certain monthly lease payments for the leases of
the Group's buildings have been reduced by the
lessors as a result of the pandemic and there are
no other changes to the terms of the leases. The
Group has early adopted the amendment on 1
January 2020 and elected not to apply lease
modification accounting for all rent concessions
granted by the lessors as a result of the
pandemic during the year ended 31 December
2020. Accordingly, a reduction in the lease
payments arising from the rent concessions of
RMB1,791,000 has been accounted for as a
variable lease payment by derecognising part of
the lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating
or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information, or
both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PSRRI EE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to
IFRS 3

Amendments to
IFRS 9, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendments to

IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 (2011)
IFRS 17

Amendments to
IFRS 17

Amendments to
IAS 1

Amendments to
IAS 16

Amendments to
IAS 37

Annual
Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

adoption

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts® ®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and
IAS 412

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

5 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June
2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to
IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSRRI EE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate
to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon
designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the
entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an
entity to disclose additional information to enable users
of financial statements to understand the effect of
interest rate benchmark reform on an entity's financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate
the comparative information.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate as at 31 December 2020.
If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced
by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this
practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings when the “economically equivalent”
criterion is met and expects that no significant
modification gain or loss will arise as a result of
applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of
the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to |AS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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PSRRI EE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020
sets out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details
of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

° IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in |llustrative Example 13
accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and a joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been
a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associates or joint venture, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint venture is
included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint venture.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’'s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of
is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at FVTPL at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax
assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT'NG POL'CIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)
(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

2% to 5%

Over the shorter of
lease terms and 10%
10% to 20%

10% to 20%

20% to 50%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Medical equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings
and related leasehold improvements under
construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNT'NG POL'CIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Operating rights under 10T arrangements

The operating rights are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful economic lives of
16 to 48 years.

Sponsorship rights and service contracts

Sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite
useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Good Supply Practice licence for pharmaceuticals
(“GSP Licence”)

The GSP Licence is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its estimated useful economic life of 19 months.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets. At inception or on reassessment of
a contract that contains a lease component and non-
lease components, the Group adopts the practical
expedient not to separate non-lease components and
to account for the lease component and the associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms as follows:

Leasehold land
Leased properties
Medical equipment

50 to 60 years
1 to 9 years
1 to b years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that

triggers the payment occurs.

incentives

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g.,
payments resulting from a change in an index or

a change to future lease

rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’'s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business
model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
model are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

BF 75 3 2 B &

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

24 TEESTHEHE @

EHMEE @
HEEZRTE (&)
AEBEEREeMEENEBEAREN
T—JE.}E,H %ﬂ‘iﬁ?%%ifﬁﬁmi ° %
BEABTReRELSRAREEY
Berme HESHMEE IAMER
B LB AD BN ENERIEE
E-EEEEXTFE  HENEFAE

TREENEARBEZRE - TBR
FPREBEANSREE BRAAE
1EE+EH/H\ Ebu‘l’k*g/\/\\ \ _\;E D+
E

FIANERETAEEZEMEERRS
BAAREEARBEAHEEENH
Hi) O ELAERERR o L‘/{Eﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?—ﬁ‘é%
MIHHE HIE P —RRTE 2 HIR R
BEXNZERMEERSR -

H#E
CRMEEMNEZITZ2IURRNE * 1R
TR

BBHEAI B HEE (BHTR)

REHEN A ENEREERRERE
BRAZERTE - UAIBERERE - &
BEKILHER - BRTRER - Kk
EEN B RTER -

IR AEEGTEARSE A BB L
Eﬂﬁé
J//(i\\j_ﬁ{ﬁfau-l—iﬂﬁ @Ju"’)\TE E’](iéf

MEERDABERBBERRIERD
R-ManBEZSFANBRRE

—7J
s °©

ERBEERERLAT —ZT_TFWR

137



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSRRI EE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

138

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet
the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is
not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’'s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or
effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering

the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which

Stage 2 —
initial

the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs
Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

24 TESTHERE @

ERMEERE@®
— B ()

fid & # 1 E BHI90H » B AL ER
REBEEEN AWM EETHER
T AN ER R - 2 A
RAEBFRFHANEMEERTER
Al AEREDKAIGEEBREIRERES
WFIE - AIAKEARAEREEE
# e MEASEBHKESORER
B AMEERMEE -

R RN B S REAE TR
HEPLURE - I HBE TR ERE A
R EMEE AR P amEREty
FZEWESRARSWER)  HiE
m -

FIER — EREENEERREE
IR TR A 1R I 4 7R R I
m-HEEBREEER
REABHEEERD

EAE

F2fEBR — FEERRABRHERAK
BEE N (ELIEER
BENEMEE)  EEE
BRERSRE2HEHER
B E N 2 B E

RiE BRSEEREDN
TREE(EXIFBEX
HENEERESZRE
E) HBEBRBRBRER
EHMEMEREEENESR

ok

EI3MER —

ERBRERERAF

A

|
"
e

F

41



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSRRI EE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

142

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings) (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s
own equity instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to be that which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one vyear, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@) Provision of general healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of in-patient services
is recognised over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time when the
services are provided.

(b)  Provision of hospital management services

Revenue from the provision of hospital
management services is recognised over time
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)  Provision of hospital management services

(continued)

The service fees are calculated based on pre-set
formulas set out in the arrangements and certain
service fees are subject to limitations primarily
relating to the IOT hospitals’" and Sponsored
Hospitals’ net income before tax (U7 &5 %4) and/
or the performance rating assessments of the
Group. Such service fees are accounted for as
variable consideration and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of such service
fees because this method best predicts the
amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

(c) GPO business

Revenue of the GPO business generated from the
sale of medical products is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the medical products.

(d)  Provision of other hospital-derived services

Revenue from the provision of other hospital-
derived services is recognised at the point in time
when the consultation reports are issued to the
customer or when the consultation services are
completed.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

24 TEESTHEHE @

IBZ i ﬁﬁ (&)
EFEFERAKA ()
(b) IEEEFTEFERE (&)

RGE DIRZBEFE M TEE R
NETE  METHRBEXRNE
ZEBIOTERT KRS 571145135
BHR/IAEBRBER

iy o 1k EEEW%H—M’E%T%&E
AR WRHAR  BERRABE
R R R R EMREN T
HEME  EHERNIA RS
PRI gHEBEANKERED -
AEBGABHREEEGFTZE
REENERE  BR&H AR
BAREEERZENAERE
Eofeak: i

(c) GPOX%

i & B A mELENGPOX
Wi BEAEZSFBEERARRM
RBEEERHIRERGEETPRE

=7
o ©

(d) FEHRE M E L T L RE

T2 4 E At B8 Be 07 A4 AR 75 1Y U 25 72
MEFPEMZERSE HE ARG
EBZHTEED/L:\D

X B A b5 B A K 2
TH & WA TATE 49 B R 122 B ] B ) 2 i

—7.7
s °©

ERBEERERLAT —ZT_TFWR

149



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSRRI EE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

150

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources (continued)

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods
or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related
goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract
with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

() The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant
date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms
of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and share
awards is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan
which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The benefits are
unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension
plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability) and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of financial position with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at
the earlier of:

o the date of the plan amendment or curtailment;
and

o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plan (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under “cost of sales” and
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss by function:

o service costs comprising current service costs,
past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements

° net interest expense or income

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company's memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’'s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

24 FESHHEBME @

S

ZEMBHRERUARE (KRAFI® 8
EE)FER - AEERNSEREATET
REWNEEE - Mt A B RBMBE®R
KWIEB AR B E o KEI
NEBLENINER VIR 5
BANS B EBERALR - M%%
FMEMEBEEREBRERREHHEEE
HE A EKIERRE - £HRHR
HEBHEEELENEBNIBERRER
AN L X ANFT ERIIEE IR B iR &
MRS ERMERBE o

%Fi@l\ﬁTF”‘ﬂE’]%ﬁE;ﬁ%ﬁ/\Eﬁ%
SN EH - RIESRAER - Et—r
Eﬁxmﬁﬁﬁg{f)}?Qb_A#&iﬁﬂﬁﬂ

HeERER  mESARE ﬁﬁﬁ?@
BRANRFAMETHERBESAR
o MEAMERZERNEMEEBEA
MR - WREE R BREBA RE - b
SRR - B EBINEISAERE
MEMEEWARLD - IR BRI

.
Ao

et B T SN SE 7% P E A B () 7 B DA S
WEMELNEEMBERRAENR
RBEFBOR /X EINRBHEOHEEM
BE WIRAREXRFHE -

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Control over the hospitals under IOT agreements

The Group entered into a series of IOT agreements
with certain not-for-profit hospitals and their sponsors
in which the Group agrees to make investments to the
hospitals and/or the sponsors to improve the medical
facilities of the hospitals in exchange for the right to
manage and operate the hospitals and receive
performance-based management fees for periods
ranging from 16 to 48 years. The operating rights are
expected to be transferred back to the hospitals or
their sponsors after the end of these periods.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)

Control over the hospitals under IOT agreements

(continued)

Management assessed whether or not the Group has
control over these not-for-profit hospitals through the
IOT agreements and whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the hospitals’ relevant
activities unilaterally. In making that judgement,
management considered the composition of the
internal governance bodies and certain committees
which oversee the operations of the hospitals. After
assessment, management concluded that the Group
does not obtain the decision making power under
these bodies and committees to direct the relevant
activities of the hospitals, and the Group does not
control these hospitals. Instead, these IOT agreements
are considered management contracts to generate
management service income.

Control over the hospitals under sponsorship rights
and service contracts

The Group acquired the sponsorship rights from other
parties and became the sponsor of certain not-for
profit hospitals. The Group also entered into a series of
service contracts with those not-for-profit hospitals in
which the Group agrees to provide management
services to the hospitals and receive management
fees. According to the service contracts, the
management fees to be received by the Group shall be
comprised of supply chain management service fees
and hospital management fees. The supply chain
management service fees were based on a certain
percentage of the procurement of the hospitals,
whereas the hospital management service fees were
based on certain percentages of the revenue and net
income before tax (M Z ##) generated by the
hospitals.

FESTHBHR G @

¥ o)
10T 2 T 4B ZE#E (&)

EEEENASERECHEE T HEEE
B ERRA S EIREE N RFHE A RE
ERBEBIOTHAEERZSIFENELR
ZEGIRE o IEH AR BEEEE
EBRBREENAMEARBLE TR
BEmMANK KB EER TEER
B AREREGZERBERZEEH
IR - IEE RS IAKHE
HHEMBRILEEHE - ZFI0T =
EMERRELEEERBERAZERS
e

ERERRHBERE T H &b

REBREMALTBEERE  KAE
TIEMBHEM T - AEBETREZF
FENERFTL—RIRBAR - &
it NEERERZ S BRI EIER
BRKEBERE - REBEARGER
AEBERNE RS mHEEEIERS
ENEREEBMARK o HEREIERS
EEARBEREBRENXEIOLLE
i & B ' 2 AR 75 B RV B R AE B 0 EL By
BERAEENW S MR EHRETE -

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Judgements (continued)

Control over the hospitals under sponsorship rights
and service contracts (continued)

Management assessed whether or not the Group has
control over these not-for-profit hospitals through the
sponsorship rights and service contracts and whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the
hospitals’ relevant activities unilaterally. In making that
judgement, management considered the composition
of the internal governance bodies and certain
committees which oversee the operations of the
hospitals. After assessment, management concluded
that, other than the hospitals disclosed in note 42 to
the financial statements, the Group does not obtain the
decision making power under these bodies and
committees to direct the relevant activities of the
remaining hospitals, and the Group does not control
these hospitals. Instead, these service contracts are
considered contracts to generate service income.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the fair value less costs of disposal of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the fair value less costs of disposal requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill was
RMB1,471,868,000 (2019: RMB1,463,611,000). Further
details are given in note 17.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the healthcare sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in note 27 and note 28 to
the financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of
sponsorship rights and service contracts

The Group’'s management estimates that the useful
lives of the sponsorship rights and service contracts of
the hospitals are indefinite. This estimate is based on
an analysis of all of the relevant factors, such as the
expected useful life of similar nature and functions, the
period of control over the right and legal or similar
limits on the use of the rights (including the ability to
renew the service contracts upon their maturity
through the sponsorship rights to appoint
representatives in the board of trustees of the
Sponsored Hospitals), and the useful life is dependent
on the operation periods of the hospitals. Based on
this analysis, the Group’s management considers that
there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the right is expected to generate net cash inflows for
the Group.

The carrying amounts of the sponsorship rights and
service contracts are reviewed to assess whether their
recoverable amounts have declined below their carrying
amounts annually. The recoverable amount is
determined based on the cash-generating unit to which
the sponsorship rights and service contracts have been
allocated, which is the higher of the value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. The impairment
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit, which has taken into account the estimation of
expected future cash flows of service contracts, and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised to
write the assets down to its recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
sponsorship rights and service contracts was
RMB1,252,429,000 (2019: RMB1,844,203,000). Further
details are disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Measurement of identifiable net assets for
purchase price allocation

Business combination requires an extensive use of
accounting estimates to allocate the purchase price to
the fair market values of the assets and liabilities
purchased. Determining the fair value of property, plant
and equipment and financial assets at FVTPL at the
date of business combination of business requires the
Group to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect its consolidated financial statements.

Any difference in the purchase price and the fair
values of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as either goodwill in the consolidated
statement of financial position or gain on bargain
purchase in profit or loss. The Group’s business
acquisitions have resulted in goodwill, which is subject
to yearly impairment testing and whenever there is an
indication that goodwill may be impaired. The Group
also assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. Further details
are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Hospital management services containing variable
consideration

The Group’'s management estimates the service fees
from the hospital management services, which contain
variable consideration. The relevant service fees are
recognised based on pre-set formulas set out in the
arrangements and subject to limitations primarily
relating to the IOT hospitals’ and Sponsored Hospitals'
net income before tax (YZZ & #) and/or the
performance rating assessments of the Group. Where
the finalised net income before tax (U7 &%) is more
or less than expected, or the finalised performance
ratings of the Group are higher or lower than
expected, the difference between the finalised revenue
and the estimated revenue is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their services and has four
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Consolidated hospitals — this segment engages
in the provision of out-patient and in-patient
services;

(b)  Unconsolidated hospitals — this segment engages
in the provision of services to the unconsolidated
hospitals;

(c) |OT/operate-transfer (“OT") hospitals — this
segment engages in the provision of services to
IOT hospitals and an OT hospital; and

(d) Others — this segment engages in the provision
of services to other kinds of clients.

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
facilitating decision-making process of resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment
profit/loss, which is a measurement of adjusted profit/
loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss
before tax except that fair value gains/losses on
financial assets at FVTPL, dividend income on a
financial asset at FVTPL, gain on bargain purchase,
loss on liquidation of an associate, investment income
on financial assets at FVTPL, investment income on
other financial assets at amortised cost, unallocated
interest and investment income, unallocated
impairment losses on financial assets, net, equity-
settled share-based payment expense, unallocated
finance costs, foreign exchange differences, net,
unallocated share of profits and losses of a joint
venture and associates as well as other unallocated
income, other unallocated administrative expenses,
other unallocated expenses and losses are excluded
from such measurement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment assets exclude goodwill, unallocated
investments in associates, financial assets at FVTPL,
other financial assets at amortised cost, cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

ReEFTTFER @
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The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue
and results, and assets and liabilities by reportable and
operating segments.

Pk E S E S

Consolidated Unconsolidated |0T/0T

Segment revenue and results

hospitals
BRER

hosp\tals
3;5’:

P E

RMBOOO
ARETTL

hospitals

IOT/OTE R
RMB’000

BT

Others
Hith
RMB'000

ARBT

Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ2020512A31ALEE
External revenues 9\‘54&@1
General healthcare services GEBERE 1,643,620 - - - 1,643,620
Hospital management services BREERE - 47,889 31,012 - 78,901
Third-party supply chain service fees %EHT#\JE%H % 31,076 77,607 71,603 - 180,286
GPO business GPO%7% = 163,267 658,241 - 821,508
Other hospital-derived services Hih BRTARE = = = 26,335 26,335
Inter-segment revenue ’\*BFWme
Hospital management services ERR% 58,957 - - - 58,957
GPO business GPO%?% 184,404 = = - 184,404
Other hospital-derived services HEi BRITERS 4,310 - - 2,865 7,175
Segment revenue A 1,922,367 288,763 760,856 29,200 3,001,186
Eliminations s (247,671) - - (2,865) (250,536)
Consolidated revenue RakE 1,674,696 288,763 760,856 26,335 2,750,650
Segment cost DEEA (1,379,012) (148,670) (566,051) (20,410) (2,114,143)
Other income Hiplh A 14,075 — 9,588 5,526 29,189
Other gains Hihzm 356 - - - 356
Selling and distribution expenses HERNHER (2,639) (3,641) (7,921) = (14,201)
Administrative expenses THER (151,255) (6,551) (33,641) (10,374) (201,821)
Finance costs BHBER (2.422) = = (22) (2,444)
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & REEREFETE (18,258) - (1,920) - (20,178)
Impairment losses on an other intangible ~ EMEFAEREER

asset = = (3,588) = (3,588)
Other expenses Eﬁﬁ%ﬂ% (7,173) = = (219) (7,392)
Share of profit of a joint venture FE1E— Fﬁlé\%’/} W‘J?f’ﬁ = 1,072 = = 1,072
Share of profits of associates FE(GE & 2 RIFE = - 34,047 - 34,047
Segment results A‘Bﬁj‘z 128,368 130,973 191,370 836 451,547
Fair value losses on financial assets at AR BEEEEZE;AER

FVTPL MEMEEALBERR (25,140)
Dividend income on a financial asset at AR BENEREZE;AER

FVTPL NEREENREMA 2,618
Gain on bargain purchase muﬂzﬂﬁuﬁzm 9,428
Investment income on financial assets at ~ ARABEIEBEEEABL

FVTPL NEREERE W 55,746
Investment income on other financial ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ

assets at amortised cost K& s 2,955
Unallocated interest and investment RPBEFEREERA

income 11,641
Unallocated impairment losses on APECRHEERNESRTE

financial assets, net Pz
Equity-settled share-based payment RESEENURDERAR

expense (8,721)
Unallocated finance costs KOEHBER (14,947)
Foreign exchange differences, net EXERER 44,314
Unallocated share of losses of associates KA B EEEENFERE (151)
Other unallocated income HiRAERA 2,161
Other unallocated administrative kA RITBER

expenses (113,222)
Other unallocated expenses EkHEER (285)
Profit before tax BATFE 418,185
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &R# 5 3EE w

(continued)
DEME R EE @

Consolidated Unconsolidated |0T/0T
hospitals hospitals hospitals Others
I0T/OT &t Hith
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT

Segment revenue and results (continued)

fxBR

RMB'000
ARETTL

RMB'000
ARETTT

RMB'000
ARETTT

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE2019512B3N1ALLEE
External revenues shEpas
General healthcare services GEBERE 721,055 — - — 721,055
Hospital management services BRRERRE - 134,029 98,600 — 232,629
Third-party supply chain service fees FoRHREEREE 23,077 100,164 91,610 - 214,851
GPO business GPO#R — 191,919 716,891 — 908,810
Other hospital-derived services HinBhITE RS - — — 37,975 37,975
Inter-segment revenue PEEKE
GPO business GPO%£7#% 199,867 — - — 199,867
Other hospital-derived services E i BB 74 IR 475 - - 661 1,136
Segment revenue panitlie 944,474 426,112 907,101 38,636 2,316,323
Eliminations B (200,342) — - (661) (201,003)
Consolidated revenue GAals 744,132 426,112 907,101 37,975 2,115,320
Segment cost PERA (551,995) (173,902) (607,856) (19,276)  (1,353,029)
Other income A 1,655 - 10,206 4,584 16,445
Other losses e R0 3 (790) - - - (790)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (2,412) (4,389) (8,924) (25) (15,750)
Administrative expenses THER (65,043) (6,715) (20,298) (7,059) (99,115)
Other expenses B (836) - - (1,125) (1,961)
Segment results PEHEE 124,711 241,106 280,229 15,074 661,120
Fair value losses on financial assets at AR EEFEAEZBHAR

FVTPL nMeREEA L BEER (13.491)
Dividend income on a financial asset at WAL BEGFEEEZEHAAR

FVTPL BNEREENREBA 525
Loss on liquidation of an associate —HHENAEENER (118)
Investment income on financial assets at ~ WAAEEFEEEEH:; AR

FVTPL BNEREERE NS 44,279
Unallocated interest and investment KRABRFBREERA

income 10,499
Impairment losses on financial assets, net ~ &BEEFAEEEFR (1,577)
Equity-settled share-based payment REZEEURDARAX

expense (13,083)
Finance costs HEER (16,942)
Foreign exchange differences, net EXERFH (12,158)
Share of profit of a joint venture -5 g AR5 4,502
Share of profits of associates E(EE & ARFE 144
Other unallocated income HiRAERA 3,522
Other unallocated losses Rk pERER (5)
Other unallocated administrative Hth R ARITHER

expenses (125,621)
Other unallocated expenses EARSPBER (297)
Profit before tax BATFE 541,299
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(« o /

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(continued)

EF =

THEERAER

Consolidated  Unconsolidated |0T/0T
hospitals

Segment assets and liabilities

hospitals
EHRER
RMB'000
ARBTT

hospitals Others
|0T/OT &% Eft
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBETT  ARETET

HEBER
RMB'000
ARET T

RMB'000
AREBTT

As at 31 December 2020 R20205125318
Segment assets AHEE 1,507,956 2,026,513 731,302 70,173 4,335,944
Goodwill Bk 1,471,868
Financial assets at FVTPL AR BEFERAZETAER
NEREE 198,014
Other financial assets at amortised cost HitRBER AT ENEREE 265,022
Cash and cash equivalents and pledged ReRReSENURBERER
deposits 2,718,824
Corporate and other unallocated assets RRREMKAIREE 270,755
Elimination of inter-segment receivables D EEKFERE (297,234)
Total assets BEE 8,963,193
Segment liabilities NHakE 1,025,537 217,659 22,602 71,324 1,337,122
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERTER 684,301
Corporate and other unallocated liabiliies AR RHEMANEEE 898,550
Elimination of inter-segment payables PHEBENFERE (297,234)
Total liabilities Baf 2,622,739

Consolidated  Unconsolidated
hospitals

hospitals
HRBR  FHRE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARKTR

10T/0T
hospitals Others

I0T/OTE bz Hith
RMB'000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARBTR

RMB'000
ARETT

As at 31 December 2019 R2019E12A31A
Segment assets NHEE 466,364 2,590,291 868,644 67,021 3,992,320
Goodwill ?ﬁ%‘i 1,463,611
Investments in associates REERRERE 151
Financial assets at FVTPL /‘EFEJEHEQQJJ\TEJ&&

NemEE 358,254
Other financial assets at amortised cost HtRBER AT ENEREE 25,114
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEED 2,006,220
Corporate and other unallocated assets AR REMANEEE 231,614
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 2 E8 A FE M BRI 3 (203,303)
Total assets BEE 7,873,981
Segment liabilities HHEE 201,285 258,791 10,108 59,570 529,754
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERTER 578,337
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ~ R AIREMKAEEE 829,018
Elimination of inter-segment payables PHEEENFERE (203,303)
Total liabilities Bag 1,733,806
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &% 9 3%&EX wm)

(continued)
Geographical information ithEE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) RKREINBEFHKA
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETIT AREETIT
Mainland China/the PRC R R, 2,750,650 2,115,320
The revenue information above is based on the LA BB AR AE
locations of the customers. A o
(b) Non-current assets (b) FREBEE
The Group's operations are located in the PRC REBZEEFHUNAR - E
and substantially all of the Group's non-current REXREE 2 2EERBEEY
assets are located in the PRC. RLAFFE -

ERBRERERAF

A

|
"
B

&
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5. REVENUE 5. W&
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wes oA -

2019
20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AREETIT
Revenue from contracts with EEARWA
customers 2,750,650 2,115,320
Revenue from contracts with customers ZEEERWA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) Wz BRI B
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12H31HiFF/E

Other

General Hospital hospital-

healthcare management GPO derived
services services business services Elimination

maBRE Bk &
o7 GPOX® (14K B it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETE

Types of goods or services EEEY
General healthcare services FRBRRY
In-patient FhARE 763,313 = = = = 763,313
Out-patient PR 880,307 = = = = 880,307
1,643,620 - - - - 1,643,620
Hospital management services BREBERE
From consolidated hospitals REHERER = 58,957 - - (58,957) -
From unconsolidated hospitals REFHRER - 47,889 - - - 47,889
From 10T hospitals REIOTER - 21,717 - - - 21,717
From an OT hospital RE—HEOTER - 9,295 - - - 9,295
From third party suppliers (note) REE=HEER (HE) - 180,286 - - - 180,286
= 318,144 = = (58,957) 259,187
GPO business GPO¥#%
From consolidated hospitals REHKRER - - 184,404 - (184,404) -
From unconsolidated hospitals REFHRER - - 163,267 - - 163,267
From 10T hospitals KEIOTER - - 658,123 - - 658,123
From an OT hospital RE-FOTER - - 18 - - 118
= = 1,005,912 - (184,404) 821,508
Other hospital-derived services H it 8B 67 £ FRAS = = - 33510 (7,175) 26,335
Total At 1643620 318144 1005912 33510  (250536) 2,750,650
Timing of revenue recognition BRAKENEE
A point in time X (RRS 880,307 - 1,005,912 33510 (191,579) 1,728,150
Over time R—BEHERN 763,313 318,144 = = (58,957) 1,022,500
Total &t 1,643,620 318,144 1,005,912 33,510 (250,536) 2,750,650
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22
5. REVENUE (continued) 5. L&ﬁﬁ(,‘.‘ﬁ)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEREWKA @
(continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (a) WmEHFBHH &)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12A31 HiFFE
Other
General Hospital hospital-
healthcare management GPO derived
services services business services  Elimination
% Bk GPO%7% i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARE ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETET
Types of goods or services BRARBER
General healthcare services FEBERY
In-patient bR 297,784 — — — — 297,784
Out-patient P2 R% 423,271 - - - - 423,271
721,055 — — — — 721,055
Hospital management services BREERE
From unconsolidated hospitals REFHEER — 134,029 — — - 134,029
From 10T hospitals KEIOTER — 92,940 — — — 92,940
From an OT hospital RE—HOTER — 5,660 — — — 5,660
From third party suppliers (note) REE=FHER (M) — 214,851 - — — 214,851
— 447,480 — — — 447,480
GPO business GPO¥#
From consolidated hospitals REHRER — — 199,867 — (199,867) —
From unconsolidated hospitals REFHRER - - 191,919 - - 191,919
From 10T hospitals KEIOTER — — 716,891 — — 716,891
— — 1,108,677 — (199,867) 908,810
Other hospital-derived services HitBRATERS - — - 39,111 (1,136) 37,975
Total &t 721,055 447,480 1,108,677 39,111 (201,003) 2,115,320
Timing of revenue recognition BRANENEE
A point in time MR AR 423,271 — 1,108,677 39,111 (201,003} 1,370,056
Over time R—BRERA 297,784 447,480 — — — 745,264
Total s 721,055 447,480 1,108,677 39,111 (201,003) 2,115,320
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5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Note:

The Group entered into agreements with its third party suppliers
for the joint development of a regional integrated pharmaceutical
and/or medical consumable supply chain management system (the
“Supply Chain Joint Development Agreements”). The Group
provides supply chain management services to suppliers and
recognises relevant revenue based on pre-set formulas set out in

the Supply Chain Joint Development Agreements.

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

General healthcare services

Revenue from the provision of general healthcare
services is mainly derived from hospital services
provided at the hospital, which is recognised
when the related services have been rendered to
customers.

For in-patient services, customers normally
receive in-patient treatment which contains
various treatment components that are all highly
interdependent and regarded as a single
performance obligation. The period of in-patient
services is usually within nine days. Since the
patient simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits of the Group’s performance in the
medical treatment, the relevant revenue of in-
patient services is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. The progress towards the complete
satisfaction of performance obligation is
measured by direct measurements of the value of
individual products or services transferred by the
Group to the customer.

Revenue from the provision of out-patient
services is recognised at a point in time, i.e.
when the services are provided.

5. W&
ZEEERWA @

(a) Wz EH HH (&)

(b)
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REVENUE (continued) 5. u&ﬁ_é(%)

Revenue from contracts with customers EFEREWKA @

(continued)

(b) Performance obligations (continued) (b) E#H = &)
Hospital management services Bl B IR%
The Group provides comprehensive hospital AEE R E I&:T;ﬂ,\, EERER
management services to the 10T hospitals, the R mEMIOTER - S2iiEE
Sponsored Hospitals and an OT hospital and bt & —FHOTE FEH&HX IR E o K

receives a management fee from each of the
hospitals. The Group also receives supply chain
management service fees from third party
suppliers through setting up a supply chain
management system.

For the hospital management services rendered
on various aspects of daily operations of the
hospitals mentioned above, the contracts contain
multiple deliverables. As such services have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer, it is
therefore regarded as a single performance
obligation.

Revenue from the provision of hospital
management services is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. The progress towards the
complete satisfaction of performance obligation is
measured by direct measurements of the value of
the services transferred by the Group to the
customer. The relevant revenue is recognised
based on pre-set formulas set out in the
arrangements and subject to limitations primarily
relating to the IOT hospitals’" and Sponsored
Hospitals’ net income before tax (U7 &5 %4) and/
or the performance rating assessments of the
Group.

The Group receives the payments of service fees
on a quarterly or yearly basis after the provision
of the services. A contract asset is recognised
where the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer is conditional.

ERBRERERAF

SEEBEY —EftEEE R
BENE = H R W E R
BERBE -

RER LB EREESTE
MEBREERBMS  AHNERE
ZHEINORR - ARAEP
BENEHRBHRAAR - &K
WESE—BOERK -

U B EE RGN KR IEL
ERKZEHNEBHNEER  RE
HWHAR NRER - TEHEBH
EETIARE B A% P EERE
FTEZTENEETE - HEK
=R T ES IR E A A
B XEREEFRIOTERR NS
MBS SRR A EE
ZREFLE -

REHEERSGR  AEERE
FTEXEBFWIRREGEBNRK -
HARERIB|AKECREP
BRORFEDKENEFNRE
iR - RIERBHWEE -

—E-EFFR
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5.

REVEN U E (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (continued)
Hospital management services (continued)

The estimated amounts of variable consideration
are updated to reflect changes in factors that
attributes to the measurement of consideration
for the performance obligations satisfied.

GPO business

The Group derives revenue from the sale of
products,
medical devices and medical consumables, to the

medical such as pharmaceuticals,
consolidated hospitals, unconsolidated hospitals,
the IOT hospitals and other external customers.
Revenue from GPO business is recognised when
control of medical products is transferred to the
customer, i.e. when the medical products are
delivered and simultaneously accepted by the

customer.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
accepted as this is the point of time when the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Other hospital-derived services

It mainly represents the provision of professional
medical The
revenue is recognised at a point in time, i.e.

consultation services. relevant
when the consultation reports are issued to the
customer or when the consultation services are
completed.

5. Yz @

EEEERWA @)

(b) BHZHH (&)
B2 = AR 7K (48)
AEREBNGIEHEEETED
TRENEHRZREFENEE
RSB MEHT ©
GPOZ 7%
REBERAHRER JEHFRE
Bt « IOTER M EMINIRFIHE
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6. OTHER INCOME 6. HtlwA

Interest and investment income on:
Financial assets at FVTPL

2020
20204

RMB'000
ARETT
MERMIZEWA
NAnEBEAERHR

2019
20194

RMB'000
ARMT T

BEE ABRN SR
BE 55,746 44,279
Other financial assets at amortised HA R IR ARG 21
cost TREE 2,955 —
Receivables from 10T hospitals REIOTE R 2 el
NIE 9,588 10,206
Bank deposits RITFER 9,613 8,124
Loan to a Sponsored Hospital M — R B R
& & 2,028 2,375
Dividend income on a financial asset WARBEFAEEEE
at FVTPL ABENEREERN
fi&% B U A 2,618 525
Government grants IR B 3,772 —
Others HAth 17,990 9,761
104,310 75,270

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7.

RMB'000
AREF T

Hibl = K 18 F 8

2020
20204

2019
20194

RMB’000
ARET T

Gain on bargain purchase EEWERE 9,428 —

Gain on lease termination LIEEER = 341 —

Gain on lease modification HEZE Wa 15 —

Fair value losses on financial assets at AR BEEHEEE

FVTPL FRABEHNEREER

nEEEE (25,140) (13,491)

Foreign exchange differences, net MENZEFE 44,314 (12,158)
Loss on disposal of items of property, BREWE  WENZREE

plant and equipment, net B EEF5E - (795)

Loss on liquidation of an associate —HE R R EEREE = (118)

28,958 (26,562)

EHBRERERAT —T-TF®H 175



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. TAIFHE
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after AEBEOBATFE &M, (GEA) A
charging/(crediting): THESFSH :

2020 2019
20204 20194

Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B3 AREEFIT AR T IT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKK 1,469,284 1,094,564

Depreciation of property, plant Y% - B RE&E

and equipment e 15 86,572 38,983
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE

assets 16(a) 18,913 5,911
Amortisation of intangible assets  fE & E# Y

(included in cost of sales) (G ASHE R AN) 18 7,897 18,750
Total depreciation and TEREHES

amortisation 113,382 63,644

Lease payments not included in T EIERHEEE G

the measurement of lease ENHEENK
liabilities 16(c) 4,609 3,237
Auditor’'s remuneration A G A 3,770 3,010
Employee benefit expense BTREMZH
(including directors’ (BREEH)
remuneration) (note 10): (MFEE10) -
Wages, salaries, bonuses and ITE #He-
allowances TEAT R R 653,088 316,817
Equity-settled share-based REREE A
payment expense R 1 B S 8,721 13,083
Pension scheme contributions RIKEE B 23,088 25,482
684,897 355,382
Pending medical dispute FARABEFZRFD
litigation provision: B -
Additional provision BRSNS 37 1,052 —
Impairment of trade receivables, [EWE 5 FIERE
net FRE 27 20,432 781
Impairment/(reversal of SREERE/ CRE
impairment) of financial assets | (Gt ATER
included in prepayments, HIE - REESR
deposits and other receivables Hpth FE Y FTE) 29 (495) 794
Impairment of amounts due from  fEUREEEE 5 B
related parties VERED = 2
Loss on disposal of items of BEMHE WER
property, plant and equipment, RBIEEEIBFRE
net = 795
Covid-19-related rent HHEARHBIE
concessions from a lessor REREEES R 16(c) (1,791) —
Gain on lease termination HEKIERHE 16(c) (341) —
Gain on lease modification HEZE Wn 16(c) (15) —
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BIBEHR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: WBERI>TWET :

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE 13,012 15,027

Interest on payables to the Sponsored — JEf £ ¥ fEBa P k1B 2
Hospitals A B 765 879
Interest on lease liabilities HEREME 3,242 528
Others Hit 372 508
17,391 16,942

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EER ARz <
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the BBEBBHERIABERAA(TEH
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the B FT]) 7S EmARA - (BB RFHE
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong By & 383(1)(a) * (b) ~ (c) K (A1E M (A
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange"), A (BBRESEMNEZER) BAO)E2E -
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong BEEMBEFANHESEZELT -

Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

Group
KEE
2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETIT AR TIT
Fees e 1,836 1,823
Other emoluments: HAan e -
Salaries and allowances ezl 6,328 7,628
Bonuses TE4T 9,199 12,811
Equity-settled share-based payment RS E AR 3K
expense 3 2,067 2,352
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET B 57 237
17,651 23,028
19,487 24,851

[l
A
St
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERAB M w
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain
directors were awarded shares, in respect of their

B Z2019F12A3TH ILFE - REXR
REREBD R & - ETEFTERRK

services to the Group, under the Share Award Scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 39 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such shares, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the

B AR EHAEBORG  HFS
BEBA M B BEM 0 - 1 F R
B2 fo BB 1 BB AR A9 28 e v
R DEBTERE  AFEHEHRE
S EEE LN EERNERI S
HE -

amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ and
chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

(a) BUFHTES
FAXN FREIIFNTEENE

directors during the year were as follows: g (I N

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
AREEFIT AR T IT
Mr. Wu Ting Yuk Anthony HATE B 5 A
(RATE JB 5% )~ 887 879
Mr. Kwong Kwok Kong BB B e 5
(BB B 5 5 AF) 443 440
Mr. Lee Kar Chung (ZEREELA) FRELA 240 240
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing Kathy fi=herg il
(&) 266 264
1,836 1,823
* During the year, the Group recognised an equity-settled * FR - AEERABEBREERTH

B ERIZ RS EEARD A RAX
AE#1,069,0007T (20194F « AR#E
1,069,0007T) °

share-based payment expense of RMB1,069,000 (2019:
RMB1,069,000) in respect of the shares awarded to Mr. Wu
Ting Yuk Anthony.

FAMEEMEMNBLIFRNITE
=W (2019 : &) o

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2019: Nil).
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EEREAB M w
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non- (b) HITEERIIHITES
executive directors

Equity-settled

share-based Pension
Salaries and payment scheme Total
allowances Bonuses contributions remuneration
ey TE4L & ; HELGE ] 1
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT
Executive directors: HITES:

Mr. Song Qing (K& %) RERE - - 285 - 285
Mr. Cheng Libing (B 5E4) Bz ESE A 2,688 3,598 285 4 6,575
Ms. Ren Yuan (fEE % T) fFei+ 1,823 3,146 214 49 5,232
Ms. Fu Yanjun (1 #3E 2+) MEELL 1,817 2,455 214 4 4,490
6,328 9,199 998 57 16,582

Non-executive director: FUTES:
Mr. Wang Yan (EE 5% 4) TEEE = = = = =
6,328 9,199 998 57 16,582

Equity-settled
share-based Pension
Salaries and payment scheme Total
allowances Bonuses expense contributions remuneration

g LA
b= :ly PN 53 &l Bi< &5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARET:L

Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Song Qing (& 5%t %) REEE — — 285 — 285
Mr. Cheng Libing PR
(KL &5 ) 2,689 3,510 285 50 6,534
Mr. Han Yuewei BREL A
(BRELLE) 1,643 3,509 285 59 5,396
Ms. Ren Yuan (FEZ L) fFrat 1,585 3,114 214 78 4,991
Ms. Fu Yanjun ({33 2 +) MEELL 1,811 2,678 214 50 4,753
7,628 12,811 1,283 237 21,959
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Wang Yan (EE%4) TELE — — — — —
7,628 12,811 1,283 237 21,959
* On 15 October 2019, Mr. Han Yuewei resigned as an * M2019F 1041658 « B R E &k 4 B
executive director. ERITES -
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

11.

REMU NERAT'ON (continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable
by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office (2019: Nil).

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable (2019: Nil). No
consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services (2019:
Nil). There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
of the directors, their controlled body
corporate and connected entities (2019: Nil).

in favour

There was no arrangement under which a director or a
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year (2019: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2019: four) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2019: one) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

10. EERBEH M@

11.

FR - AEEBERNEE (N HENE
BN (F R EINAR KB INARSE
B 2 SRR S BRB AR B (2019%F : ) o

FA - WERKIEEERS M E B
BN EHRKER - Sk Flm
o S (T ] JE A BR (20194F - &) - R A
ARHEIREMNE=FRHENENE
WBR (20194  8) - REBARESE -
HIEHaEAEBMEEREEENHER
EERKEMR S (2019F : ) °

FAMEBEESIREMELRBREL
B & 1 % HF (2019%F + &) o

TfuEBeEHEER
FRNEMUGE=RHEESE =% (2019
FHBH)EE FEMSFBENE
AP EE10 - BEF R F M A (2019
F—R)maFEE (WIIEREAQRE
BBE) NS FBOT

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARETIT

Salaries and allowances HraeaEah 3,848 1,927
Bonuses TEAT 3,472 2,119
Equity-settled share-based payment LR AR TR
expense X 428 214
Pension scheme contributions (defined — R{R& 5 &K
contribution scheme) (A EHETED 8 50
7,756 4,310
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(continued)

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 8T E

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

M. AN ESFEE @

MEN T T BEBFEE RIFBHES
HEEHE -

Number of employees

BE2HE

2020
20204

2019
20194

4,500,0007% 7T 2 —

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,008 L&
5,000,0007% 7T — 1
2 1

During the year ended 31 December 2019, shares
were awarded to non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees in respect of their services to
the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 39 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such shares, which has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2019: Nil).

EHE2019F12831HILEE  shiEE
ERFBEE R REERNASERER
BERFESERTFRD  FBEHARY Bk
KW -ERNEBHEBRRRER
MO ARBEERETFREET -
FFARNFHBEHREN SRR WA Lt
EHFEEERIFBRERS T REENEH
W=

FA - AEBEEDOURSHEE SN
SEMEMMESEREMAREERR
AN SR BB 2 22D s RE R AR (5 (2019
FE)

ERBRERERAF

A

|
"
e

&
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

2. INCOME TAX

The PRC enterprise income tax has been provided at
the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on the estimated
assessable income arising in the PRC during the year.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2019: Nil).

Current — Mainland China

B — PR

12. Fr8 %

ERBEEAGTERRBAE  RARF
B BT RP B EFT15HR25% (2019
F:26%) AR AEENAFERL
EBERBELEDBFESHERTFE -
;&ti)ﬂuﬂm%‘ﬁéﬂ SR (2019

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARBETIT

Charge for the year rFEER 99,138 139,321
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHRERE (867) (116)
Deferred (note 36) IEIE (B 5E36) (407) 1,460
Total tax charge for the year AEREHEETE 97,864 140,665

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the PRC statutory tax rate to the tax
charge at the Group's effective tax rate is as follows:

R R B4 B3 3 0B AT
B AR B B R S AR B D BB
mF :

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT
Profit before tax 15t 7 ) 418,185 541,299
Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate of A EE FE R E25%
25% (2019: 25%) (20194 : 25%) Y
Hi1E 104,546 135,325
Lower tax rates enacted by specific BEREEREITHRIE
jurisdictions IR (1,029) 5,303
Adjustments in respect of current tax of  FLiBEHIR BN EAFIEE
previous periods R (867) (116)
Profits and losses attributable to a joint  JE{F— FEJ/\**“T&
venture and associates B RER (8,742) (1,162)
Income not subject to tax RETBUA (14,938) (3,145)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR B HR A X 15,478 6,561
Tax losses utilised from previous BEHREEANHEEE
periods (5,661) (16,003)
Tax losses not recognised RIERH TS BB 5,147 10,036
Others HAb 3,930 3,866
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax AEEARHEHNTHE
rate 97,864 140,665

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting
to RMB11,349,000 (2019: Nil) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

DIEBHERNTNTREBAHEARE
11349 0007T (20194 : ) B & E 4R
/CI\ Q*U/FEJ&JE’J'

1B Rk > [ (5 B A )
JO

o
il
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2020 AONES]
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Dividend recognised as distribution WRAERNFE AN
during the year: iR
Final 2019 — HK10 cents (2018: 20195 KRH — B
HK12 cents) per ordinary share TR0
(20184F = 127%4L) 119,218 136,767
Less: Dividend for shares held under & ARIBAR D SEEhET 2
the Share Award Scheme BERMDIORE (4,126) (5,280)

115,092 131,487

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET

Final dividend proposed after the end of R Hi K 18 #i# & < HA
the reporting period: fx 2
Proposed final 2020 — HK8.82 cents B 2020F RH —
(2019: HK10 cents) per ordinary T EREARS.828 1L
share (20194 : 107811) 114,367 129,668
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to REF RN S M A AR R RERE
the approval of the Company's shareholders at the B RITHRFRBF RS L4 & -

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY LEREAF

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per EREAREERBNDBBEATFHES
share are based on: o

Earnings 2R

Profit for the year attributable to REFtE ERER R EE
ordinary equity holders of the parent BB RRERE
for the purpose of the basic and BB ARLEFE
diluted earnings per share calculation b

2020
20204

RMB’000

ARETT

310,131

14. BRARIEERERTEAE

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET T

390,865

Number of shares
%5 21 B

2020 2019
20204 20194
‘000 ‘000
+ +
Shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary  F{EsIEEREAAREF
shares in issue during the year for MmEFHFAS BT
the purpose of the basic earnings per TR BB
share calculation 1,255,930 1,253,291
Effect of dilution — weighted average  fI#EFHEBE A &8
number of ordinary shares: -3
Shares awarded under the Share RIERR (7 SR EDET &I
Award Scheme e $) 5,140 1,495
Weighted average number of ordinary  FB{EstEERE S AT~
shares in issue during the year for I FEAB BT
the purpose of the diluted earnings LA EE
per share calculation 1,261,070 1,254,786
The weighted average number of shares used for the FRETE# £2020%F &% 20199612 A31
purpose of calculating the basic and diluted earnings BIEFEERERZFNMEFEZF 20
per share for the years ended 31 December 2020 and BETFHRMER - THE AL ZE
2019 has been arrived at after adjusting the effect of FEBRRBEERD I ERTER
shares repurchased and held under the Share Award e
Scheme.

184  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
BUE R E U

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BER&ZE

Leasehold Medical Motor Office  Construction
Buildings improvements i vehicles equipment  in progress Total
BF HEEEYR S B AR aE ERIR EH

RMB'000 RMB000 RMBOO0 RMB000 RMB000  RMBO00  RMB000
ARBTE ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETR

31 December 2020 2020128318
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A318 K

at 1 January 2020: 20201818 :

Cost B 75,413 94,031 144,494 3,525 45,535 25590 388,588

Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (47,156) (48,373)  (84,218) (2,163)  (25,303) - (207,213)

Net carrying amount RHEFE 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25590 181,375
At 1 January 2020, net of 20201 A18 - Mk

accumulated depreciation e 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25,590 181,375
Additions NE 117,906 4,983 48,153 602 13,562 27,299 212,505
Acquisition/consolidation of WiiE/ BB B AR

subsidiaries (note 42) (Px42) 298,846 12,321 149,334 7,854 13,411 23,474 505,240
Disposals RE (257) (6,019) (263) (9) (305) (546) (7,399)
Depreciation provided during the FRTERE

year (20,046) (11,765)  (42,797) (1,126)  (10,838) = (86,572)
Transfers B 15,453 14,329 1,303 - 2,547 (33,632) -
At 31 December 2020, net of 20205124318 « Mk

accumulated depreciation 2 E 440,159 59,507 216,006 8,683 38,609 42,185 805,149
At 31 December 2020: 12020512 A31R :

Cost &S 507,361 119,645 343,021 11,972 74,750 42,185 1,098,934

Accumulated depreciation 2 E (67,202) (60,138)  (127,015) (3,289)  (36,141) —  (293,785)

Net carrying amount FEEFE 440,159 59,507 216,006 8,683 38,609 42,185 805,149
31 December 2019 20195128318
At 1 January 2019 #2019F1 518

Cost HA 179,842 73,855 154,689 4,878 39,117 24,714 477,095

Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (66,065) (43,474)  (79,098) (2,768)  (26,327) — (217,732

Net carrying amount RHEFE 113,777 30,381 75,591 2,110 12,790 24,714 259,363
At 1 January 2019, net of R2019F1A18 - Mk

accumulated depreciation e 113,777 30,381 75,591 2,110 12,790 24,714 259,363
Additions NE 259 7,013 7,421 — 8,707 19,720 43120
Transfer to other non-current assets ~ BEZHMERFEE

(note 25) (FizF25) (76,269) - — — — - (76,269)
Disposals RE — 6) (3,537) (74) (888) (1,351) (5,856)
Depreciation provided during FAMERE

the year (6,856) (7,051 (18,556) (633) (5,887) - (38,983)
Transfers B (2,654) 15,321 (643) (41) 5,510 (17,493) -
At 31 December 2019, net of R2019512A318 « Mk

accumulated depreciation 2 E 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25590 181,375
At 31 December 2019: R2019F12 8318 :

Cost B 75,413 94,031 144,494 3,525 45,535 25590 388,588

Accumulated depreciation 2 E (47,156) (48,373)  (84,218) (2,163)  (25,303) —  (207,213)

Net carrying amount FEEFE 28,257 45,658 60,276 1,362 20,232 25590 181,375

EHBRERERAT —T-THFH 185



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR M
31 December 2020 2020412 A31H
16. LEASES 16. #HE
The Group as a lessee AEBEREBEA

AEERELERFERANBAETERESE
BREHEAREAR - —XMMBERE
DEAR AT EE R ESHEEH A0F &
BOFEMMAE L BREBEEL L
HGR - BEREBNRE - BABRE
HEMNHEHRBERBIEIF  BE
REHENHEHRRBE B1E5F -

The Group has lease contracts for office properties and
medical equipment used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the owners with lease periods of 50 and 60
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of office
properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 9
years and leases of medical equipment generally have
lease terms between 1 and 5 years.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHBEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use rEBEFAGAEEEREER
assets and the movements during the year are as FEWT

follows:

Leased Medical
properties  equipment
HEME EERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETRT

Leasehold
land Total

At
RMB'000
ARET T

BELH
RMB'000
ARBTR

At 1 January 2019 W2019%1 A1H 140,345 138 — 140,483
Additions NE — 21,478 — 21,478
Depreciation charge during FEWEER

the year (3,375) (2,536) - (5,911)
At 31 December 2019 and 20196124318 &

at 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 136,970 19,080 — 156,050
Additions NE 24,395 2,072 — 26,467
Additions as a result of RUE/ AoHEA

acquisition/consolidation of AR E (MFE42)

subsidiaries (note 42) 20,831 71,469 5,414 97,714
Depreciation charge during FEHEER

the year (3,639 (13,820 (1,454) (18,913)
Lease termination MEKIE — (19,836) — (19,836)
Lease modification — MEZTF — HEHE

Reduction in the scope of 2R

leases — (999) — (999)
At 31 December 2020 32020412 31 A 178,557 57,966 3960 240,483

M2020F12A31H K&
BHARGEEERARS
23,726,000 C K TH & L3 6 £ 4
EME -

As at 31 December 2020, the land use certificate
of a leased land with a carrying amount of
RMB23,726,000 was not yet obtained by the
Group.
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE @
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBERAEA @
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEAME
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the FAMEEENREERESN
movements during the year are as follows: ™

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 18,883 138
New leases & 2,072 21,478
Additions as a result of FSRE = 1) /NG
acquisition/consolidation of mARE (H5E42)
subsidiaries (note 42) 76,883 —
Accretion of interest recognised FREROFEL K
during the year 3,242 528
Covid-19-related rent concessions  HHAREAFIERFE
from a lessor A ER (1,791) —
Payments during the year FEMNK (11,925) (3,261)
Lease termination MEKIE (20,177) —
Lease modification — Reduction HEEE — HEHE
in the scope of leases oA (1,014) —
At 31 December M12HA318 66,173 18,883
Analysed into: DA
Current portion B ER&f 5 19,398 5,286
Non-current portion JEBNHA =6 7 46,775 13,597
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEBGENIHY T EMBEREK
disclosed in note 49 to the financial statements. M sE499 55 o
As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial MBS RERMIFE2.2FTHEE - A&
statements, the Group has early adopted the B B 12 5 R 4 B B B 7S R 5 ZE R
amendment to IFRS 16 and applied the practical F16MER] BT ERIITHY
expedient to all eligible rent concessions granted BEZERARFEFRALEARE
by the lessors for leases of certain properties LYENHEMKTHORRESE
during the year. REEESR -
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. *HE(?E)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEREHEA @
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (c) FHAEENSBRBERERNT :

to leases are as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB’000

AREETIT ARETIT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE 3,242 528
Depreciation charge of right-of-use {FAEEEMNTEER

assets 18,913 5,911
Expense relating to short-term B EREMNRAX
leases (included in cost of (BIEEHEHEXNAA)

sales) 362 —
Expense relating to short-term HEHHEEMNAX
leases (included in (BRETHEARN)

administrative expenses) 4,247 3,237
Covid-19-related rent concessions HHARENFERS

from a lessor HEREER (1,791) —

Gain on lease termination LIEEE R (341) —

Gain on reduction in the scope of & & Ej§ 4 < 2k
leases (15) —

Total amount recognised in profit R IEZFER M EEE

or loss 24,617 9,676

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in (d) TERSRLBELNBHREN
note 44(c) to the financial statements. T44c)P KR -

The Group as a lessor AEBEERAEHBEA
The Group leases certain buildings and office AEERBCEHERHNBEET 2
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Rental LY R RFRE o REBRFRERS
income recognised by the Group during the year was MW A B ARM1,549,0007T (2019
RMB1,549,000 (2019: RMB1,953,000). F . AR#1,953,0007T) °
At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease 202012 A31H » AEEBEFEEF
payments receivable by the Group in future periods I TR BUB K S ETE T fEARKHS
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants MA WA ARITRBEERNZTAT -

are as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETET
Within one year —FR 1,306 2,206
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

17. GOODWILL 17. B8

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB’000
ARETTT

RMB’000
ARBETIT

At 1 January: m1A18 :

Cost PR 3,191,110 3,191,110

Accumulated impairment ZEHRAE (1,727,499) (1,727,499)

Net carrying amount BREEFRE 1,463,611 1,463,611
Cost at 1 January, 1 A1BBIRA

net of accumulated impairment Mk 25 RE 1,463,611 1,463,611
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— B AR

(note 42) (Pfft5E42) 8,257 —
At 31 December M12H31H 1,471,868 1,463,611
At 31 December: M12H318 :

Cost DN 3,199,367 3,191,110

Accumulated impairment ZEHRAE (1,727,499) (1,727,499)

Net carrying amount BRMEE S5 1,471,868 1,463,611

Impairment testing of goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives

Goodwill acquired through business combinations and
sponsorship rights and service contracts with indefinite
useful lives with carrying amounts of
RMB1,463,611,000 (2019: RMB1,463,611,000) and
RMB1,252,429,000 (2019: RMB1,844,203,000) are
allocated to the cash-generating units of Ample Mighty
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (the "Ample Mighty CGUs") for
impairment testing. Goodwill acquired through the
business combination as disclosed in note 42 to the
financial statements with a carrying amount of
RMB8,257,000 is allocated to the cash-generating unit
of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Zhong Qi
CGU"), for impairment testing.

PR N R ] A R AY H At
BILEENRERNR

FBREBEHINE BRI RR
BeR(EBEERAIFERFEEH) K@
BEA AR®1,463,611,0007T (2019
: AR¥1,463,611,0007T) K AR
1,252,429,0007C (20194 : AR
1,844,203,0007T) ERREARRF 22
BB AR BERR AR RENB AR
MIRSELBEN ([ERRSELSEN])
VAVE R (BRI 5 o 40 B 7% R 3= I 51 42F7
BREAEBEFKRE L HE  REE
B ARS,257,0007C8 7 Bt & A QA
ZEEWBAREREABRBRAF
MWIRESELBN ([ERRSELSBNM])
LAPE R BRI -

EMBRERERAT —T-TFH
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190

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the Ample Mighty CGUs
have been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal calculations using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management and are within Level
3 fair value measurement. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 15% (2019: 15%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
Ample Mighty CGUs beyond the five-year period is 3%
(2019: 3%). This growth rate does not exceed the long
term average growth rates for the relevant markets.

The recoverable amount of the Zhong Qi CGU has
been determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal calculation using cash flow projection based
on financial budget covering a five-year period
approved by senior management and is within Level 3
fair value measurement. The discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections is 15% (2019: Nil). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
Zhong Qi CGU beyond the five-year period is 3%
(2019: Nil). This growth rate does not exceed the long
term average growth rates for the relevant markets.

17. BE @)

HERERUFERAEHRNEAM
EBREEENRENR@®

BN G EE BN AT B S5 TR
ERARBEREEEK AR METE -
ﬁﬁﬁ MRS REBANERSREEE
E%ﬁtm/@*ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬂ%ﬁ%’ﬁﬁ%&
AT E S EARNRBETENSE
=R - EARRERERANMIAERE
156% (20194 : 16% ) » AR IEET BB
TFH) ERBRSELEMZRERE
B 1% K & 53% (20194F : 3%) © 3% 1%
E;iTt BAEETS L REFIIIER

FRBReEEBU 2 JWESRETIRIE
HARBEREAEERKAEMETH
ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁiiﬁ%%ﬁ*‘ﬁm%#‘fﬁ&%ﬁ
E%ﬁtﬁ]@*ﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬂmﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&

AN B2 BEARRBEITENS
= - ERARBESRERAMAIRE A
156% (20194F : &) - ARNHEE GBAR
FH)EAREELBENZRERED
BREERAE3% (20194 : ) o ZRER
TEBABATS LRPFIERE -
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17. GOODW".L (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives (continued)

Assumptions were used in the fair value less costs of
disposal calculations of the Ample Mighty CGUs for
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 and of the
Zhong Qi CGU for 31 December 2020. The following
describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill and sponsorship rights
and service contracts:

Budgeted — The value assigned to the
budgeted revenue is the average
revenue achieved in the vyear
immediately before the budget
year, taking into account the
expected growth rate.

revenue

Discount rates — The discount rates used are
before tax and reflect specific
risks relating the relevant units.

Growth rates — The growth rates used are with
reference to the long term
average growth rates for the
relevant markets.

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

17. B8 @)

BHENRERUCHAFEHNEAM
BEEENRBENR @

ERRBREELAEN2020F12A31H
M2019F 12 A3 EMEHRREELASE
LA K B E R 2020F12 A3TEMER
REEFBUNARBEREREKA
BEEA - TRt TEEEARER S
MERAHEE R BWHRFRES R#
TRENRNSERRER -

BE W — PERBEREN
BEEREEESFE
ZAH —FHRER

B B
= EEERHE S -

BRI =& — FTRAZERRE AR
A M IRB B % B
UBEBENETERRE -

B — ACZEEXRAS
EEFEMENRH

FHERE -
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. HWEF EE

31 December 2020

Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated

2020%12A31A8

20201 18K

Operating

rights under 10T
arrangements
IOTZH T2

RMB’000
ARETT

Sponsorship
rights and
service
contracts
BHHER
PR & A
RMB'000
ARBT T

GSP Licence
GSP

ST
RMB'000
ARETT

Total

ool
RMB'000

amortisation BN - iRk BEHEE S 191,338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762
Additions wNE — 10,403 = 10,403
Transfer to other receivables (note 29) EBREHMERZRE

(B45E29) (86,880) = = (86,880)
Considerations for business combinations EBEHZHE

(note 42) (Mt3xa2) - (602,177) = (602,177)
Amortisation provided during the year FRNEEERE (7,676) - (221) (7,897)
Impairment during the year FRRE (3,588) = = (3,588)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 93,194 1,252,429 - 1,345,623
At 31 December 2020: 720205128318 :

Cost BN 149,639 1,252,429 4,185 1,406,253

Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZETHE R A (56,445) — (4,185) (60,630)

Net carrying amount EREEFE 93,194 1,252,429 — 1,345,623
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
At 1 January 2019: R2019F 1818 ¢

Cost B 489,543 1,728,026 4,185 2,221,754

Accumulated amortisation RetHEds (124,973) — (1,141)  (126,114)

Net carrying amount REETE 364,570 1,728,026 3,044 2,095,640
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of accumulated 20191 A1H®

amortisation BN 3Rk B At 364,570 1,728,026 3,044 2,095,640
Contribution of intangible assets by FERERETEE

non-controlling interest (note 50) H& (BIzE50) — 116,177 — 116,177
Transfer to other receivables (note 29) B H e M RIE

(P5¥29) (157,305) — — (157,305)
Amortisation provided during the year FNEEERE (15,927) — (2,823) (18,750)
At 31 December 2019 2019812 A31H 191,338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020: M2019F12A31B K

20201 A1H :

Cost B 299,639 1,844,203 4,185 2,148,027

Accumulated amortisation et (108,301) — (3,964)  (112,265)

Net carrying amount EEEFSE 191,338 1,844,203 221 2,035,762

BRI A F I B PHEMNRTE & F
DEERERCESBAERER
BERI R IR RN M MR TE17

Sponsorship rights and services contracts with
indefinite useful lives are allocated to the Ample
Mighty CGUs for impairment testing. Details of
impairment testing are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

Share of net assets

DIREEFE

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

19. R—EEELQTZKRE

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’'000
AR T IT
513,028

RMB’000
ARETTT
514,100

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

AEBEBSLERRWEHNT :

Place of Percentage of ownership
Particulars of registration and interest held by the Percentage of voting Principal
capital held business Group rights held by the Group activity
Gl AEEMEMARERZ AEEMBREREZ
B Bt ERisd FTEEK
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20204 20194
CR Wugang (Hubei) Registered capital of PRC/Mainland 51 51 51 51 Hospital
Hospital Management RMB433,041,528 China consulting
Co., Ltd. services
(“CR Wugang”)
ERRMOBL) BREE AMELAARKE hE/ B AR
BRAR(TEHRM]) 433,041,5287C R A,
The above investment is indirectly held by the LM ETBAAAREERFE -
Company.
CR Wugang, which is considered a material joint ZHRHERARAEENERELER
venture of the Group, is accounted for using the equity A HEARERAEAR -
method.

ERBRERERAF

A

|
"
e

&
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. A—E&E& AFZEEmw

(continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial TR T B R B %5 E R
information in respect of CR Wugang adjusted for any 2 MEBEHMEREBZHBENER
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the EITTHAE  WEHMBEHRERFPARE
carrying amount in the financial statements: BEEITHER

2020 2019
20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBETIT ARBTRT

Cash and cash equivalents ReMhBEEEY 96,766 43,825
Other current assets Hineh&E 411,666 461,641
Current assets MENVE E 508,432 505,466
Non-current assets JEMEBNEE 7,960 8,844
Current liabilities MERE (113,804) (113,824)
Net assets BEFE 402,588 400,486

Reconciliation to the Group's interest in

HASBENEGZE QAN

the joint venture: e a AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHERENLLE 51% 51%
Effect of fair value adjustment at BB A (B E AR

acquisition P 308,780 308,780
Carrying amount of the investment KEMBR@EE 514,100 513,028
Revenue Y 25 - —
Interest income B YA 3,164 2,661
Depreciation and amortisation WE R 892 900
Tax TIE = —

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year

FEMERZEBALEE
2,101 8,828
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

DIREEFE

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

20. REEE RN B2 RE

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AR T T
41,397 151

On 28 June 2020, the Group entered into a
restructuring agreement on the formation of two
associates (the “Restructuring Agreement”) with Beijing
Jing Mei Group Company Limited (Jt RREEEHFRE L
Al) ("Jing Mei Group”), pursuant to which Beijing Jing
Run Renkang Hospital Management Co., Ltd. (“JR
Renkang”) and Beijing Jing Run Renkang Holdings Co.,
Ltd. ("JR Holdings"”) were established and held by the
Group and Jing Mei Group as to 49% and 51%,
respectively. Upon establishment, JR Renkang and JR
Holdings became associates of the Group. Pursuant to
the Restructuring Agreement, the entire interest in
Beijing Jing Mei Group General Hospital and its
branches and affiliated medical institutions (the “Jing
Mei Hospital Group”) would be injected into JR
Holdings by Jing Mei Group and JR Renkang would
provide hospital management services to the Jing Mei
Hospital Group.

Particulars of the material associates are as follows:

Particulars of Place of registration

and business
RRPE-ES ik

capital held

i ARER

JR Renkang Registered capital of PRC/Mainland China
RMB5,000,000

PELCE AMERARS HRE/ R E R
5,000,0007C

JR Holdings Registered capital of PRC/Mainland China
RMB1,000,000,000

TEERR AMERARS RE/HE N

1,000,000,0007C

RNEER2020F6 A28 AL R &%
EBERAA(TRESE]) 548K R E
s NRIFI L EA R ([EAWE] -
BRIt R CREREEERA
Al (TRBECE]) Rt R B RER
BRAB(TFBEER] THAEE
NFRHEEBE DR FHEA9% K51% ° K
g ROBCRRRBERKAEAEE
N E o IRIBEEMARE LR EE
BBl R E S kB EEEE ([ R
HEREE]D S REEE T ARE
TR - ROBC R R R T & B iR
B EERS -

EABEATNARDMT

Percentage of ownership interest attributable

to the Group Principal activities

AERERERAEESZB DL EL3 378
2020 2019
20205 2019
49 —  Provision of hospital
management
services
RUEBREERY
49 —  Provision of
corporate
management
services
RELAEERE

The above investments are indirectly held by the
Company.

FRIRETIRARRIEERE -

EMBRERERAT —T-TFH
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20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. NBEERTRIZRE W

(continued)

RECHEEFUBERRESARENE
RE & QB R AL AT -

JR Renkang and JR Holdings are considered material
associates of the Group and are accounted for using
the equity method.

TRHBT BB CREMEERD
MBERME  MABEENSRIEE
BRHZFET T HE > WEREAM
¥R R BREE A 1T HI Bk

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of JR Renkang and JR Holdings
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements:

196

JR Renkang JR Holdings
RECE FOE R
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%®TT
Current assets MBEE 103,300 13,573
Non-current assets EMEBEE — 10
Current liabilities VEIR=RE (30,776) (1,624)
Net assets BETFE 72,524 11,959
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in B 7R EEEE A A1HY
the associates: T 55 ¥ AR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEHEENLLE 49% 49%
Group's share of net assets of the AEERD(HEE QA
associates and carrying amount of the BEFERZKED
investments FREE 35,537 5,860
Revenue U & 92,736 3,491
Profit and total comprehensive income — FEFE L2 EWAELE
for the year 67,524 1,959
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BUE R E U

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group’'s associates that are not

individually material:

Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) i fgi/N
and total comprehensive income/ M/ (B8 R2E
(loss) for the year WA, (EE) B
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERBE AR ZIRE
Group's investments in the BEREE

associates

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

20. REBEE RN B Z2RE @

TRIUR T HRASE BB IEE R

ERAMREBMBHER

2020
20204

RMB’000
AREF T

(151)

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARBTT

144

151

21. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS

21. REIOTERR < EWRIE

2020 2019

20204F 20194

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

k=2 ARETT AR®ETT

At 1 January ®1HA1H 92,555 123,812

Repayment from |OT hospitals KB IOTE ZER (13,353) (9,022)

Interest income ) B A 6 9,588 10,206
Reclassification to other BN EEZHMER

receivables KIB 29 = (32,441)

At 31 December R12A31H 88,790 92,555
Less: Current portion included & @ &F AFEfTFIH -
in prepayments, RESKEAM

deposits and other FEU R IE 2
receivables BIHRAE6 5> 29 (11,576) (11,576)
Non-current portion JEBNER =L 7 77,214 80,979
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198

21. RECEIVABLES FROM IOT HOSPITALS 21. REIOTE B 2 FE W FIE =)

22.

(continued)

Pursuant to the IOT arrangements with certain not-for-
profit hospitals, the Group made investment amounts
to the 10T hospitals that will be repaid to the Group
(the "Repayable Investment Amounts”) in return for
the operating rights of the 10T hospitals over a tenure
ranging from 16 to 48 vyears. The Repayable
Investment Amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
will be repaid to the Group in equal annual instalments
during the tenure of the 10T arrangements.

LOAN TO A SPONSORED HOSPITAL

Loan to a sponsored hospital
B

22.

BEBEETIFLRBRMIOTEH - A
EEMIOTERIELIRESTE %52
EREERASEH([EEERESD
) MBREUOTERMKELRE - A5
16E48F - EEERECHAER
BB WERIOTREE IR S5
FEHSHEETAEH-

o —EEREERERNE

T
TA

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETTT

RMB’000
ARETT

A — R S i e B fe (A

51,197 55,062

The loan to a sponsored hospital is unsecured, bears
interest at the prevailing benchmark lending interest
rate of 4.75% (2019: 4.75%) per annum as
promulgated by the People’'s Bank of China and is
repayable in November 2023.

mM—ERRERREROERAER
o FRERHEARBITEMEIRIT
EREEREHL75% (20194 -
4.75%) N 7B1A2023F 11 AEE -
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

Listed equity investment, at fair value

AR

EHABRARE - BAA

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

EETEEHSH

/&

ABRENERMEE

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’000
AR®EFTT

RMB'000
AR¥TTE

(note (i) E1E (ML) 92,718 113,485
Unlisted investments, at fair value FEEMEE  BAR
(note (ii) EE (FFEEG)) 105,296 244,769
198,014 358,254
Analysed into: 2R i =1
Current portion mENER D 105,296 244,769
Non-current portion FER BN B 92,718 113,485
198,014 358,254

Notes:

(i)

(if)

The listed equity investment was classified as financial assets at
FVTPL as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value
gain or loss through other comprehensive income. It was held for
long-term strategic purposes. The Group does not intend to
dispose of it within twelve months after the reporting period.

The unlisted investments were wealth management products issued
by banks in Mainland China, with expected annual return ranging
from 2.8% to 3.1% (2019: 3.7% to 4.7%) per annum. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVTPL as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and

interest.

The fair value of the Group’s listed equity investment
at the date of approval of these financial statements
was approximately RMB63,340,000.

fi it

(i)

(if)

HRAEERETEBEMEEBARRLR
AEERGEIBE  RETRARESER
NARBEAEBEEEZHFARENERE
EDRAERSEERSE AEEESR
HEHRT_EARNEE -

FELMRERPEAMBITRTNG = EE
Edn BEFWREEE28%ZE3.1% (2019
F:37%E47%) 2 c HREERRE R
ETERRSFF S - EULEEH S
BANAARBEFEEEZHIAEZNS

RUMBHRREAKZAY  AEE LT
BAREMOABEORARE
63,340,0007T ©

ERBRERERAF

A
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>qd

A
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24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

25.

AMORTISED COST

HRBERATENEH

BE

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETIT

RMB'000
ARETT

Unlisted debt investments, FLETEBRE -
at amortised cost AR 265,022 25,114
Analysed into: 2R iV
Current portion mENE D 164,927 25,114
Non-current portion SEMENE 100,095 —
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's other financial H 22020128318 AEEHE ML

assets at amortised cost represented unlisted debt
investments with fixed interest rates ranging from
1.056% to 3.46% (2019: 3.05%) per annum and
maturity dates in 2021 to 2022 (2019 : 2020).

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

In the prior year, the operation of 999 Medical Clinic
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (999 Clinic”) was suspended as
the location of the site was included in the local urban
renewal plan. The Group entered into an agreement
with a real estate company in which the property of
999 Clinic will be demolished and a new property with
a floor area of no less than that of the demolished
property will be given to 999 Clinic as compensation
when the construction and the development of the
new property have been completed. Accordingly,
property, plant and equipment with a carrying amount
RMB76,269,000 were transferred to other non-current
assets in the prior year.

25. £

R AT ENEREE R LMER
wE BEEMNERETF1.05%£E3.46%
(20194 : 3.05%) ' B/ Hi B /20214
220224 (20194 : 20204 ) »

Htt3kn@EE
RE—FF - mRNEE M AT EE S
B EEE T ZABRMDH (R
Y ERECAT (AP wE

2o AREHE-RFEMEQRR T —
i - WE K= NPT2 B WEIRE

WAL FER T SRR B - I H R
AR DR IFBR M ER T EIR MG
=NFIZEERRE - Bt - RE—F
EREE A A R%76,269,0007T 89 9)
¥ BELARBEERZHMIERDE
E o
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26. INVENTORIES

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

26. &

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETIT AREFIT

Pharmaceuticals &0 125,723 53,480
Medical devices and medical BERWNEREN

consumables 16,312 8,641

142,035 62,121

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

27. EREZREARERRE

2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR
— Public health insurance programs and — A HEFEREBEHEI K&
social organisations for medical BERGH A
services 214,361 —
— Other customers — HMEFR 429,319 619,453
Bills receivables e = & 400 —
Impairment EE (25,977) (755)
618,103 618,698

The Group's trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. The credit
periods range from 30 to 180 days. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

REEREFPHRFERETENUEESR
it BNEPKRIN IRFPBESR

TELRAR - (EFHEA30E180K - A%
I B0 kR MR ER A R LS SR T A 4 R AR B
T WHRBEEESEHM - UREEE
E% - sRERETHENORER -
REEWEEWE 5 FHIEREKREE
A EAER AR REMEE S
IR BB S RBERERER A
BB

[l
[l
A
St
>qd

A

ERBRERERAF F

201



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27.

(continued)

B E 5 7 IE R EWRRE @

R & BAREWE 5508 R EREED
FREC DT (RIFHE BB R INBR IR R
w T

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREFIT ARETIT

Within 1 year 16 A 540,565 552,411
1 to 2 years 1224 75,382 66,238
2 to 3 years 2E3F 2,156 49
618,103 618,698

W E SRR REBEERRENESBENR

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment

202

of trade receivables are as follows: N
2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
At beginning of year F1 755 65
Acquisition/consolidation of subsidiaries UiE & i B A ] 33,585 —
Impairment losses, net (note 8) BAEBEFE (ME8) 20,432 781
Amount written off as uncollectible R B H s & 5 (28,795) (91)
At end of year FR 25,977 755

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than three years and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

REHRE B PR B EREETRED
i AFEBRHEEERE - BERERA
BRUOBEEANZERTPERN D E8
HIREN - AT E R T R AR
EERENRERSE AR ESHN AR
BEFM - BATORAMARREBEAN R
AMEEMBRIENER - —RMF -
IMREWEZFEAR=FIAL X B
W BMHITITED - RIMEH R
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

27. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27. EWESREREREE @
(continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk EBRASEFARBEEETENEKE
exposure on the Group’'s trade receivables using a SRERNEERRERESOT

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020 M2020F12H31H

Past due
& HA

Less than 11to 2 2t03
Current 1 year years EEIS)
BRI R1F 122F 2E3F

Trade receivables from public MW HE R &)

health insurance programs RERRBLEHE

and social organisations for BES

medical services (note): FRIE (H5E) -
Expected credit loss rate EHREERRX 10.94% - - - —  10.94%
Gross carrying amount BEREE

(RMB'000) (AR¥FT) 214,361 = = = — 214,361
Expected credit losses FEHEEEE

(RMB'000) (AR¥FT) 23,451 = = = = 23,451

Trade receivables from other EREMBEFES
Eod

customers: FRIA
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEEX = 0.06% 0.37% 1.82% 100% 0.59%
Gross carrying amount BERmEE
(RMB’000) (AR TIT) 13,859 335,740 75,512 2,196 2,012 429,319
Expected credit losses FEHEEEE
(RMB’000) (AR TFIT) = 193 281 40 2,012 2,526
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H
Past due
11 HR
Less than 1to2 2to3 Over
Current 1 year years years 3 years
BRI 2R1F 1226 2E3F HBAIF
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEEX — 0.07% 0.46% 1.58% 100% 0.12%
Gross carrying amount HERHEE
(RMB’000) (AR®FIT) 7,080 545,713 66,544 50 66 619,453
Expected credit losses TEHEEEE
(RMB'000) (AR¥ETF T — 382 306 1 66 755
Note: Under the current policies of the PRC public health insurance HeE: REFBEAEBERBZOBITHRE
programs, a government-approved quota is assigned annually to HEERKESFERITMALBRERRETE
each medical institution in respect of the medical fees that are e EERES R — BRI IZEE -
allowed to be recovered from the public health insurance AEBRBYBEHREIN  FEFTAHLBER
programs. The Group estimates, when preparing its financial BRI IZESE FTETEERMEE -
statements, the quota approved by the public health insurance A TE B 2 R R A B A AT AT R B B FOB FE R
authorities and assigned to its hospitals and recognises the WEEE BB MKESAEERER A
impairment losses for the amount that it estimates to be MR RE AMHEZZEWE 58 -

unrecoverable in the statement of profit or loss and write off such
trade receivables in the statement of financial position when such
amount becomes unrecoverable.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for bills M2020F 12 A31H  EREIEATEH
receivables as at 31 December 2020 is within one year WEEERMBA—FA  12020F
and the loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 was 12A31HEIEBERETK -

assessed to be minimal.
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28. EHNEE

28. CONTRACT ASSETS

31 December 31 December 1 January

2020 2019 2019

20204F 20194 20194

12H31H 12H31H 1H1H

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000

AR¥ETTT ARETFTT AREF T
Contract assets arising EHNEEXRS :

from:

Hospital management B2 P B 38 AR 7%

services 19,840 12,120 9,464

BHEEIIIRHER B IERBETHRE
B a e TR - B AR E A BEER
AR AEBAORBERTE - ERERE
FURK A EGM R (B E ST RIBEAGT
HE) BRBENEENSEETH
HARKE SHHIE 202086 0EE
B3E hn (20194 : G A0) ThF KL MR
HREEPR E 1B RAG AT RN ©

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the provision of hospital management
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional
on the performance rating assessments of the Group.
The amounts recognised as contract assets are
reclassified to trade receivables when the rights to
consideration become unconditional, i.e. when the
performance rating assessments are finalised. The
increase (2019: increase) in contract assets in 2020
was the result of the increase in the provision of
hospital management services at the end of the year.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for
contract assets as at 31 December is within one year.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on days past due of trade receivables
for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

R12ATBANEENIRERAFE
AAREA—FR -

RE RS B R AR EEEEITRED
I A EEEEEBE - FTEANEE
BHEEEEBRANBEE - KRR
WESHEMRAE  REARAHNEE
REKESHBEREERARFE &
NEEMNBERTREALFELESE
BRHOFFERH AR EKE 58S
HIRBIGTE - ZatE R T RIS
R EXHENURREBEHTESNS
BBEEM - B AR R R AE R
FERAMNEEREBEENER - 12020
FR20199F12A31H » B HEEE
BRAK o
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29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

29. ENFIE - REER EME
W IR

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARET T

RMB'000
ARETT

Prepayments to suppliers I 44 FE 7 2 < B9 TR AT R 38,102 12,466
Current portion of receivables from I0T KRB I0TERT 2 EUR KA
hospitals B BV EREE 11,576 11,576
Other receivable from “Yan Hua RE[F B |/ EM
Hospital” (note i) FE W SRR (B EED) 189,747 189,747
Other receivable from “Jing Mei KB TREER ] EM
Hospital” (note ii) JE W SRR (B 5T 86,880 —
Others Hiy 47,337 7,121
373,642 220,910
Impairment BB (1,247) (1,127)
372,395 219,783
Notes: B 5 -

(i)

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 15
January 2019, 21 January 2019 and 17 April 2019, Beijing Yan Hua
Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Company Limited (it &%
(EBEEEELAEEIEAR AT ("Yan Hua Phoenix”), the sponsor of
Yan Hua Hospital, and Yan Hua Hospital unilaterally terminated the
IOT agreement entered into between the Group, Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital (the “Yan Hua IOT Agreement”) from 21
January 2019. The Group has submitted a civil claim statement
against Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital in relation to the
Yan Hua 10T Agreement dispute to the Beijing Second
Intermediate People's Court on 17 April 2019 to seek the court's
ruling that the unilateral termination of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement
by Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua Hospital on 21 January 2019
shall be void.

Having considered the terms of the Yan Hua IOT Agreement, the
Group has further claimed that Yan Hua Phoenix and Yan Hua
Hospital should be liable for damages for breach of the Yan Hua
|IOT Agreement. Accordingly, the Group reclassified the related
receivables and operating right under the IOT arrangement with
Yan Hua Hospital to other receivables during the year ended 31
December 2019.

On 18 December 2019, the Beijing Second Intermediate People's
Court issued a judgement in favour of the Group. Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital filed an appeal to the Beijing Higher People’s
Court in January 2020. The court hearing was held on 26 October
2020 and the judgement is yet to be announced.

As disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements, the Group
entered into the Restructuring Agreement with Jing Mei Group on
28 June 2020. Pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement, the |I0T
agreement with Jing Mei Hospital (the “Jing Mei IOT Agreement”)
was terminated. The Group is entitled to a refund from Jing Mei
Hospital of the carrying amount of the operating right as a result of
the early termination of the Jing Mei 10T Agreement. Accordingly,
the Group reclassified the operating right under the 10T
arrangement with Jing Mei Hospital to other receivables during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

(i)

A A E HEA2019F1 8158 « 20194
1A218 K2019F4R17HR R EFTIHE -
FEBROEBHALRFICEERBREEE
BHRAR ([FEBE]) FFIEBFRML2019
F1A2IBREFELLEAER - HEEE
R FAC BT AT L WI0TH % ([FEALIOTH
#]) o REBBR2019F4 17 A E/LIOT
BEFEAARTE_FRAREZRELR
ERFREFHCERRIECER - EZROE
B 1) 7 3L BB R (b B BT 20194 1 B 218
B E B IACIOT i 3 -

ZEIFACIOTHHANGEH - NEBE—FE
SKIR(C BB 3 B BT B S 5B RIRIEIOT
HMZEA® B BE2019F12A318 1
FE - AREBEFRCERIOTRH THEH
FEUGR BB E ST S BT H bR

R -

H2019F 128180 » kEMEZFRARE
REMABBHFER  AEEBEF - HERE
BB D R2020F1 AAIER SR A
RIEPize E5F - W E 72020510 526 AF
BEERHEN - MIARBAHIR o

MEA TS MR M 20FT I - AEBEEREE
ER2020F6 A28HAI L EA s RIBFE
g BREEENIOTHE ([REIOTH
FDRIE - ERBAKRIERKEIOTRZEN A
BASEAREYREBRKEEEEED
BEMRR - HEL  REBPREZE2020F
12ANBIEFEERREER 2EHIOTE
PTIREEES B HmEsRE -

ERBEERERLAT —ZT_TFWR
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29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 29. ERRE RIEERHEME

OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to deposits and other receivables for which
there was no relevant history of default. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at
31 December 2020 was 0.3% (2019: 0.5%).

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of other receivables are as follows:

Y FRIE ()

FlBETRRENEREERSERAA
BHARLHRBTSMEMERZIES
e MEABRT  EE@EKRE S
BBEREBHNEL BELHEAES
TERHEITREDN - ARBEBEXUEE
f B & AT A O 0 R PR A B AR R A TR
Bl o R2020F 12 A3THIRAMNEEX
£0.3% (20194 : 0.5%) °

Hib UGB EE R RENE S BER
L

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBTT

At beginning of year F 1) 1,127 333

Acquisition/consolidation of subsidiaries W8, & G B A 7 615 —
Impairment losses/(reversal of mEEE CREEBRE

impairment losses), net (note 8) ) FEE (Hsks) (495) 794

At end of year FR 1,247 1,127

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 30. ;@3&%%%%%&6?&#
F FA

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETIT
Cash and bank balances R& MIRTTA 2,698,107 2,006,220
Time deposits EHFR 20,717 —
2,718,824 2,006,220

Less: Pledged time deposits as B BRI ENE JE T

guarantee for the acquisition of J% 4 25 1 5 HA

non-controlling interests T (17,454) —
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEEY 2,701,370 2,006,220

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

31.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted
to RMB2,688,115,000 (2019: RMB1,993,848,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and
three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the date of

delivery goods, is as follows:

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

0. REe R BREEEBEYREEF

31.

FRm

REREIR - AEBUAREFHENE
S RBTEBSERBARE
2,688,115,0007C (20194 : AR ¥
1,993,848,0007T) ° AR T BE# B
REBKEMERE  EREBEPEAM
HNEBIBIRD R AETE - BIERMEESE
ME - ANEE S BEREETINES
BREBNRTEARELBABEME
eggz °

RITHEESUET RRITFEZFBFIEREA
B BHERERFRAN T —RE=E
ARE  REARENRREREZRKM
E o WIRE B # R B E BT 5RM) R BRER
MB - RITEHREERFHATFAL
BRI INEENB N ZRTT -

BNEZREREANRE

WERNENE HHIENENRIER
BT ENRZAS R m BRI T

2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARETT
Within 60 days NG 347,108 170,322
61 to 180 days 61E180K 186,274 62,657
Over 180 days 180K A 30,743 8,324
564,125 241,303
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing ENESHERENZEBRARE  —K
and are normally granted a credit term of 0 to 90 ZOEORMEEBEL -
days.
EREBRERERAT —T-ZTFH
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32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

32. HtENMEREFEH

2020
20204

Note RMB’000
Bt & ARETT

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET T

Staff cost payables JE B TR A 249,946 85,290
Deposits from suppliers HEBRES 28,182 23,190
Other PRC tax payable FEEMEAT S 29,080 21,102
Unpaid travel expenses and Az ZRAS &
administrative expenses ITHE A 13,052 6,531
Unpaid expenses in relation to B2 % ¥ AR 7% 8 B4 &9
professional services A X 14,774 11,947
Payables for purchases of BEME  BELIEEZ
property, plant and JE £ 3018
equipment 4,838 1,880
Unpaid consideration for the W EEM B R RH
acquisition of subsidiaries REAAFRAE 17,184 190
Payable to Healthcare Security BB ERERBFIE
Administration 13,709 —
Contract liabilities AHEE (a) 117,176 4,666
Others Ht 89,161 97,324
577,102 252,120
Note: B EE -
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) AXHBEENPMBAT

208

31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 AONES] AOKES)
20204 201945 20194
12A31H 12H31H 1A18
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®ETF T AR®EF T ARBT T
Short-term advances received from BIE P RN
customers
General healthcare services RABERS 110,924 — —
Hospital management services BT B RG = 1,649 1,055
GPO business GPO%7% 6,252 3,013 11,667
Other hospital-derived services H fth B& B 0T A AR = 4 32
Total contract liabilities araEesE 117,176 4,666 12,754

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to provide
general healthcare services and hospital management services, to
deliver medical products, such as pharmaceuticals, medical devices
and medical consumables, and to provide other hospital-derived
services. The increase (2019: decrease) in contract liabilities in
2020 was mainly due to the acquisition/consolidation of hospitals
during the vyear (2019: the decrease in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to GPO business at the end of
the year).

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

33. PAYABLES TO THE SPONSORED 33. ENENERRNE
HOSPITALS
The payables to the Sponsored Hospitals are FETER R BB P SR A IR - F AR
unsecured, bear interest at a rate of 0.35% (2019: 50.35% (20194 : 0.35% ) * ZBIREK
0.35%) per annum and are repayable on demand. EE -

34. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 34. FTERITER
BORROWINGS

Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
Current (%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
B A (%) APHE ARBTT BENE%) AHE  ARBTR
Borrowings &= 1-3 2021 684,301 34 2020 578,337
— unsecured — mE A

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETT
Analysed into: DT :
Bank loans repayable: RITEREE
Within one year or on demand —FRFIZEK 684,301 578,337
Except for a bank borrowing of RMB12,000,000 Br—IE2020F 12 A31H BB AR
(2019: Nil) as at 31 December 2020, which is 12,000,0007T (20194 &) KR 1T {5
denominated in RMB, the remaining bank borrowings TUAARBEHESIN - R TIRITEKITIA
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. HBITEHE -

[1
[1
A

A

&

fuisiy
>qd
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. R{K{ERFE
REERNGE

2020 2019
20204 20194

Defined benefit plans

RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
AR¥ET T2

Total estimated benefit payable to HETENE BB ABRT
qualifying staff HBEE 47,323 18,120

The Group operates unfunded defined benefit plans for
qualifying staff of Jian Gong Hospital and Huaikuaug
Hospital. Under the plans, the qualifying staff are
entitled to retirement benefits.

The plans expose the Group to interest rate risk and
the risk of changes in the life expectancy for the
pensioners.

The movements in the present value of the defined

rEERRE=BRIAEREERN S ER
ABEEEHEMNRERMGE - RIF
ZEFE AERABUEZTRAKRE
R o

EZ#%@ﬁE I@E&' ﬁﬂJTJ—HS MRS

REBMBEEZHEZEHOT

benefit obligations are as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

At 1January ®m1A1H 18,120 17,638

Consolidation of a subsidiary AH—REWE

X Al 42 26,318 —

Current service cost B AR A AR 802 191

Interest cost =N N 1,351 508

Benefit paid ENE R (3,462) (1,875)
Remeasurement losses in other REAM2EEE

comprehensive loss HEFMTEEE 4,194 1,658

At 31 December ®12A31H 47,323 18,120

The remeasurement of the defined benefit obligations
represent mainly actuarial losses arising from changes
in demographic assumptions, financial assumptions and
experience adjustments.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the defined
benefit obligations were carried out using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.

REBMEBENEHAEZBEREANA
OfRR - MR ME R A E
EENEEERE -

FUERMNE RSO ETIEMR AR
BAERBEMETAFESL -
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. Rk EMNZFE @

(continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued) REBAE @
The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end MEMKREANEIEZREBRRDT ¢

of the reporting period are as follows:

2020 2019
20204F 20194
Discount rate AL IR % 3.05%-3.80% 3.00%
Expected rate of the average per TEET ABAIXERWAZ
capital disposable income growth 2R & 10% 10%
Average longevity at retirement age for ERIEERIKAERFH
current pensioners = 94 94
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant HEFREHR  HEERINTEEHX
assumptions as at the end of the reporting period is B TR :

shown below:

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

in defined Decrease in defined
Increase in benefit in rate/ benefit
rate/year obligations year obligations

FE & F FLE & F
M=/ BEEM, M=/ BEEM,
FEUBR ORd)  F8RD OBA)

% RMB’'000 % RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT
2020 20204
Discount rate BHIR & 1.00 (4,231) 1.00 5,204
Expected average per TEER A AT LR A
capital disposable FHEERR
income growth rate 1 3,530 1.00 (2,877)
Average longevity at RINFRHFHED 1 year 1 year
retirement age 15 2,174 15 (2,256)
2019 20194
Discount rate FEER R 1.00 (1,126) 1.00 1,020
Expected average per TEHA A9 A] ST BL WA
capital disposable TR &
income growth rate 1.00 1,190 1.00 (1,008)
Average longevity at BRIKFRHOFEIS® 1 year 1 year
retirement age 14 1,372 14 (1,465)

&

fuisiy
>qd

ERBRERERAF

A
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

35. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 35. RAERNZFE @

212

(continued)
Defined benefit plans (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based
on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
may not be representative of an actual change in the
defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that
changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group expected to make
payment of RMB4,604,000 (2019: RMB1,872,000)
under the defined benefit plans in the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

REBFE & )

EXEFNNNBRED T RRIE—ETA
MASH - &I AR B R E RS R
HENTEMRRELSESCMERE
BHNETEENZE - HRESTER
EERRNEC  WRFMAEMERE
P& o EXE2FNBRE DM R L RER
REBNEETHEREL  ARERT
KA e B AR -

2020 12H310 » XEERERT
RAIETE B MEBRER AR+ =1
RAIEH &M AREA4604,000T
(2019%F : AR#1,872,0007T) °
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36. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
subsidiaries

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
BUE R E U

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

36. EELER

EERERR

Depreciation

Fair value allowance in
changes of excess of
financial assets related
at FVTPL depreciation

FRAEEHRRBEREEZ ST

14 AT E
AREEAE QnEEE I ERE Hit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETL AREBTL ARET T
At 1 January 2019 #W2019%1 818 316,374 — — — 316,374
Deferred tax charged/ FRME/(GTA)
(credited) to the FAEER
consolidated statement WE BT
of profit or loss during (FEE12)
the year (note 12) (626) 2,274 - — 1,648
Gross deferred tax 720196127
liabilities at 318 %2020F
31 December 2019 and 1R1BZEE
at 1 January 2020 TERIEARE 315,748 2,274 — — 318,022
Deferred tax charged/ FRME/(GTA)
(credited) to the SAEBRERE
consolidated statement ZIERER
of profit or loss during (HEE12)
the year (note 12) — (1,579) 1,690 282 393
Gross deferred tax 202012 A
liabilities at 31HZ BIEE
31 December 2020 HEEE 315,748 695 1,690 282 318,415
ERBRERERAT —T-TF®H 213
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36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. Eﬁﬁ(%)
Deferred tax assets EEMEEE

Impairment of
financial and

contract assets

TRREHNEE

BB

RMB’000

ARET T

At 1 January 2019 201941818 _
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FRFFAGEETREK 2

statement of profit or loss during the year EED (MFEE12)
(note 12) 188

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H k20204

and at 1 January 2020 1TATBZ @RERIBEE 188
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FHRFFAGEETRR R

statement of profit or loss during the year FERT (FiaE12)

(note 12) 800
Gross deferred tax assets at 7R2020F 12 A31 H 2 BRI

31 December 2020 MIBEE 988

214  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



36 DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
BUE R E U

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

36. IEEZER @
EEHRIEEE @

SINEME - BEELERBEENARG
EEMBIMR MR FEE - AT RALE
B F B E M T AVELERREA D

deferred tax balances of the Group for financial T

reporting purposes:

2020 2019
20204

20194
RMB'000
AR T T

RMB’000
ARETTT

Net deferred tax assets recognised in AR A BTN IREER

the consolidated statement of BETIBE EFE

financial position 188 —
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in 4R A BTSN 3R & ER

the consolidated statement of ZIEETIE B EFE

financial position (317,615) (317,834)
Net deferred tax liabilities EETIEREFRE (317,427) (317,834)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in ATIHEE MERELEHIBEE

respect of the following items:

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTIT ARBTT

Tax losses M EE 19,079 37,007
Deductible temporary differences ANz ERER 22,784 23,374
41,863 60,381

The above tax losses arising in Mainland China will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the above items as it is not considered
probable that future taxable profits will be available

bBaEREAELRBEE/IN =
hERNIHAREBEREEMESEA
AR E R AE o bl I8 B T
RBBLERBEE - JIANERFRKE
AR AR Bl TR B 8H 2 AT BEE
BUK -

against which the above items can be utilised.

[l
[l
A
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36 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2020, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries and a
joint venture established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries and joint venture will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB2,265,509,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB2,019,815,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to
the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

6. IELER @

FEERHRIEEE @

BREPHCEMSHRE  HEFBERHD
BN ECERINEIREET IR
B BBU10% MTERRT - BEAEKE
20089 1 A1 HBAER - #AM2007F
12A31B 2 FTEERIE - tNREH
Bl A EINEEEENERERE 2 HAEH
WipE - BT EABEATRIRTE o 3t
AEEME  HEARER10% Bt -
FLAE2008F 1 A1 H A E £/ Wz
REEE B ESEE R BRI
B AR SRR B RBTERT o

2020512 H318 - MEREXEEHR
PR A 2B AR RAEEARIA
BUANTEIRT 2 REE B W BB TE
REMERIELR - EERE - S
BABIMEG EAEERTERAG R
E B8 U 2 A BT RE M ERE o 722020412
A31B TEBRELCHBAG 2 H
RPBERHE AT REE AT ZRE
HEEREECRBENARARE
2,265,509,0007T (20194 : AR ¥
2,019,815,0007T) °

AR BRI BER A BB A& B A AR
FrEfiER -
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37. PROVISION

At 1 January 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

37. &%

Pending
medical
dispute
litigations

FREBE

FEFD

RMB'000

AR T T

#2020 1 A1 H -

Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— B AR 42 5,029
Additional provision BN 1,052
Amounts utilised during the year FAEBHELHE (2,241)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 3,840

The provision for pending medical dispute litigations
was estimated based on management’s best estimate
of the Group’'s liabilities of the settlement of the
pending medical dispute litigations. The estimation is

FRBEFFFLANRERREEERE
HEMARNEFEFZNANFREE
FrYE S E MR A E S - TETER
FHAMGET B WHEEE BN NETE

reassessed on an ongoing basis and revised where HIE
appropriate.

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. B
Shares &)
2020 2019
20204F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
Authorised: EE
3,040,000,000 ordinary shares of 3,040,000,000 1% & i
HK$0.00025 each 0.000257% 7T H) & 1@ ik 633 633
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
1,296,676,516 ordinary shares of 1,296,676,516 X & Ix
HK$0.00025 each 0.000257% 70 #) & 18 ik 267 267

Share awards

Details of the Share Award Scheme and the shares
awarded under the Share Award Scheme are included

in note 39 to the financial statements.

B 82 B

ERBRERERAF

f 7 52 Rt &) AR R A 17 52 B a8 R
Y Bt B R 1B B0 B 5 TR AR P R 39 -
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31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 7 July 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme as a means to recognise the
contribution of and provide incentives for the key
management personnel, employed experts and core
employees.

Eligible participants of the Share Award Scheme
include the Company’s directors, senior management,
employed experts and core employees of the Group.
The Share Award Scheme will remain in force for 10
years from 7 July 2014, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended.

The maximum number of shares currently permitted to
be granted under the Share Award Scheme is limited
to 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 August 2018. The maximum number of shares
which may be awarded to each eligible participant in
the Share Award Scheme is limited to 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 August
2018.

The eligible participant for participation in the Share
Award Scheme (the “Selected Participant”) is selected
and the number of shares to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme is determined by the board of
directors. The board of directors also determines
whether the shares will be awarded with or without
payment of a price by the Selected Participant (the
“Grant Price"”) and the amount of the Grant Price. The
shares to be awarded under the Share Award Scheme
will be purchased by a trustee (the “Trustee”) from the
open market out of cash contributed by the Group and
be held on trust for the Selected Participant until such
shares are vested with the Selected Participant in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award
Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in
respect of any shares held on trust for the Company
or the Selected Participant.

39. R A&

R2014F7 878 » QBRI 15 52
BhEtElc UREFTEERAS - EBREE
REZODEENEB IS TEE -

Bin SZENETEIM AR EERIERAR
MEE ALERREERE  JEMNZE
KMZLE T - Bty ZENET 2 82014
F7RA7TERBEMEAI10F - BRIESTT
HUB S &R ©

EHZE2018FE8A31H  BIED EE
SRR A TR THERROEBERE A
RATEEITRABS% © Al LA T %
DB EIMNEEE B2 EENZRAR
MEERNARFN2018F8H31HE
BATIRARH1% o

EE2NENRBFENARBEE
(MEE2EE ) - RERD RTS8
BOBRNBEHEESRE -EFQE
RERDHEEZ2EEINER (K
HERDMELEBRNSBERE TR
o ZEAN(ZFTEAD BRE D 88
BEFERTHORD  BEAKELEDN
RBePRAFMBEER - WAMEETR
REESEERE  BIELRNKRE
i R EIMRERBREESEE D
I o

XEANSEAEET A FEHNARRA
HEESEENERROITERRE -
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39. R EBFE @

FPY - IR SRR BIR 0A F AR
GIES-GR

39 SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

The following shares awarded under the Share Award
Scheme were outstanding during the year:

Number of shares

NIEICRIVIES
at the date of
grant
Date of grant

R A

As at
1 January
2020

Grant Price

R2020%
1A18

Granted during
the year

ERR

RH#E

Vested during

Forfeited

the year during the year

FRERE

As at
31 December
2020

120205
12A318

Vesting period

BEAE

30 May 2019 5.27 5.27 9,279,900 = (4,894,950 = 4,384,950 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2021

2019457308 201951818 E2021 54818

30 May 2019 5.27 - 9,239,900 = = (260,000 8,979,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2022

2019458308 201951818 2202254 A1R
18,519,800 - (4894950)  (260,000) 13364850

Share price as
at the date of
grant
Date of grant

RitiAH#

As at
1 January
2019

Grant Price

120195
1R18

Granted during
the year

ERERH

Number of shares

#8

Vested during

Forfeited

the year  during the year

As at
31 December
2019

2019%
12A318

Vesting period

HEAE

22 December 2015 8.98 9.21 207,334 - (207,334) - — 22 December 2015 - 1 January 2019
20155127228 20155128228 %2019%1 18

22 December 2015 8.98 - 162,667 - (162,667) - — 22 December 2015 - 1 January 2019
20154127228 2016612 822822019%1 418

30 May 2019 5.27 527 - 9,279,900 - - 9,279,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2021
201958308 201951 A18Z202154 418

30 May 2019 5.27 - - 9,279,900 - (40,000) 9,239,900 1 January 2019 - 1 April 2022
2019454308 201961 A18E202254A18

370,001 18,559,800 (370,001) (40,000) 18,519,800

During the year, the Group recognised equity-settled
share-based payment expense of RMB8,721,000 (2019:

RMB13,083,000).

RAFE  NEBRRRESEE AR
M REX A ARKES 721,0005T
(20194 : AR #13,083,0007T) °
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39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 39. R R B & @
The movements in the Company's treasury share FARRAIMERRMDFEE 2 Z
reserve during the year are as follows: T

Treasury
share reserve
EFRG, &
RMB'000
AREEF T
At 1 January 2019 7201941818 (384,650)
Award of shares R AR 17 99,587
Vesting of shares I 10 5 B 1,918
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 R2019F 12 A31H &
20201 A1 H (283,145)
Sale of treasury shares & EFRGD 380
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H (282,765)
40. RESERVES 40. f##E
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the AEENAREEMUREENRERE
movements therein for the current and prior years are HEHERMERERFI00EEFE106E
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in RERREEREFIIR -
equity on pages 105 to 106 of the financial
statements.
(a) Statutory surplus reserve (a) ZEBRBLE

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China, a portion of the profits of the
Company’'s subsidiaries in Mainland China has
been transferred to the statutory surplus reserve
which are restricted to use.

(b) Share-based payment reserve (b)

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of shares awarded which are yet to be
vested, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to treasury share reserve and
capital reserve when the related share awards are
vested, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related share awards expire or be
forfeited.
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40 RESERVES (continued)

(c) Actuarial changes reserve

The actuarial changes

demographic assumptions, financial assumptions
and experience adjustments, as further explained
in the accounting policy for defined benefit plan in
note 2.4 to the financial statements.

41.

INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material

reserve comprises the
remeasurements arising from changes in

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BUE R E U

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

40. f#E @
(c) BESEREE

41.
EMELE

BEEBEERETHRADR
% EBRRNEREBN R
MELMEHHE AN HE
K324 BT BRI Bl Bt
B R — AR -

BEBEARFEREZ Z2HEE

TREHNEBEEEAFHERERNA

non-controlling interests are set out below: SEMB AR -
2020 2019
20204 20194
Percentage of equity interest held by RIEIERERIFE R
non-controlling interests: S 4 L 3]
Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd. RSB AR AR
(“Jian Gong Hospital") (=% ]) 20% 20%
Runneng Medical Management Co., Ltd JHEBEEEHFRE QG
(“Run Neng”) (IEgel) 35% 35%
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to JEVE AR HE R IE D B Y
non-controlling interests: FEFME(EE) :
Jian Gong Hospital 2= B 2,110 10,937
Run Neng EEE 3,960 (101)
Dividend paid to non-controlling X THREBRIEER
interests of Jian Gong Hospital - gl &) 10,454 10,483
Accumulated balances of REEH 2 Rt IEER
non-controlling interests at the R
reporting date:
Jian Gong Hospital =2 110,092 118,242
Run Neng EaE 118,430 114,470
EREBRERERAT —T-ZTFH
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41. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 41. BB E AFERERZFEZ

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING BB AT @
|NTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial LB AR M E RS ZEH S A
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts T o FriRFE . @ FEEE BN AR HEE
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: Bl &% :

Jian Gong
Hospital Run Neng
2= %kt e
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Revenue UG % 620,710 13,933
Total expenses, net BFETFE (610,159) (2,620)
Profit for the year FEFE 10,551 11,313
Total comprehensive income for the FEEERARLRE
year 10,789 11,313
Current assets MBEE 496,193 232,225
Non-current assets FERBEE 288,435 111,586
Current liabilities VEIRRE (217,450) (5,441)
Non-current liabilities B EE (16,718) —
Net cash flows from operating KEREFBERERE
activities b= 81,354 1,052
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & EZEFFE(FTA)
activities HEeEmnEFE 85,358 (8,841)
Net cash flows used in financing BEEBTARESRE
activities VFRE (50,179) —
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekReFEY 2
cash equivalents SFIE OB A) 116,533 (7,789)
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41. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 41. BB E RFERERE 2R
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING == NGIC )
|NTERESTS (continued)

Jian Gong
Hospital Run Neng
fi2 = 22 b e
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®ETT
Revenue g 722,488 —
Total expenses, net T FE (667,805) (287)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEFE (&) 54,683 (287)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for ~ FEE2EW A (EE)

the year BEE 53,024 (287)
Current assets mENEE 505,923 215,471
Non-current assets EREBNEE 286,757 111,586
Current liabilities nBBE (182,951) —
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE (18,5622) —

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating &< EEFTE,(FiA)

activities REeNEFHE 136,366 (287)
Net cash flows used in investing KREEESFABEESRE
activities pEE-E] (28,122) —
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing REESEENFTE(FTA)
activities HEeREFRE (52,418) 215,758
Net increase in cash and cash BeMReEEYM 2
equivalents SN 56,326 215,471
ERBRERERAT —T-TFH 223
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

During the vyear, the Group had following events/
transactions which constituted business combinations
in accordance with IFRS 3 (Revised) "Business
Combinations” (“IFRS 3 (Revised)").

(a)  On 3 December 2019, the Group entered into an
agreement with China National Zhong Qi Group
Co., Ltd. (PEHIERTHEBEERAF]) ("CNHTC"),
pursuant to which (i) a company, Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital Company (“Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital”),
would be established and held as to 75% by the
Group and 25% by CNHTC; and (i) cash of
RMB254,235,300 and the hospital-related assets
(e.g., sponsorship right, land use right, buildings
and medical equipment of a hospital in Jinan, the
PRC, etc.) would be contributed into Jinan Zhong
Qi Hospital by the Group and CNHTC,
respectively. Immediately after the completion of
transactions on 30 March 2020, Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital became a subsidiary of the Group.

42.

RBAH

RAF  REENNTES, T HEK
B R B %5 e 5 Y RI SB35 (1B A1) %75
& 6 J(TBIBR B %5 ¥R 5 2 R 32 35% (18
1)) Frig M R A OF o

(a) F2019F12A3H  AEEEAF
HEATEEBEARAF ([FEH
BRTEEE]) LB - BIE
ZaE o (VKL —MRRER
EARERARQAR([EEERE
Brl)  REEFRBEHRISRRG
PFEERTEEEFBERK25%H
o RASEEMNFARHER R
BEE RMABEREABRKEA
AR 254,235,300 TR £ A K
BT EE (FInSR e - Tib
FERE  BEWUARPERERD—
HERMNERELES) - HERS
2020F3 A30R &Rk - B
BRERMKANEE KB

2AF
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

On 2 May 2020, the articles of association of
Huaibei
Hospital”) were amended. Having considered the
power of the Group based on the amended
articles of association together with the relevant
service contract entered into by the Group and
Huaikuang Hospital, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group has obtained the practical
ability to direct the
Huaikuang Hospital unilaterally and control over
Huaikuang Hospital since the effective date of the
amended articles of association on 2 May 2020.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of
Huaikuang Hospital were consolidated
Group’s financial statements thereafter.

Miner General Hospital (“Huaikuang

relevant activities of

in the

Prior to the business combination, the Group was
the sponsor of Huaikuang Hospital and the
sponsorship right and service contract held by the
Group were recognised as other intangible assets.
Accordingly, the sponsorship right and service
contract with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMBA486,000,000 formed the consideration for the
business combination.

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

42. ¥ 6w

(b)

ERBRERERAF

MR2020F 58208 » LB T A%
B ([VETRERT)) 2 EFRIERETT
TIEET - ERNAEEERLBNR
M ERR GRS R AT LA
HEARGER 2 EN EFRA
NEBBEMER T T BHERE
PTABREE S BIR L W RERE
B B 122 il 4 o BN VETREE BT8R
BEEIRIEF R 20205 A2 H L
AW ERBRENEERABES
HEAEENPBRE -

RIBEBEBE A NEBERE
BEROERA  UHEANEERF
EHRBPEMREERERASHE
HhEEEE - HEM  BREE
AR #486,000,000 7T A £2 3% 4 F1
ARG & B T WIBEBE H 8
KRB -

|
A

|
;

T

fuisiy
>qd
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(c)

On 1 June 2020, the articles of association of
Beijing CEEC Hospital, Beijing CEEC Shuozhou
Hospital, Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital,
Guangxi Hospital, Gaoxin District
Xingyuan Community Healthcare Centre, Gaoxin
District Tianle Community Healthcare Centre,
Tiandong Street Dianchang Road Community
Healthcare Centre and Hefei
Changning Community Healthcare Centre
“Run Neng Hospitals”) were
amended. Having considered the power of the
Group based on
association together with the relevant service
contracts entered into by the Group and the Run
Neng Hospitals, in the opinion of the directors,
the Group has obtained the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the Run Neng
Hospitals and control the Run Neng
Hospitals since the effective date of the amended
articles of association on 1 June 2020.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the Run
Neng hospitals were consolidated in the Group's
financial statements thereafter.

Hydropower

Gaoxin District

(collectively, the

the amended articles of

over

Prior to the business combination, the Group was
the sponsor of the Run Neng Hospitals and the
sponsorship rights and service contracts held by
the Group were recognised as other intangible
assets. Accordingly, the sponsorship rights and
service contracts with an aggregate carrying
RMB116,177,000 formed the
consideration for the business combination.

amount of

42. £ &0t

(c)
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital, Huaikuang Hospital and the
Run Neng Hospitals as at the dates of business
combinations were as follows:

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

42. ¥ & tw

Eéﬁ%é@#ﬁ,ﬁﬁ BB TR
T&JF?@E%%&E’JTE&%UéE&E%
ZAREEAT:

Notes

Pt &

Jinan
Zhong Qi
Hosp|ta|

Eot I

RMB'000
ARETTT

Huaikuang
Hospital

TR 2 B
RMB'000
ARBTT

Run Neng
Hospitals
S
EQ’F‘

=Rv

RMB'000
AR®TT

Property, plant and equipment %1% « B&&E K& 15 69,900 362,310 73,030 505,240
Right-of-use assets FRBEE 16(a) 45,796 — 51,918 97,714
Inventories FE 6,450 29,313 20,857 56,620
Trade and hills receivables FEWE 5 3IB K
EELI&%—%%E; 31,732 97,672 17,105 146,509
Prepayments, deposits and BNRE RE
other receivables &ﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘?ﬂlﬁl IE 643 74,498 21,709 96,850
Financial assets at FVTPL Lxﬂﬁ{ﬁfﬁ:ﬁriﬂ
/\g u-l_]\}gﬁ:ll
MEREE — 200,000 70,000 270,000
Pledged deposit [REATLEES N — 37 — 37
Cash and cash equivalents RekBE2EEY 260,787 52,755 57,909 371,451
Trade and bills payables EHESFIER
ANES (34,514)  (137,210)  (69,085)  (240,809)
Other payables and accruals HAh e IR K &
ATER (27,858)  (162,028)  (53,920)  (243,806)
Interest-bearing bank FERITER
borrowing — — (12,000) (12,000)
Lease liabilities ﬂ&ﬁ1 16(b) (24,965) — (51,918 (76,883)
Retirement benefit obligations B (K7 H & (£ 35 — (26,318) — (26,318)
Provision B 37 — (5,029) — (5,029)
Total identifiable net assets at T/&;‘EETEZEI%%
fair value A& ?%fﬁﬁugﬁ 327,971 486,000 125,605 939,576
Non-controlling interest iR (81,993) - - (81,993)
Goodwill on acquisition WREENEE 17 8,257 — — 8,257
Gain on bargain purchase BB = 7 — - (9,428) (9,428)
254,235 486,000 116,177 856,412
Satisfied by: PRNIVESSE
Cash Be 254,235 — — 254,235
Other intangible assets HiEREE — 486,000 116,177 602,177
254,235 486,000 116,177 856,412

The fair values of the trade and bills receivables and
other receivables as at the dates of business
combinations amounted to RMB146,509,000 and
RMB74,633,000, respectively. The gross contractual
amounts of trade and bills receivables and other
receivables were RMB180,094,000 and RMB75,248,000,
respectively, of which trade and bills receivables of
RMB33,585,000 and other receivables of RMB615,000
are expected to be uncollectible.

REKESHBE  EBURE S HENMER
=g E M ENZIAEN AR BED R A
AR #146,509, OOOE&AE%
74,633,0007T ° FEHAZ IR K I =
%Féﬁiﬁmﬂ’iuézwémz@éﬂéﬁa aNilr=)
AR 180,094, OOOE&AE%
75,248,0007T Hrh o B S RER
EUZ 15 A FR#533,585,000 7T A K E At
FE U F 18 A R #5615,000 7T 78 Hi & A UL
[E] °

ERBRERSRAA —T—
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 42. ZH% &t @
Goodwill arose in the business combination of Jinan BEEEABRNEREHEADE 2
Zhong Qi Hospital because the consideration paid for HREBEHAMZNHREER LBE
the business combination effectively included, inter alia, (KBl @&eBmENA EQBE&ZF%
amounts in relation to the benefits of expected B% B8 828 T8 HE A 17 R A as AT A 7Kk
synergies from combining the respective operations of B = A B REE - 258 R /xﬁ?ﬁi?ﬁ
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital and the Group. These benefits BHRER  RARZZERTARAFTE
are not recognised separately from goodwill because AR & E R ERAER o FTRERA
they do not meet the recognition criteria for EEBE TR A AR AR FTISH o
identifiable intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.
The gain on bargain purchase of RMB9,428,000 arising /F'EJﬁu/\gﬁmii‘k/\fﬁﬁiﬁ’]%ﬁ%ﬁﬁqﬁ
from the business combination of the Run Neng 2 AR#9,428,0007T » TEHNER
Hospitals was primarily attributable to the ABHHREARY116,177,000TE R
consideration for the business combination of HEE R B ARFEENAAEE -
RMB116,177,000 being less than the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the Run Neng Hospitals.
The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities using REBFEAREBRE A PBFSNEE
the present value of the remaining lease payments at NERE HEMUENHEESE - F
the dates of business combinations. The right-of-use AEEEDNERBASENHEEENRE
assets were measured at an amount equal to the = e
lease liabilities.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of these ZEEFEHORSRESTAT
business combinations is as follows:
RMB'000
AR®ETT
Cash consideration HeaRE (254,235)
Cash and bank balances acquired B EEIR S RIBTTE R 371,451
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BeRREZEWERA
included in cash flows from investing (FFAREEEFERE
activities m=E) 117,216
Since the business combinations, Jinan Zhong Qi BEBA AR - BREEABR - R
Hospital, Huaikuang Hospital and the Run Neng ELNEEEES L 4%1‘*.@12020

Hospitals contributed RMB1,027,862,000 to the
Group's revenue and RMB16,537,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Had the combinations of Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital, Huai
Kuang Hospital and the Run Neng Hospitals taken
place at the beginning of the year ended 31
December 2020, the revenue of the Group and the
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have been RMBS3,154,349,000 and
RMB307,970,000, respectively.

228

FN2ANBLEFENRATR T AR
#1,027,862,0007T © A& OF T E & Bf
7 AR #16,537,0007T °

MR EFRE T BN - EEERAEE
RERMAEHEETEZ=2020F12A
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AR #3,154,349,0007C f1 A R ¥
307,970,0007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

In addition to the acquisition of 75% equity interest in
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital as detailed in note 42 to the
financial statements, on 21 August 2020, the Group
has succeeded in the bid for the remaining 25% equity
interest in Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital held by CNHTC at
a cash consideration of RMB84,687,000 through the
listing-for-sale process conducted by the Shandong
Property Rights Exchange Centre. The acquisition was
completed on 31 August 2020. The carrying value of
the 25% interest in the net assets of Jinan Zhong Qi
Hospital as at the date of acquisition was
RMB83,684,000. Accordingly,
RMB1,003,000 was recognised in capital reserve.

the difference of

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of RMB2,072,000 (2019:
RMB21,478,000) and RMB2,072,000 (2019:
RMB21,478,000), respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for office properties.

(i) During the vyear, the payables to the
Sponsored Hospitals of RMB37,854,000 was
settled by offsetting against trade and bills
receivables.

(il)  During the year, the Group acquired right-of-
use assets and other intangible assets of
RMB24,395,000 and RMB8,000,000,
respectively, and the considerations were
settled by offsetting against
receivables.

other

B ERARMEE
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43. WIEKM B QRN EIMER

BB SRR M s 42 it BB B R &
TERT5%RERNEFIEN  REER
2020F8 A21 HBBILREEER ST
DETHBEBEHEREF UARK
84,687,000 LIRS ¥ EKINUEE T+
HERNTEEERFENEREAERE
#R25% AR 1 o W i 70 20205F8 H31 H
TR R R - BErRERBRFEE
5% BEENEAEEAARKE
83,684,0007T - HEH - ZFEA R
1,003,000 LHER B EARRNTE °

4. ZFEBEERERKRWHE

(a) TEHFBREXF

(i) FA-AEEGABEAYER
ERBRB o EREEER
HEAEMNIERSIL M 5
B ANR®2072,0007T
(2019F : AR ®
21,478,0007T) #1 A R #&
2,072,0007T (20194 : AR
#21,478,0007T) °

(iy FAR - EAEREERRE
AER#37,854,0007T Y38
e B 5 7B K e =
BmEE -

(i) FA - XEERBFTE2ER
AR #24,395,000 70 HI
BEEMSEARAR
8,000,0007T &Y K fth & JZ &
E - HEDEEEMELGK
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 44. FEREREB/ROMME @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

(b) REMEETHELENER
2E)

2020 2020
Payables
to the Interest-
Sponsored bearing bank Lease
Hospitals  borrowings liabilities
JE ) 22 e T EERTT
BB FNIA B
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 255,571 578,337 18,883
New leases MEE — - 2,072
Changes from financing BE )EEIIRE N
cash flows b= = 139,799 (8,683)
Foreign exchange b 5, & &
movement = (45,835) =
Interest expense FERX - 12,797 3,242
Interest paid classified as DB AR E/ZEHIR
financing cash flows MBI B
i3 - (12,797) (3,242)
Increase arising from Ui Bg A B A
acquisition/consolidation A) EE A A9 38 0
of subsidiaries = 12,000 76,883
Covid-19-related rent A AR
concessions from a RS HE
lessor & TR — — (1,791)
Lease termination HEXR = = (20,177)
Lease modification — HEESE —
Reduction in the scope HEHE 2D
of leases — — (1,014)
Set off with trade and bills ~ EEfE W E 5 IH &
receivables JE L 3R 5 4K 8 (37,854) — —
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 217,717 684,301 66,173
2019 20194

Payables

to the
Sponsored
Hospitals

JiE A~ 52 e i
BB FNIA
RMB’000

AREEFIT

Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings
T EERTT
&=
RMB'000
ARBTT

Lease
liabilities

RMB'000
AR TFIT

At 1 January 2019 20191 A1 H 254,876 490,672 138
New leases FHEE — — 21,478
Changes from financing BEEBHREN

cash flows g 695 75,785 (2,733)
Foreign exchange e I)

movement — 11,880 —
Interest expense B R 879 15,027 528
Interest paid classified as DA AREEEIR

financing cash flows SRHE T A

53 (879) (15,027) (528)

At 31 December 2019 72019412 4318 255,571 578,337 18,883
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

(c)

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

B ERARMEE
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44. MERERERROM T @

HERSRHAR

UTRRERERKRMEENHE
ERSMEAERE

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’'000
ARBTTT

RMB'000
AR¥ET T2

Within operating activities KEEEA 4,609 3,237
Within financing activities MEEEN 11,925 3,261
16,534 6,498

45. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

Note
Bt 5
Contracted, but not provided for: DET 4B KRB -
Property, plant and equipment @M% BB
B
Repayable investment amounts RIFIOTLZ HE M
to IOT hospitals under 10T IOTE& B 1 /Y
arrangements JEEERE
-]
Capital contribution to a M — B AR
subsidiary EE
Capital contribution to an ) — [E B & N A
associate FE

45, FiE
A EBMR RS KRG AT 2 8 AR :

2020
20204

2019
2019%
RMB’000
ARBTIT

RMB’000
ARETTT

20,429 9,076
538,000 545,889
- 254,235
869,117 —

Note: B3 -
(i) On 10 November 2020, the Group entered into an agreement for (i)
the increase of capital of the Group's associate, JR Holdings, with
Jing Mei Group, pursuant to which the registered capital of JR
Holdings would be increased to RMB1,000,000,000 and the Group
committed a capital contribution to JR Holdings in the amount of
RMB869,117,000.

ERBRERERAF

AEBEFEEEN2020F11 A10B g E
AN BB A AR BRI ek Rt
FEHEBRMNEMEABENEARE
1,000,000,0007T * i 7% £ B 5% ) 7 B 22 A%
JFE AE%869,117,0007T °
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46. BB A X 5

AR SRR E A E 5 B0
% RYRXBHEN  FEE
FRRMHTHEARBNOT :

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the balances, arrangements and (a)
transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

2020
20204

RMB'000
ARETFIT

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARBTIT

Healthcare services BERK
Subsidiaries controlled by FEEHERA
China Resources A ([ BE
Company Limited (“CR E ) BT S Y
Co.")* iy /NI 1,113 — A
GPO business GPO ¥
A subsidiary controlled by ':P B 2 B P42
CR Co. ) — e B B
YNET! — 91 A
Other hospital-derived H fth 88 BT 07 & AR 7S
services
Subsidiaries controlled by FR B 2 R P i
CR Co. olihyE=PNG 198 2,627 A
Other income Hab g A
Subsidiaries controlled by rp [ 2 8 P 42 )
CR Co. EOlRpEERNEG] 982 2,398 A
Purchases of goods RIEBEm
Subsidiaries controlled by Fh [ 2 ) P 4 )
CR Co. B B B8 2~ A 264,730 35,994 B
Investment income on UARBETFER
financial assets at FVTPL HBH5t N80
NEemEERE
U =
Subsidiaries controlled by B2 B AT I
CR Co. EOIURPEERNEG] 2,105 5,546 C
Interest income on bank MITERFERLA
deposits
Subsidiaries controlled by B2 B P I
CR Co. B B /& X A 452 274 C
Other purchases and HXBREA
expenses
Subsidiaries controlled by B2 P I
CR Co. olap=s NG 4,070 9,225 D
Lease payments HEAMR
Subsidiaries controlled by FR B 2 R P i )
CR Co. by NG 5,621 2,924 E

*
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CR Co. has significant influence over the Group.

* TREEEHASEEEAN

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020

s 4

?/E



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BUE R E U

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

46. BB ST R @m0

(continued)

(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties: (b)

Due from related parties

RMB’000
ARBETIT

B AT B Y

S
FE WX BA Bk 75 FRTR

2020
20204

2019

20194
RMB'000
ARET T

Subsidiaries controlled by

CR Co. {agEENG|

Trade in nature =L 3,638 6,045 A

Non-trade in nature FESHMHE 1,934 3,339 F
5,472 9,384

An ageing analysis of the trade-related
receivables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

RS HRRIBEER AR
EIEBEE2MAREEKE 5N
THERRE DT

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARETTT

Within 60 days 60X A 3,342 6,045
61 to 180 days 61E180K 196 —
3,638 6,045

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one
year.

Due to related parties

FEW AR T A R EEA - 2 B
KRBR—FREE -

V& 3 B B 05 SR

2020
20204

RMB’000
ARBETT

o B 2 B P Y

Subsidiaries controlled by

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARET T

CR Co. Ip=PNG|
Trade in nature 25 ME 93,361 2,137 B
Non-trade in nature FESHMHE 4,390 2,706 G
97,751 4,843
The amounts due to related parties are FER R T REAEEE - 28

unsecured, interest-free and

demand.

repayable on

ERBRERERAF

RARBRIEIE

“ERFR
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Outstanding balances with
(continued)

related parties: (b)

Bank balances

RMB000
ARBETT

46. B X 5 m

HEB TR R EEESR  (B)

MITHEER

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’000
AREET T

o I%FJF)’T? 1 &Y
8

Subsidiaries controlled by
CR Co.

260,427

27,146 C

The bank balances carried interest at a rate of
0.35% (2019: 0.35%) per annum.

Financial assets at FVTPL

RMB'000

RITHEB I FENE0.35%
(20194 : 0.35%) =T & °

URREBEEFEEHEEE
FFABRENEREE

2020
20204

2019
20194
RMB’000

AR¥T T

B P %lJEI’J
— KB A

A subsidiary controlled by
CR Co.

2,519

ARETT

120,675 C

The financial assets at FVTPL carried interest at a
rate of 2.8% (2019: 3.8%) per annum.

Z\\ﬁ{ﬁfﬁu+iﬂﬁﬁgﬁgbu+AT§
ENEREERFNE28%TE
(20194 : 3.8%) °

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of (00 AEEFEEBEABZHM :
the Group:
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARBTT
Short term employee benefits HEHEERF 32,758 34,887
Post-employment benefits BERR 1R 1R A 89 450
Equity-settled share-based LR AR 2+
payment expense F > 3,050 3,335
Total compensation paid to key MEBEBABLNEHN
management personnel e R 35,897 38,672
Further details of directors’ and the chief EERBHECNENE—DFHF
executive's emoluments are included in note 10 BRI KM FE10 ©

to the financial statements.
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BEE T X5 w0

RMB4,760,000 in 2019 constituted a connected transaction as
defined 14A of the Listing Rules
Transaction(s)”) and was governed by the decoration agreement

in Chapter ("Connected
dated 23 May 2019 (the "Decoration Agreement”) entered into
between China Resources Hospital Management & Consulting Co.
Ltd. (“CR Hospital Management & Consulting”), China Resources
Healthcare Technology Development (China) Co., Ltd. (ZE{EER
REX£HE(PE)BMRAR, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources Healthcare Group Limited) and Beijing Uconia Decoration
Engineering Co., Ltd. (It ESHEFEH TIZEMR 2 F], a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land"”)). Such
transaction was subject to the Relevant Requirements but was
exempt from circular and independent shareholders’ approval
pursuant to rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and such relevant
requirements had been complied with. The remaining related party
transactions also constituted Connected Transactions but were fully

exempted from the Relevant Requirements.

(continued)

Notes: B 5
The corresponding related party transactions constituted continuing A. HEBEB AR ZER T ERMIMES LT
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing AN EMRAD FVUAEMEENEFERR
Rules (“Continuing Connected Transaction(s)”) but were fully ERG(HEBERS]) - ERE LETHRA
exempted from the relevant disclosures and other requirements, F14A 76N EET 2R ET EHRAIIE T
including, announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ BHEBEREMEE BEAE  BHRE
approval and annual review in accordance with the Rules Governing AR ERE R FEER ((HEEXR]) -
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) (the “Relevant Requirements”) pursuant to rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.
The corresponding related party transactions constituted Continuing B. BB TR ZENBERERS  ED 5
Connected Transactions, which were respectively governed by the R2019F M FERA AR HER (£E) 5
original pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables AR ([EMEE]) HEA2017F7AH218
supply framework agreement dated 21 July 2017 entered into ZREES - BRERM R ERAEMEEIESRT
between the Company and China Resources (Holdings) Company FELRR2020FE R FEEIR AN G EHEBHEE
Limited (“CR Holdings”) for fiscal year 2019 and the new HEIA2019F 11 A7 FELBHERNIT
framework agreement dated 7 November 2019 entered into WABTHBAER ZEXFEETHRZ
between the Company and CR Holdings for fiscal year 2020, and Ko
were subject to the Relevant Requirements. The Relevant
Requirements with respect to these transactions had been
complied with.
The corresponding related party transactions constituted Continuing C. R TR IENBERERS  ED 5
Connected Transactions, which were respectively governed by the 20195 B I 4F JE # 2 AR A B B RO 5 B AR 1T
original strategic cooperation agreement dated 21 July 2017 B ARAR ([EEHETT]) HEA2017F7
entered into between the Company and China Resources Bank of R218 2 REBEE 1R RN 2020 F B R 4F
Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (“CR Bank”) for fiscal year 2019 and the new Fi AR B EERRTAHR20199F11 77
strategic cooperation agreement dated 7 November 2019 entered H2Z B ERRNTT  WEETHEE
into between the Company and CR Bank for fiscal year 2020, and Ko ZEXSEETHEEX -
were subject to the Relevant Requirements. The Relevant
Requirements with respect to these transactions had been
complied with.
The corresponding related party transaction amounting to D. R2019F A — I8 A AR 4,760,000

TTEVARRRRAEE S R S T MR AIE14A
EfiEENBERS ([BERS])  WiKE
HEREEZNARAR ([EHEREEZ
#l) - EEERRREERRE(FE)BERA
A(EBRREEARAATBZ2ENBA
ARt REREEHTEBRAR (EEE
WERAR([EHEM]) TEB22EAWBER
7)) BHA20194E6 230 2 & & ([H1E
WD M7 - EAR SEBTHEBAER (R
B EMABAIE14A 762 IGEE R38BT
ARE AR ESK) W B ETiE A MRRRE
MTHEBIZINABERS  EETD
HelTHEBER-

ERBEERERLAT —ZT_TFWR

235



> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

236

PSRRI EE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

The corresponding related party transaction amounting to
RMB1,002,000 in 2020 constituted a Continuing Connected
Transaction, which was governed by the original cooperation
agreement dated 21 June 2018 and the new cooperation
agreement dated 7 November 2019 entered into between the
Company and China Resources Leasing Company Limited (&7
EAHBRAF]), and was subject to the Relevant Requirements. The
Relevant Requirements with respect to this transaction had been
complied with. The remaining related party transactions constituted
Connected Transactions, which were governed by the lease
agreement dated 23 May 2019 entered into between CR Hospital
Management & Consulting as lessee and the Fengtai branch of
China Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (FEHE AR (JLR) BHEMREARARE A AR, which
is a branch company of a subsidiary of CR Land) as lessor, and
were subject to the Relevant Requirements but were exempt from
circular and independent shareholders’ approval pursuant to rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, and such relevant requirements had
been complied with.

Among the total outstanding amounts due from related parties as
of 31 December 2020 which are non-trade in nature, RMB786,000
(31 December 2019: RMB786,000) were deposits paid pursuant to
the lease agreement dated 23 May 2019 entered into between CR
Hospital Management & Consulting as lessee and the Fengtai
branch of China Resources Land Hongjing (Beijing) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (EEEM5AR (LR FHEREERARE
&% 72 &), which is a branch company of a subsidiary of CR Land)
as lessor, and RMB105,000 (31 December 2019: Nil) were deposits
paid pursuant to the lease agreement dated 7 November 2019
entered into between the Company, with a partly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital, as lessee, and
China Resources Leasing Company Limited as lessor. The
remaining amounts as of 31 December 2020 and 2019 were
incurred in relation to the transactions with connected parties of
the Company which were fully exempted from the Relevant
Requirements.

Among the total outstanding amounts due to related parties as of
31 December 2020 which are non-trade in nature, RMB1,148,000
(2019: RMB2,240,000) was payable pursuant to the Decoration
Agreement, while the remaining amounts as of 31 December 2020
and 2019 were incurred in relation to the transactions with
connected parties of the Company which were fully exempted
from the Relevant Requirements.

46. BBE AR Z

GEX

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020

(&)

M2020F B AR —IEE RE A ARME1,002,000
TR S R BEK T —IERERER
5 WERAARHRERHESRARBYA
201856 A21 BHMR & (ER % 7 H H452019
F11 7B EERRRIT - WEESTIAH
B -MEEXHGBETHBER - #HTH
BT RZSEKTRERS  DHIREERR
REREAERRMES REBEMSASR (b
R EHEREBRAREES AR (KAE
HEMTEBWNBARZ AR EREHETR
20195 A23B AT M EHHNTT - BH
RSBETHEBER(ERE EHHRAE
14A.76/(2) 1638238 bk [ 08 L IR SR LA R B 3Rk)
B ST A A ARRRRE -

72020512 431 B 2 38 5 1L B fE U B s

FIEBEE PO AR 786,0007T (20194 12
A318 : AR#786,0007T) JhiR 5% M &k
ERHAEREBRA REBEMLT JER)
EHERZEERARNEESI AT (KAEBHE
WTEMBAR A AR ERHAFR2019
F5A23AUMAEHHEMIMNES - A
R #105,0007T (20196128318 : &) J1iR
BAARIEAAR —HF2ENBRRIER
FRERBENBRIEARBARERHEESR
AERHWEA BT R2019F 11 A78 5T
EHAMZATRES - MR2020F %20194F
12831 BRBRERBEAARERBEALY
RPEL MEBXZETEHEETIAR

ER

72020512 431 B 2 38 5 L E S R

HIBHETEE R E ARYE,148,0007T (2019
F: AR2,240,0007T0) Ty AR IR 2 & Wk AT
BE AR BT 3R T 20204 % 20194F12 A
SNBMBRENBREAARRBMEALT LIRS
EE MABXSETEHRETHBAEE -
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CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RImEHRSEN e T EMNREER
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N

period are as follows:

2020 20204

Financial assets THEE

Receivables from |10T

REIOTE R 2 FE U

Financial
assets at
FVTPL —

Mandatorily

measured as
such
NAnEE

stEas
SEEA
RS R
A —
AU £
RMB'000
ARBF T

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

S
AR ED
SHAE
RMB'000
N

S
RMB’000
AEBF T

hospitals A = 77,214 77,214
Loan to a sponsored m) — [ 2R P i BE B
hospital RIENER - 51,197 51,197
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 55818 & fE
W R & = 618,103 618,103
Financial assets included in st ATERFRIE -« F
prepayments, deposits B K H th el
and other receivables HIEM A E - 334,293 334,293
Due from related parties JrE U B Bt 5 3k IR = 5,472 5,472
Financial assets at FVTPL RanBEFZA
HEH ABx
WEmEE 198,014 — 198,014
Other financial assets at H b 15 S A R
amortised cost ArENEREE - 265,022 265,022
Pledged deposits EE TR — 17,454 17,454
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY - 2,701,370 2,701,370
198,014 4,070,125 4,268,139
EREBRERERAT —T-ZTFH
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 47. Eo LT AEw
CATEGORY (continued)
2020 (continued) 2020515(?5)
Financial liabilities THEE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

REHA A E
NERBE
RMB'000
ARBTT

Trade and bills payables JERNE SHRIBRENRE 564,125
Financial liabilities included in other payables and qu)\EPMEH KIE N FE AT

accruals =9 E’Ji Faj‘iféf,a 180,900
Due to related parties JE 1) R B 97,751
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals E1‘JL55%#)JW?E% ?ﬁy’(lﬁ 217,717
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITERK 684,301
Lease liabilities HEBE 66,173
1,810,967

2019 20194

Financial assets THEE

Receivables from |I0T

IEIOT—@@Z},‘EH&

Financial
assets at
FVTPL —
Mandatorily assets at
measured as amortised
such cost

LAQ;‘METE?

Financial

12 5
DN 1y
TREE
RMB'000
ARETT

g§ %lj J//( U:t uﬂ—i
RMB’000
AR¥T

hospitals FRIE — 80,979 80,979
Loan to a sponsored F‘J—F'ﬁﬁ#j#ﬁé%
hospital %EL\E’JEM — 55,062 55,062
Trade receivables EUE 5K — 618,698 618,698
Financial assets included in st AFEfT X IE =
prepayments, deposits pgé&fﬁ\@ﬁﬂk
and other receivables /TAIEE’J@%E%{F — 204,830 204,830
Due from related parties JiE Wt BA BS: 75 SR IR — 9,384 9,384
Financial assets at FVTPL LA’D\/LETTTE?EH
HE gt ABm
NEREE 358,254 — 358,254
Other financial assets at o Ath 32 B S A AN
amortised cost AEMNERMEE — 25,114 25,114
Cash and cash equivalents BeMASEED — 2,006,220 2,006,220
358,254 3,000,287 3,358,541
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 47. oL@ T Hw
CATEGORY (continued)
2019 (continued) 2019ﬁ': (4&)
Financial liabilities cHEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R HEK AT E
MERMAE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Trade payables JERTE 5508 241,303
Financial liabilities included in other payables and 5t A H i f& <t 28 & fE =1
accruals ERAMTRmAs 141,062
Due to related parties JE 1~ BB B 75 B IB 4,843
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JE ) 22 e i B B SRR 255,571
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFEIRITER 578,337
Lease liabilities HEBE 18,883
1,239,999

ERBRERERAF

A

|
"
e
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48. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, balances with related
parties, the current portion of other financial assets at
amortised cost, trade and bills payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
payables to the Sponsored Hospitals and interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of receivables from IOT hospitals, loan
to a sponsored hospital and the non-current portion of
other financial assets at amortised cost have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The fair value of the listed financial asset at FVTPL is
based on quoted market prices.

The fair values of the unlisted financial assets at
FVTPL are estimated by using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the market interest rates of
instruments with similar terms and risks.

48. TR T EMNAABERAR

BEEX

EREFETRELREFEY 2K
WER - BEEZFBERERER &t
AFEN IR ~ REE S E A R WA Y
TRVEE - HBAMT AR - HinE
WA ENEREENNBED - &
NBSFALENEE - st ARMEN
REANMEERNEHMAE  EAER
BB IR A KT BIRITRER - BRNE
LT ABRHERERE - IARAREBE
BEATRRmE(E

TREENMBBENAABERENRS
(EHFBFELERINRETBRR
BMTAMSBAR AT EMBRE
RARFERAREE

KEIOTE T < R RIE - A — A 8 3t
HE B B HR M B0 B ARUA S B A H i S AR AR
AENERMEENI SR NARE
BERREAHAKESRE  KAAA
BOUE  EERR L RERD IR
TARBAISMEREERKFE -

MR A B B A EB B ABRN L
R A EN AR BEERTISRE -

RonBEFELEZHT ABRRNIE
thEREENAABERREARR
R AR TREMTISAE - 58
FRRSREMGERUGEEN -
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48. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
BUE R E U

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

48. TR TEMNAREBEEREAR
BEEBR @

DRBEEER

value TRHEPETASESHRTANAAEE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

HEER

BARBEGTEZEE:
R20204F 12 H31H

Fair value measurement using
FERNATRENA R BEFE
Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ARG Z BT BEANA
BE BEHA BRuAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(%) (BZ#) ( R)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARETT

Financial assets at FVTPL AR EBEFEEEZB:TA
BRmemiE 92,718 105,296 - 198,014
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 H31H

Financial assets at FVTPL

BamemEE

Fair value measurement using
FERANTEEN AR BEFTE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BTS2 BEAA EvNGY|
BE BEBAE B ANE st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—%) (F=/) (F=%)
RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000

RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

113,485 244,769 — 358,254

The Group did not have any financial

measured at fair value as at 31 December 2020 (2019:

Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial

assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).

liabilities

R2020F 12 A31H » NEBE I E ({7
NAREBEFENSREE (2019
/) o

FR - cHMEENEREBEES RN
FIR2EIFEEAABETENE
BotR BEDLE = RAE#E (2019
F|)o

EHBRERERART —T-TF®H 241
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, other
financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets at
FVTPL, payables to the Sponsored Hospitals and
interest-bearing bank borrowings. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as receivables from 10T
hospitals, loan to a sponsored hospital, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, balances with related
parties, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, and lease
liabilities, which mainly arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s loan to a
sponsored hospital and interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its
interest rate risk. The Group mitigates this risk by
closely monitoring the movements in interest rates and
reviewing its available credit facilities and their
utilisation regularly.

49.

BHRREEERERER

rEENFEZemTABERENRS
EEY S EMER - HAIRE KA
AENERMEE UWAAREBEFEAHR
FEANERNEREE B RIE
Bl RIEA KRG BIRITIER - B
TANFTEZEENEAREEMNESRM
B® e K’gliﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁé\%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ

B1& - OIAK B 10T & B 2 FE Y5k
7] — [ B i B P R (L O B 3K H&zfé
SRR N EWRE - 5T ATRNFIE - R

B RAMBNKENSRARE « B
WoT e BB R B SR B B
1 - St AR SRR B A S
WAR URAEAE TBEBERAE
HIE A -

ZK‘i@%?ﬂIEFIE’JIEH B = M

ELB CHNMER - EEE TmEBES
o MR ERERE - “?A%EIH
ﬁ”‘:ﬁtﬁﬂ R EVIERER - IRBRALn T o

A = = b

REEAXNT SN RSB AR T 20
N5 E ) — A R R B B iR eV B KA
NEBFEN RN BIRITERER
Zli‘ilj’zﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁii\%ﬁlﬂﬁqﬂﬁﬂ

G o ZNEE (B3R ) BE 1R B R
IEH@%EETWDE%@F&EE% (]
I PR B AE e R g
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact on loan to a sponsored

hospital and interest-bearing bank borrowings).

49.

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

BERREEEEZEREE @

2= & B )

TRETTEMBHEMBEERFTEN
BRT  AEESF A NE CGREY R
—HEREEREEAE RN BRT
fERHFE) BHREE R EEHOH

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit
basis points before tax
BB IR IEINE
i Crd) g/ Crd)
RMB'000
ARBTT
2020 20204
Loan to a sponsored hospital m— AR RRIEHAER 50 256
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — AR P i B P IRV B R (50) (256)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEERITEK 50 (3,422)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FPERITER (50) 3,422
2019 20194
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — 2R B iR A B 50 275
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — R BT IR M E K (50) (275)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITER 50 (2,892)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER (50) 2,892

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures mainly arise from operating and financing
transactions of operating units in currencies other than
the units’ functional currencies.

5B = B

AEEARZEEER - HBEERT R
KEKLLEMNENEEEEAIMNEE
ETHRENBERS -

ERBRERERAF

A

|
"
e

&
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. I EMREEBEREE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) S EE 3 B ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the T?%ZE/T\TEFEEETJ@“ET%%T“E']
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible EAT AREBAAE(EEEEE
change in the United States dollars (“US$") and HK$ MBENAARBEEZS) RBREHRY
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, EL(ET)MBTLERSIE A L&
of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the A BURM o

fair values of monetary assets and liabilities).

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit
US$/HKS rate before tax
=i/
78 7T i & 7t A1l A1
#mCrd)  Ean Crd)
% RMB'000
AR®ETT
2020 20204
If the RMB weakens against the US$ fIARE HETRE 5 54
If the RMB strengthens against the AR K ETHE
US$ (5) (54)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ AR X BTiE 5 (33,064)
If the RMB strengthens against the AR X BTHAE
HK$ (5) 33,064
2019 20194
If the RMB weakens against the US$ 1A R# K 2tz E 5 9
If the RMB strengthens against the  AARE X ETHE
US$ (5) (9)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ 1A R H B Tz E 5 (28,307)
If the RMB strengthens against the AR K BTHE
HK$ (5) 28,307
Credit risk EERE
The Group mainly transacts with recognised and AEEFEZERBAAREEBRITNE =7
creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances are EIIRS - BB IERESXIFERE
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's EomASEENZEERERRRAFEREK
exposure to bad debts increased during the year B/ A ERmARTEG I - ELBim
mainly due to acquisition/consolidation of hospitals, EEBRENETRREE -
which are subject to tighter regulation of medical
insurance.

244 China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
BUE R E U

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. I EREREBEZERBE @

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end
staging

B 1= [ B I F 45 P BR

TREVNENAEBEEFERRNEEER
EXGEEEERR  FEEROHER
(RIEHMER AT EEANETBER
R HHIER TERS) » RR12A31
HRFEREERSE 27N EHESE

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due

information unless other information is available

without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging

classification as at 31 December. The amounts EemEEMEKREE -
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.

As at 31 December 2020 R202012531H

Receivables from IOT hospitals

KEI0T & e 2 e d kA

12-month
ECLs
121E A
BHEE
&8

Stage 1
F1FEER
RMB'000
ARETFTT

Lifetime ECLs

Simplified
Total
At
RMB'000
ARETFT

approach
ikl ePapzS
RMB'000
ARETFT

Stage 2
FE2RER
RMB'000
ARETFT

Stage 3
FEIRER
RMB'000
ARETFT

— Not yet past due — & R 48 A 77,214 - - - 77,214

Loan to a sponsored hospital ) — R BB IR A
B

— Not yet past due — [ AREER 51,197 - - - 51,197
Trade receivables* FEU & 55k IE * = = — 643,680 643,680
Bills receivables FEW =&

— Not yet past due — & R 48 A 400 - - - 400
Contract assets* AHNEE" = = = 19,840 19,840
Financial assets included in FFATERFIE - RES R

prepayments, deposits and other Ht R IERN S &

receivables B

— Normal** — —fR** 334,337 - - - 334,337

— Doubtful** — R = = 1,203 = 1,203
Due from related parties JE s B Bk 5 RRIB 1,934 = = 3,538 5,472
Other financial assets at amortised HAi R HR AT 2N S

cost BEE

— Not yet past due — A AR 8 AR 265,022 — — — 265,022
Pledged deposits [z EibeF-

— Not yet past due — & R 48 A 17,454 - - - 17,454
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEED

— Not yet past due — & R 8 A 2,701,370 - - — 2,701,370

3,448,928 = 1,203 667,058 4,117,189
EREBRERERAT —T-ZTFH
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. I EREE B EREX @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end EeRBRFERE@

staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12531H

12-month
Lifetime ECLs

Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1ER  FE2lER  FEIRER A& A&t
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTFIT ARETT ARETT ARBTFT ARETT

Receivables from IOT hospitals REIOTEPT 2 FE U GRIE
— Not yet past due — HREE 80,979 — — — 80,979
Loan to a sponsored hospital M — BRI REE IR
BR
— Not yet past due — & R 4 A 55,062 — — — 55,062
Trade receivables* EWE 558> — — — 619,453 619,453
Contract assets* BREE* — — — 12,120 12,120
Financial assets included in FFATERFIE  RES R
prepayments, deposits and other H B FEN S RE
receivables E
— Normal** — —Ag*x 204,873 — — — 204,873
— Doubtful** — R — — 1,084 — 1,084
Due from related parties JE UK BA B 5 BRIB 3,339 — — 6,047 9,386
Other financial assets at amortised ~ HAb iR R AAEN S
cost MEE
— Not yet past due — (AR AP 25,114 . . — 25,114
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEZED
— Not yet past due — & R 8 A 2,006,220 — — — 2,006,220
2,375,587 — 1,084 637,620 3,014,291
* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies * AL EERBCRETENEKE S HIE
the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the REXNEE  ERBHEEBHER DRI
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 27 and 28 to the financial HE IR KM 7E27 K28 H FE o
statements.
*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, *x FTATEMARIE RESREMBURRENS
deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when BMEENARBE WAREENEBEZE R
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that BEBVEERAREERBREZEN K
the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since FEEEERGAI K] -TA SRHEED
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial FEEEEREARIRE]-
assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's AEAEERENE SHIEMEAN
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables Emfe e e — S 2L BB S REN
are disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements. o7 E o

246  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to
shortage of funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity
risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities
of financial assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its risk to a shortage of funds by considering the
maturities of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank borrowings. The Group aims to
maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet
its liquidity requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

49. BiIXEREEEERBE @

REBESER

nBEERBEAREEE SRR
NEITR B EENER - AEBE MmN
nPpELRRIEREEHMEENAR
MEHEER - AREREEESREA
BENEREENDHARERESER
YRR ©

AEENEERBAEARITEREE
THEEEMEBE M 2 BREFE - K
SEEE#BREANA LIRS EFE
o ARERERBEETF K -

REBEARARMBRMNR - MEPRLEE
TREBENIHBEROT

Group REE
2020
20204
On demand/less
than 1 year 11to 5 years  Over 5 years Total
T' @
1&E55F 5EA L CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREF T AREF T AREF T
Trade and bills payables ENESREBRERNRIE 564,125 - - 564,125
Financial liabilities included in other B AEL A < 3ROR K B AT
payables and accruals ERNERAR 180,900 - - 180,900
Due to related parties JE AR 5 2B 97,751 - - 97,751
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals FETER M BB 2B 217,717 - - 217,717
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRRITER 688,166 - - 688,166
Lease liabilities HEARE 19,558 44,477 10,908 74,943
1,768,217 44,477 10,908 1,823,602

ERBRERERAF

A

|
"
e

&
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 49. IEEMEEEEREEX @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELEME @
Group (continued) AEEF (&)
2019
20194
On demand/less
than 1 year 1 to b years Total
BRE}R
LR1EF 1ZE65F B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT AR T T AR T T
Trade payables FERTE S FKIA 241,303 — 241,303
Financial liabilities included in other A A E M FE AT RROE R AT E B
payables and accruals NERaE 141,062 — 141,062
Due to related parties JE A BE W 75 IR 4,843 — 4,843
Payables to the Sponsored Hospitals JIE A< 22 5 4 B8 Bt 70 IE 255,571 — 255,571
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITER 581,869 — 581,869
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,287 15,178 20,465
1,229,935 15,178 1,245,113
Equity price risk R ERER
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of Rz EARE R A A s B BN E Bl 7F
equity securities decrease as a result of changes in the HFEENZDHERNERESANEE
levels of equity indices and the value of individual TR R B o A E Y HE 2 (B R R bt
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk RBER2020F12 A31HsF AR AR
arising from an equity investment included in financial BEFTEEEEZHTABENERHEE
assets at FVTPL (note 23) as at 31 December 2020. R A E (K1 5E23) - KAEBEH L™
The Group's listed investment is listed on the Hong WERBBBRZF LT - BRWEER
Kong Stock Exchange and is valued at a quoted market TS HmEMEE -

price at the end of the reporting period.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)

The market equity index for the following stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest
trading day in the year to the end of the reporting
period, and its respective highest and lowest points

during the year were as follows:

31 December

2020
2020F
12A318
Hong Kong — BB —
Hang Seng Index BEIEY 27,231

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

BERREEEEZEREE @

ERERRR @

AT EHRZ 5N ANFERE RS
R 5 BB TSR - AR
RAFENESMREEDEENT

31 December
2019

20194
12A318

High/low
2020
=/ &
20204

High/low
2019
=/
20194

29,056/21,696 28,190  30,280/24,897

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
every 5% change in the fair value of the equity
investment, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, its carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period.

based on

TRELTHEMBERMEERFIEZR
MR ER » BRI EEREH
RHFREE - RARENAAEBEE
5% M BURE DT °

Carrying amount Increase/
of equity

investment

decrease in
profit before tax
G IRINE
0, m A
RMB’000
ARBTTT

AR A
BRmEE
RMB'000
ARETT

2020

Investment listed in:

20204

RE - EHR

Hong Kong — Financial assets at 58 — UAh{EE
FVTPL ATEREEHA
BarEemEE 92,718 4,636
2019 20194
Investment listed in: ®E - ETR
Hong Kong — Financial assets at B — UAREE
FVTPL STEREEHA
BamemEE 113,485 5,674
EWBREERERAR —T-TFH
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

50. A A FEMBLATNFERE

Percentage of equity interest

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Issued and paid-up
share capital/

attributable to the Company
ARARERAZ AL

Principal activities

China Resources Hospital Management ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding and

& Consulting Co. Ltd.* hospital
management
ERRREREAERAR" hE/PEN AR#500,000,00070 RERRRERER
Jian Gong Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB420,552,600 80.00 80.00  General healthcare
services

E=gkR hE/REN AE%420,552,6007 GARBRRE

Beijing Wanrong Yikang Medical PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

IREREREEERAA hE/PEN AR %3,000,0007C GPO%H

Beijing Phoenix Jiayi Medical Devices PRC/Mainland China RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co., Ltd.

IR ERERERNARLA hE/PEN AB84,000,0007T GPO%H

Beijing Phoenix Easylife Healthcare PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived
Consulting Co., Ltd. services

IREEREBERITAAERAT ME /BN ARH1,000,0007 At BT RS

Beijing Phoenix Easylife Technology and ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Trade Co., Ltd

IRBBEENEERAR hE/HE R ARE500,00070 GPO%H

Beijing Yisheng Yongxin Medical PRC/Mainland China RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Equipment Co.,Ltd.

IREEXEERERERAR hE/PEN AB#4,000,0007T GPO%H

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2020



50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Phoenix Baokang Healthcare Hospital
Management Co., Ltd.*
BERRERERERA

Beijing Phoenix United Innovation
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
tRBEEARANEREARRAT

Beijing Runkang Yisheng UCC Clinic
Management Co., Ltd.
FRERGEEDMERERAA

Wuhan Runzhiyun Technology Co., Ltd
(formerly known as Beijing Phoenix
United Innovation Information
Technology Co., Ltd)

REBREMRARAA (ABALRE
BB EIE S RITARAA)

Beijing Lihetang Healthcare
Management Co., Ltd.
FRBNERRERERAA

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

PRC/Mainland China

TE/PEAL

PRC/Mainland China

HE/PEN

PRC/Mainland China

TE/PEML

PRC/Mainland China

HE/PEN

PRC/Mainland China

TE/PEML

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital

USDS,000,000/
USD8,000,000
5,000,000% 7T,/
8,000,000% 7T

RMB10,000/
RMB20,000,000
AR%10,0007,/
AR%20,000,0007C

RMB10,010,000/

RMB20,000,000

AR10,010,0007,/
AK#20,000,0007

RMB10,000/
RMB10,000,000

AR10,0007T,/
AR10,000,0007

RMB10,000/

RMB1,000,000
AE#10,0007T,/
AR%1,000,0007

()

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

2020

20205
%

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

EPBEERERAT —ZT_=F

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

AR

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

50. XA AR FEMEATNFERE

Principal activities

\ T W Ik
ITRXG

Hospital management

EREE

Other hospital-derived

services

Efp BRI RS

Other hospital-derived
services

E BRI R

Other hospital-derived

services

Efp BRI RS

Other hospital-derived
services

E BRI R
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL 50. XA FEMEATNFRE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY ()

(continued)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARAEMGEREZEDL

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

Issued and paid-up
share capital/

Principal activities

IRER

Shenzhen Yukangrun Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000 100.00 100.00  Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd.

RITREEERERERAT RE/PER ARE10,0007 RERR

China Resources Hospital Investment PRC/Mainland China USD100,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
(China) Co., Ltd services

EEBRRE (PE)BRAR hE/TERD 100,000,000% 7 BRERRE

China Resources Hospital Management ~ PRC/Mainland China USD10,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Co., Ltd. services

EHBRERERAR hE/HE R 10,000,000% T EREERY

China Resources Hospital Holding PRC/Mainland China RMB52,000,000 100.00 100.00  Hospital management
Company services

ZRERARERDA hE/PEN AR %52,000,00070 ERERRY

999 Clinic PRC/Mainland China RMB4,000,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived

services

SNEEMZH (RN EREALHT mE/RER AR 4,000,000 Hth BB 7 FR 7%

Beijing Hezhongsuyu Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Management Co., Ltd.* services

IRERRAEREEBRAA" wE/PER AR 1,000,0007 Eth BT RS

Beijing Mingshihoude Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services

ERRREREREERARR AT hE/PEN ARH1,000,0007 Eft BhATE RS

Beijing Zhikangjiantong Hospital PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services

TRERRREREEEAFRAA wE/PER AREZT/ Hth BT RS

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited

AK#1,000,0007

Annual Report 2020



50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Wuhan Jiayi United Medical Devices
Co., Ltd.
REEEHAERSMERAT

pesll]

Guangzhou Jiayi Medical Equipment
Co, L
ENEEERREERLA

Hubei Wanyining Medical Equipments
Co, Ltd. ("Hubei Wanyining")
M BFEREERAR ((HLBRE])

Beijing Phoenix Lianyi Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd.
trERREHEEERARLA

Beijing Phoenix Cinda Hospital

Management Consulting Co., Ltd.*
FRERGEEREREAERAA

Guangzhou Boen Doctor Group
Co., Ltd.*
BNBRBEEEERAR™

Hainan Runfeng Medical Service Co.,
Ltd.
BHERRERBEREALT

Place of incorporation/

registration and business

PRC/Mainland China

hE/ AR

PRC/Mainland China

PE/PEML

PRC/Mainland China

ME/PENL

PRC/Mainland China

HE/PEN

PRC/Mainland China

TE/PEAL

PRC/Mainland China

PE/PEML

PRC/Mainland China

TE/PEML

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital

Nil/RMB1,000,000

ARBER/
ABR#1,0000007C

Nil/RMB1,000,000

ARBERL/
AR%1,000,0007C

RMB3,000,000
AR 3,000,007
RMB1,000,000/
RMBS,000,000
ARH1,000,0007T,/
AR 5,000,007
RMB100,000
ARE100,0007C

Nil/RMB1,000,000

ARBERL/
AR%1,000,0007C

RMB600,000/

RMB1,000,000
AR 600,000,/
AR1,000,0007

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

()

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARREGRECEDL

2020
20205
%
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
- 100.00
100.00 60.00
100.00 100.00

50. XA AR FEMEATNFERE

Principal activities

\ T W Ik
ITRXG

GPO business

GPOER

GPO business

GPO¥T

GPO business

GPOXH

Hospital management

services

2R ERRY

Hospital management

services

BEREERE

Other hospital-derived

services

Eth B0 07 R

Other hospital-derived

services

EBh TR

ERBEERERLAT —ZT_TFWR
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital

g ¢

(&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARAEMGEREZEDL

2020

20205
%

50. A A FEMBLATNFERE

Principal activities

Beijing Runhuaxinkang Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB2,500,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. services

IREZLREREREAERAT hE/REN AR%2,500,0007C Eth B ITERS

Shenzhen Runkang Spring Bamhoo PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100.00 100.00  Other hospital-derived
Shoot Clinic services

R EREEND D hE/PEN AR 1,000,000 Hin Bl iTERS

Guangzhou Runyitang Pharmacy PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB500,000 100.00 100.00  GPO business
Co., Ltd.

EMNEERZAERERAT RE/PER AREZT/ GPO%7%

AR%500,0007T

Beijing Runhuaxieya Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 51.00 51.00  Other hospita-derived
Management Co., Ltd. services

IREERRERERERAA hE/PEN AR 1,000,000 Hin B i7E RS

Xuzhou Xinmeijian Medical Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000/ 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Co., Ltd. RMB1,000,000 services

BMOEREERBEAERRA wE/PER AE#500,0007,/ E BT RS

A&%1,000,0007C

Beijing Youaokang Medical Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Co., Ltd services

IRERRERRIERAA hE/PEN AR 1,000,000 Hin Bl iTERS

Beijing Duledefang Technical Consulting ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 60.00 60.00  Other hospital-derived
Co., Ltd services

IRHYEFRHAERAR hE/PEN AR 1,000,000 Hin Bl iTERS

Run Neng PRC/Mainland China RMB318,818,000 65.00 65.00  Hospital management

services
B hE/PEN AR%318,818,0007 EREERE
Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital PRC/Mainland China RMB338,000,000 100.00 —  General healthcare
services
BREER hE/REN AR %338,000,00070 GABERY

254  China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited
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50. XA AR FEMEATNFERE

()

50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

Issued and paid-up

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ARREGREZADL

2020 2019

2020 20194
% %

Principal activities

IREH

Huaikuang Hospital*~ PRC/Mainland China RMB118,548,005/ 100.00 —  General healthcare
RMB124,700,000 services
ERRR FE/REN AR 118 ,548,0057T,/ e BERK
AR124,700,0007
Beijing CEEC Hospital*~ PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB300,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
services
g RER PE/REN AREZTL/ GEEERY
AR#300,0007
Beijing CEEC Shuozhou Hospital*~ PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
services
ERB R RN B E/RER ARH200,0007 BRBEERY
Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital*- PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB17,680,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
services
ERTHRENRR PE/REN AREZTL/ GEEERY
AR %17,680,0007T
Guangxi Hydropower Hospital*~ PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB25,000,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
services
ERKEER RE/RER AREZT/ GREEERE
AR #25,000,0007C
Gaoxin District Xingyuan Community PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB9,280,600 65.00 —  General healthcare
Healthcare Centre™- services
BHERELREERET L PE/REN AREZT/ HEEERY
AE9,280,6007T
Gaoxin District Tianle Community PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB2,080,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
Healthcare Centre*~ services
BREREHEEERBRL PE/PEA ANREZTL/ e EERE
AR 2,080,000
Tiandong Street Dianchang Road PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB270,000 65.00 —  General healthcare
Community Healthcare Centre*- services
RRGEEREHEGERBR L PE/RER ANREZTL/ e BERE
AR270,0007T
Hefei Gaoxin District Changning PRC/Mainland China Nil/RMB3,838,400 65.00 —  General healthcare

Community Healthcare Centre® services
AERNERELRAERE L RE/RER ARBZT/ HRBERE
AR3,838,400T

ERBERERERLAT —T-F
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50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Guangxi Runliao Brain Hospital Co., Ltd.”

ERERMMNBRERAR-

Hubei Runkang Medical Management
Co., Ltd. ("Hubei Runkang")

L BEERERARLR (THLER])-

Runliao (Shenzhen) Investment and
Consulting Co., Ltd.”

BE (R RERABRAR-

Runhekangze (Shenzhen) Healthcare
Hospital Management Co., Ltd.”

BHRE(RY) BREEERAR-

Place of incorporation/
registration and business

TR E R

PRC/Mainland China

hE/PEN

PRC/Mainland China
RE /R E R
PRC/Mainland China

HE/PEAL

PRC/Mainland China

hE/PEN

Issued and paid-up
share capital/
registered capital

ek

(&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company
ElEREZEAML

2020

20205
%

50. A A FEMBLATNFERE

Principal activities

##

#iH

These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under PRC law.

These institutions, as not-for-profit hospitals, cannot be registered
as companies under PRC law. The sponsors of the these
institutions, which are not-for-profit hospitals, have respective
obligations to contribute the start-up capital to such institutions.
Such start-up capital, once contributed, shall not be withdrawn by
the sponsors. Given the charity nature of the not-for-profit
hospitals, the legal income of such hospitals shall only be used in
line with its purpose and within its business scope, and where
applicable, in accordance with the articles of association of such
hospitals, and therefore, the net income is not distributable to its
sponsors as dividends, which is different from a shareholder who
owns the equity interests of a company.

These subsidiaries were newly established during the year.

These subsidiaries were newly consolidated during the year.
These subsidiaries were deregistered during the year.

The percentage of equity interest is increased from 60% to 100%.

The non-controlling interest withdrew from the company without
any consideration.

Nil/RMB50,000,000 100.00 —  General healthcare
services
AREZT/ TABERE
AR %50,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000 100.00 —  Hospital management
services
AKE10,000,00070 EREERE
Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 —  Hospital management
services
AREZTL/ BRERRG
AE%1,000,0007
Nil/RMB1,000,000 100.00 —  Hospital management
services
AREZR/ BRERRY
AR¥1,000,0007
* ZEMBRARBEBEREEEFMAINEEE
-

¢ ZERBIERIFEMNELR - TRREFR A
BERCIEARTE - ZERE (RIEENERR)
MERABE BB AZSHBTAVRER -
THGBEAR—EGEN - S A TR R © &
RIFENBENESUED  ZSBENEE
WARTERE B /£ X0 E R & (1E
R)BREERERNAMTRZMABIER
It WAFEADA DR TEBAERERE
HEHEE M ARRENRRTR -

ZE B R B TN FE AL -

ks

i

- A = WNSIDEY S A R

a

b ZE M B R R Ty R R

e MR DR 60% B INE100% © FFHERR iR
BEEREEMRETREBZAR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

50. PARTICULARS OF THE PRINCIPAL

51.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The above subsidiaries are
Company.

indirectly held by the

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group and China Energy
Engineering Group Assets Management Co., Ltd. (FREIgEREREEE E
EHEABMRAF) ("CEE Group Assets Management”), the non-controlling
shareholder of Run Neng, contributed additional capital into Run Neng. The
contributions by the Group and CEE Group Assets Management were in
the form of cash of RMB215,758,000 and sponsorship rights of certain
hospitals, respectively. The fair value of the sponsorship rights as at the
date of contribution was RMB116,177,000.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 12 March 2021, Hubei Runkang (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Shenzhen Runtou Consulting Co. Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Runtou Consulting”) (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CR Land) entered into a hospital
management agreement (the “Hospital Management
Agreement”), pursuant to which Shenzhen Runtou
Consulting (as the principal) shall appoint Hubei
Runkang as the manager to provide comprehensive
operation and management services for the
Yuenianhua Nanning Rehabilitation Hospital (the
“Rehabilitation Hospital”), which include the
introduction of management and operation systems by
Hubei Runkang, building management team of the
hospital, and the introduction of various resources,
such as hospital brand and medical technology. Hubei
Runkang shall receive a service fee from Shenzhen
Runtou Consulting (during the preparation period) or
the Rehabilitation Hospital (starting from the official
opening of the hospital) for the provision of various
management services under the Hospital Management
Agreement.

50.

51.

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

RARETEMBLARNFS

(%)

FRHBARIRARBRERE

FREINEERREIBREAEERSE
ERESBNAREEEFENTES
DOARAMBAR - EFRR - 2Ht
HEARFEHERERBRIT
= o

MiE -

HZE2019F12ANHILFE - AEEEPEEIRE
BREEEEEREARAR ([PhREEEEER]
PRE 2 FETERRARIR) - MBAEELAEINEE o AR
HAEREEBEAEEREDBUNRSARY
215,758,000 o 5 T BB VB IHEMERITE - BT
EEY ZERERBEZAABERARS
116,177,0007T °

BREHWRER

NN T BRI A2021F3 A12HHA
LT HIERE (R FEES
BEWtB AR BRIImBERERERA
Al (MRIBEZR]) (EFENEE
2EWNBRAR) R ERETEZERE
W ([EREZTEEwR]) @ Bl &
IERFRMEREZFTE ) BETHIL
HREWEABEEBA)MEFEMERE
BR((ERBRDREZEHELERE
BR7S - BiEm B BRI AE IR
BITHS - HEBIERER - WA
Bhrmh - BERNESEEIR © it
EEMBREERZTEEHRIEHZE
BIERY  MRIDBRER (RNEHD
M) RERER (BERER EAFAE
Hie) W E IR RIS E -

ERBRERERAF

A

|
"
e

F
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> NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E R E

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 52. &2 B B iR R &
OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of UWTARAREHERERR ZHEAARR
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as WKREHR
follows:

2020
20204

RMB’000
ARETT

2019

20194
RMB’000
ARET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment M - B REE 9 —
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR RE 6,118,706 6,107,582
Due from subsidiaries L C NGB 181,661 230,491
Total non-current assets BWIERBNEE 6,300,376 6,338,073
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE

Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEYD 10,359 11,211
CURRENT LIABILITIES REasE

Other payables and accruals Hofth < R R FEET B 7,584 4,833
Due to subsidiaries JEAST B BB N B FR OB 112,842 122,533
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ETEIRITER 672,301 578,337
Total current liabilities BRENEE 792,727 705,703
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BB ESERE (782,368) (694,492)
Net assets BEFE 5,518,008 5,643,581
EQUITY s

Share capital (&N 267 267
Reserves (note) s (B EE) 5,517,741 5,643,314
Total equity BrER 5,518,008 5,643,581
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERARMEE

31 December 2020 2020412 A31H

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 52. XA R BMBERRKER @
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

53.

Note:

A summary of the Company’'s reserves is as follows:

Share
premium
account

RMB’000

ARETT

GEE

ARRERERENT

Treasury Share-based

Capital share

reserve reserve

7

yi)
1
RMB'000

ARBTT

payment
reserve

=
RMB'000
ARBTT

Accumulated
losses

25 E1E
RMB'000
ARETT

*
RMB'000
ARET T

At 1 January 2019 #R2019F1 818 6,180,977 (5,562) (384,650) 1,222 (80,679) 5,711,308
Profit and total comprehensive income for FEMERZARALE
the year — — — — 7,425 7,425
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangement iz 45 E AR (7
DES3 - - - 13,083 - 13,083
Award of shares under the Share Award R REE B R@R D
Scheme (56,602) — 99,587 — — 42,985
Transfer of share-based payment reserve upon R 1n 2B =t &I TR0 55 18
the vesting of shares under the Share Award BRI SRR
Scheme i - (698) 1,918 (1,220) - -
Final 2018 dividend 2018F KRS (131,487 — - - - (131,487)
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 R2019512A318 K&
202051R18 5,992,888 (6,260) (283,145) 13,085 (73,254) 5,643,314
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FEBERZEBELE - - — - (21,985) (21,985)
Equity-settled share-based payment arrangement  fRHE25 4 8 AR ()
TRZH - - - 11,124 - 11,124
Sale of treasury shares HEEFRG — — 380 — - 380
Final 2019 dividend 2019F KRS (115,092) - - - — (115,092)
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12A318 5,877,796 (6,260) (282,765) 24,209 (95,239) 5,517,741

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of shares

awarded which are yet to be vested, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to treasury share
reserve and capital reserve when the related share awards are vested, or
be transferred to accumulated losses should the related share awards

expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2021.

B REREEER AR BN ERRONAAEE
IEARTE A 5 3R R MY 2 2.4 70 LARBR 13 1 SR B & R BUR
E—TERE - ZeESERBRNEDREHFEL
EERHREBERERAATE  REERBRDREHS
MRS S RETEIR o

53. B mRALE

B EBmRN2021F3 26 HEZE =St
R -

ERBEERERLAT —ZT_TFWR



A FINANCIAL SUMMARY — IN ACCORDANCE WITH
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
MBRE — REEIMRM B RS 2L

For the year ended 31 December

HBHE12R31HIEEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

2020% 20195 20185 VS 2016%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTE ARNTT ARETT ARBTR

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS &H&%%&

Revenue Yz 2,750,650 2,115,320 2,059,478 1,877,724 1,532,831
Profit/(loss) before tax BanAE/ (BE) 418,185 541,299 588,943 559,507 (1,452,481)
Income tax expense FEHAX (97,864) (140,665) (149,387) (129,812) (47,331)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHE/(EE) 320,321 400,634 439,556 429,695  (1,499,812)

Attributable to: DA AL
Owners of the parent SRAERA 310,131 390,865 430,898 421,034 (1,506,964)
Non-controlling interests kR 10,190 9,769 8,658 8,661 7,152
320,321 400,634 439,556 429,695 (1,499,812)

As at 31 December
®12A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETEH

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE

Total assets BEE 8,963,193 7,873,981 7,319,483 6,914,201 6,448,336
Total liabilities BafE (2,622,739)  (1,733,806)  (1,609,664)  (1,312,633)  (1,090,806)

6,340,454 6,140,175 5,709,819 5,601,568 5,367,530

Equity attributable to: MTALEMG#ES
Owners of the parent [SYNCIE F=PN 6,105,456 5,903,700 5,589,498 5,481,731 5,238,379
Non-controlling interests IR E R 234,998 236,475 120,321 119,837 119,151

6,340,454 6,140,175 5,709,819 5,601,568 5,367,630
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"Articles of Association”
or "Articles”

"Audit Committee”

“"Award Shares”

“Board” or “Board of
Directors”

“BVI"

“CG Code”

“Chairman”

“Chief Executive Officer”

"Chief Financial Officer”

“China” or “PRC"

"Companies Ordinance”

“"Company” or “our
Company” or “China
Resources Medical”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

“CR Bank”

"CR Healthcare Group”

DEFINITIONS A

Bx

the articles of association of our Company adopted on September 30, 2013
and as amended from time to time

the audit committee of the Board

such Shares awarded pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the maximum
number of which shall not exceed 10% of the total issued capital of the
Company as at August 31, 2018 and 1% of the total number issued Shares to

each of the Selected Participant as at August 31, 2018

the board of Directors of our Company

the British Virgin Islands

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
the chairman of our Board

the chief executive officer of the Company

the chief financial officer of the Company

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (B8 &3 AR A 7)),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on
February 28, 2013

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules, or where the
context requires, refers to China Resources Company Limited (FEIZEBEERE R
7)) (formerly known as China Resources National Corporation (/ EZEEE A
al))

China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd., a municipal bank headquarters in
Zhuhai and a subsidiary of China Resources Company Limited

China Resources Healthcare Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

EHBRERARLAT —T_TFRH
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> DEFINITIONS

Ba

[MEEERAA] -

(S48 =48]

[EZZ B2

SRR 17

[EFg]

[RBE RS

[EEIASTA

[EE K]

[

(BERVHE]

[

INGIRESEN

[ARRRA]] e

[FEHEBE]

[ 2 B ARR

[TREEBRT]

[EEEFREEE]

ARAAAR2013F9 A0 H MW RIS FT O 4E 4 =2 4 8

REBERGRETEE FOZERD - ERSH A THBARDAN2018
FBABTHEBITRALEMI10% LN2018F8HA3NHETTREESR
HLE B BITIRID B %

ARRESE

RBERRES

AR BB 8%+ O E L A 1 2 B R 5T A

ESCESER

ZN/NETFE S

ARREENBE

REARKEME : RAREMS - TRESE  RPIFITHRERES
KEDRER] ~ WSk A H b 77 S B BB 9 88622 % A RHE D

HEHEREETR AR AT —ER2013FE2 A28 EH SRS MR
BRETAF

AR LEMRAUMMETZARNEE ST XEMNT  ETEREBREGRAF
(R EEBRAR)

HOSHEBRITROBRAT  —REBLRWETHRTHERT - ¥
B EERERAR 2 HEA

FHREFEEEESRAR  —HARBBAMKLNERAR X RFEHE
= 2 &~ A
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“CR Holdings”

"CR Hospital Holdings”

"CR Hospital
Management &
Consulting”

"CR Land”

“CR Leasing”

“CR Pharmaceutical”

“CR Trust”

"Director(s)”

"Eligible Persons”

"Executive President”

“FY2018"

“FY2019" or “Reporting
Period”

"Group”, “our Group”,
“we” or “us”

DEFINITIONS <

BR

China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources Company Limited and the indirect holding company of CR
Healthcare Group

China Resources Hospital Holdings Company, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

China Resources Hospital Management & Consulting Co. Ltd. (formerly known
as Beijing Phoenix United Hospital Management Consulting Co. Ltd., Beijing
Phoenix United Hospital Management Co., Ltd. and Beijing Phoenix United
Hospital Management Joint Stock Co., Ltd., a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on November 6, 2007, and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

China Resources Land Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the

Stock Exchange (stock code: 1109), and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

China Resources Leasing Company Limited*, a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3320), and a subsidiary of CR
Holdings

China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability and a subsidiary of CR Holdings

the directors of our Company or any of them

any of the (i) key management personnel including the Directors and senior
management of the Group; (i) employed experts as nominated by the Board;
and (iii) core employees of the Group

the executive president of our Company

the financial year ended December 31, 2018

the financial year ended December 31, 2019

our Company and its subsidiaries

TEW

fuisiy

ERBRERERAF

|
A

|
;

263



> DEFINITIONS

Ba

[FEHEE]

[ E Bz

EEE T

[FERE ]

[EEHEE]
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[BEBAL]
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[2019F B L F & | sk
[ R4 2 fE |

[REH ]
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RAFMEEMBRARALEIRESENREIZERAF

EHERERARAR  —RAPBEFMERIHBRAT - WAKRQF
Z M B AR
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“"HK$" or “"HKD" and
“"HK cent(s)” or
“cent(s)”

“Hong Kong”

“Huaikuang Hospital”

“Huaikuang Hospital

Group”

“Hubei Runkang”

“Huaiyin Hospital”

“1AS”

“IFRSs”

“10T"

"IOT Hospitals”

“"JH Management”

"Jian Gong Hospital”

“Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital”

“Jing Mei Group”

“Jing Mei Hospital”

DEFINITIONS <

BR

Hong Kong dollar and cent(s) respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
Huaibei Miner General Hospital* (1L TE T 4858 F%)

collectively, Huaikuang Hospital and certain affiliated hospitals and community
clinics

Hubei runkang Healthcare Management Company Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

Huai'an City Huaiyin Hospital Company Limited, a company established in the
PRC with limited liability

International Accounting Standards
International Financial Reporting Standards
the "invest-operate-transfer” model

third-party hospitals and clinics, which we manage and operate under the 10T
model

JH Management Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and a subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Jian Gong Hospital Co., Ltd.* (It RTfEEERARAF]), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on May 12, 2003 and
a subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor, Beijing Construction Worker
Hospital (It M2 T AER), before its reform

Jinan Zhong Qi Hospital Company Limited* (Em & /5% AR A7), a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, and its predecessor, CNHTC Hospital (FR B &E#! 5
BEBABRAAER), before its reform

Beijing Jing Mei Group Company Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability and a state-owned enterprise under the State-owned

Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Beijing

Jing Mei Hospital* (Jb B & B 48 B Fr)

ERBRERERAF
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"Jing Mei Hospital Group”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Mentougou Hospital”

“"Mentougou Hospital for

Women and Children”

“"Mentougou Hospital for

Women and Children
IOT Agreement”

“Mentougou 10T
Agreement”

“Mentougou TCM
Hospital 10T
Agreement”

“Mentougou Traditional

Chinese Medicine
Hospital”

“"Model Code”

“Nomination Committee’

“OT"

"OT Hospital”

U

DEFINITIONS <

BR

collectively, Jing Mei Hospital and its affiliated hospitals and community
clinics

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commence on the Stock
Exchange, i.e. November 29, 2013

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Beijing Mentougou Hospital (At RHFPISEEREEPT), a not-for-profit hospital
established under the laws of the PRC in 1951 and wholly owned by the
Mentougou District government, which we began managing in June 2010
pursuant to the Mentougou IOT Agreement

Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children (FI8E)E & 7 40 R B7)
incorporated under the laws of the PRC in 1983 and wholly owned by the
Mentougou District government, which we began managing in September
2014 pursuant to the Mentougou Hospital for Women and Children 10T
Agreement

the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District government
on September 23, 2014

collectively, the IOT agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District
government on July 30, 2010, as amended

the 10T agreement we entered into with the Mentougou District government

on June 6, 2012

Mentougou Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital (it R FIEEE R F ), a
not-for-profit hospital established under the laws of the PRC in 1956 and
wholly owned by the Mentougou District government, which we began
managing in June 2012 pursuant to the Mentougou TCM Hospital 0T
Agreement

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

the nomination committee of the Board
the “operate-transfer” model

third-party hospital which we manage and operate under the OT model
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"Pinyu”

“PMM”

“Remuneration
Committee”

“"RMB"

“Run Neng Hospitals”

"Selected Participant(s)”

“SFO"

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

"Share Award Scheme”

"Share Option Scheme”

"Stock Exchange”

"UMP Healthcare
Holdings”

“Unison Champ”

“United States” or “U.S.”

“U.S. dollar” or "US$"

DEFINITIONS
B=

Pinyu Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

pharmaceuticals, medical device and medical consumables

the remuneration committee of the Board

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

collectively, Guangdong CEEC Power Hospital* (EXR T8 E /1 %Fx), Beijing
CEEC Hospital* (it R EE7EEBR), Guangxi Hydropower Hospital* (& 7a/K & &
Bz) and CEEC Anhui Hospital* (FR8E2 % 2 Fx)

Eligible Persons selected by the Board in accordance with the terms of the
Share Award Scheme

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

share(s) with par value of HK$0.00025 each in the capital of our Company
holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board pursuant to a
resolution passed by the Board on July 7, 2014, as amended by the Board on

May 25, 2015 and August 31, 2018

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant to a
resolution passed by our Shareholders on September 30, 2013

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited (Bf& BB HBRAF]), a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 722)

Unison Champ Premium Limited (formerly known as Unison Champ Limited),
a company incorporated under the laws of BVI and a wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company

the United States of America, its territories and possessions, and all areas
subject to its jurisdiction

United States dollar, the lawful currency of the United States
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“Wugang Hospital”

“"Wugang Hospital Group”

“Xukuang Hospital”

“Yan Hua Hospital”

"Yan Hua Hospital Group”

“Yan Hua Hospital
Investment
Management
Agreement”

“Yan Hua 10T
Agreement”

“Yan Hua Phoenix”

DEFINITIONS <

BR

China Resources Wugang General Hospital* (ZE & 425 F%)

collectively, Wugang Hospital, Wuhan Iron and Steel (Group) Corporation No. 2
Staff Hospital* (R ZME (E£E) A RF — B T 2%) and certain affiliated
hospitals and community clinics

Xuzhou Mining Hospital* (& 715 1L 28 F)
Yan Hua Hospital* (1t R #E (L B2 Fx)

collectively, Yan Hua Hospital and the community clinics affiliated with Yan
Hua Hospital

the hospital investment management agreement dated February 4, 2008,
which was supplemented in April 2008, December 2010, June 2011, July
2013, September 2013 and October 2013, and were entered into between CR
Hospital Management & Consulting, Yan Hua Hospital and Yan Hua Phoenix

the hospital management right and investment framework agreement dated
February 1, 2008 and the hospital investment management agreement dated
February 4, 2008, both of which were supplemented in April 2008, December
2010, June 2011, June 2013, July 2013, September 2013 and October 2013,
entered into by CR Hospital Management & Consulting with Yan Hua Phoenix
and Yan Hua Hospital Group

Beijing Yan Hua Phoenix Healthcare Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (1t R &1t
BEREEZ2ELEEERAR AR, a limited liability company incorporated under the
laws of the PRC on July 18, 2005

Denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese entity is provided for identification purpose only.

In this report, the terms "“associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”, “subsidiary” and
“substantial shareholder” shall have the same meanings ascribed thereto under in the Listing Rules,
unless the context otherwise requires.
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